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Welcome to Walsall
Healthcare NHS Trust’s
Annual Report and
Accounts
As we look back over the last 12 months in the life of Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust it is the organisation’s significant
improvements and a shared sense of optimism that dominate our reflection.

The year has not been without its difficulties, of course; the NHS is continually trying to juggle demand for its services,
recruitment and retention challenges and a finite funding pot whilst encouraging innovation and focusing on
sustainability.

Here in Walsall, the trust has been inspected by the Care Quality Commission for the third time in as many years and, at
the time of writing, we’re hopeful that our combined efforts across the hospital and our community services will result in
the organisation being able to exit Special Measures following its February and March inspections. Informal feedback
was positive and any concerns raised have not been of sufficient seriousness to warrant immediate action. 

Being – and remaining – inspection ready inevitably impacts upon our staff. Senior leaders’ expectations have been high,
either through the intensive improvement asked for on the fundamentals of care, the new standards that have been set
in the field of clinical administration or the emphasis on effective communication and dissemination of information.
When set against system failures, infrastructure challenges or lack of resources the professionalism and determination of
our staff has never been more apparent and we appreciate their outstanding efforts. 

We have been buoyed by the rating of Requires Improvement being given to our Maternity Services last summer,
replacing Inadequate and this is examined in more detail on page xx of this Annual Report.

In addition, the CQC inspection has included;
l ‘Use of Resources’ inspection
l ‘Well-Led’ inspection

Since the last CQC inspection we can report a host of leadership achievements which include:

l A fully established, substantively appointed Board for the first time in years
l Delivery of more consistency in the fundamentals of care
l Launch of trust values
l Delivery of the Walsall Together care model and business case
l Improved staff engagement scores in the national staff opinion survey
l HSJ patient safety award winners nationally
l Top quartile performance nationally on reporting incidents openly
l Properly establishing three Freedom To Speak Up guardians
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Looking ahead to the next 12 months, we have agreed four priorities for 2018/19:

l Continue our journey on patient safety and clinical quality through a comprehensive improvement programme 

l Develop the culture of the organisation to ensure mature decision making and clinical leadership 

l Improve our financial health through our robust improvement programme 

l Develop the clinical service strategy focused on service integration in Walsall and in collaboration with other trusts 

Of all these priorities it is our organisation’s financial improvement that we know will pose a particular challenge. We
have been frustrated that we haven’t achieved the results we hoped for over the last year despite some encouraging
progress being made and we need to deliver a month 12 income and expenditure position which will give both Board
and NHSI, confidence.

The trust’s next year promises to be equally as rewarding and challenging with the Walsall Together initiative at the
forefront of our aim to improve the health and wellbeing outcomes of our residents, increase the quality of care
provided and provide long term financial sustainability in the system.

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19
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SECTION 1: 
PERFORMANCE REPORT
Overview 

This overview is a short summary of information to help readers understand the organisation, its purpose, the key risks to
the achievement of its objectives and how it has performed during the year.

Chief Executive’s Statement on Performance

The Trust reviews and monitors performance against key performance indicators (KPIs) via a number of forums as part of
its governance processes. Dependent on the nature of the KPIs, performance is monitored, daily, weekly and monthly
using a number of reporting tools and online dashboards. The KPIs are made up of national, local and internally agreed
standards.

The Trust holds a monthly performance meeting chaired by the Deputy CEO and attended by executive directors to hold
Divisions to account for their overall performance including finance, performance, quality, HR and activity. This balanced
view of performance facilitates an in depth scrutiny of economy, efficiency and effectiveness at a more granular level.

Performance is also benchmarked against peer providers to show how the Trust compares to similar sized organisations
and also against organisations within the local health economy. Monthly reported performance is signed off by both
operational and executive leads. It is then reported to the appropriate sub-committees of the Trust Board and to the
Trust Board for scrutiny.

Our four hour waits in the Emergency Department - for patients to be admitted, transferred or discharged within four
hours of arrival - are still proving a challenge, as they are for many other trusts across the country. While Walsall’s overall
performance has improved over the last 12 months, winter was once again a difficult period and overall there was a 4%
increase in attendances. Our new Emergency Department will feature specialist areas for resus, paediatrics and mental
health bringing significant improvements for our patients. Emergency re-admissions are also an area in which we want to
make greater improvements and the Walsall Together approach will be an important factor in this. 

It is encouraging to see the trust achieved its best Referral to Treatment Times (18 weeks) in more than two years and six
out of seven cancer targets were achieved. We have seen an increase in cancer referrals, potentially as a result of the
many national and local public awareness campaigns that are regularly run. 

We still have work to do to reduce our Did Not Attend (DNA) rates and to improve efficiency and productivity. Work is
ongoing to reduce Length of Stay and to better manage our Medically Fit For Discharge patients to ensure they are able
to return home as soon as possible and that any support needed is in place.

The trust is now three years into its five year ambition to deliver its vision of “Caring for Walsall together”.

This vision is underpinned by five objectives.

1. Provide Safe, High Quality Care. We will provide care that we would want for our family and friends.
2. Care for Patients at Home. We will keep people well at home, provide alternatives to acute care and 

return people home safely and quickly after admission.
3. Work Closely with Partners. We cannot do this alone and will work with our partners in Walsall and the 

Black Country.
4. Value Colleagues. We will be a clinically-led, engaged and empowered organisation.
5. Use Resources Well. We will ensure future sustainability by living within our means. 
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While the organisation is still committed to these objectives, they are being refreshed to reflect changes in national
policy and local strategic context. 

The trust wants to achieve an excellence in care delivery and resource utilisation, as defined by an outstanding rating for
its services by April 2022. To achieve this, the objectives need to be delivered through a more systematic and integrated
programme of work, as opposed to the traditional NHS approach of operational, financial and workforce planning on an
annual basis. 

A large scale, integrated improvement programme, encompassing strategic change, population health management,
digital transformation, service and productivity improvement, workforce redesign, organisational development, quality
improvement and patient/carer involvement is being proposed to drive the organisation’s actions over the next three
years.

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust is committed to reducing the level of fraud, bribery and corruption within both the Trust
and the wider NHS to an absolute minimum and keeping it at that level, freeing up public resources for better patient
care. The Trust does not tolerate fraud, bribery and corruption and aims to eliminate all such activity as far as possible.
This is outlined for staff in the Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Policy.

The Trust is a significant employer in Walsall and aims to go beyond the requirements of its contracts and contribute to
the wider wellbeing of the communities it serves.

The Trust has an important role to play in protecting human rights through its administration of the Mental Health Act
(1983) (MHA) and oversight of the Mental Capacity Act (2005). The Trust issues and maintains a comprehensive set of
policies which describe how it protects patients’ human rights including Safeguarding and the Depravation of Liberties
Act.

Walsall Healthcare is a publicly-funded organisation and does not engage in service provision in order to make a profit.
Whilst some services operate on a commercial basis they only generate a modest income and these services are not
considered commercial as they do not generate income in excess of £36 million per annum. A statement on the steps the
Trust has taken to ensure that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in the Trust’s supply chain or any part of
the Trust’s business is therefore not required.

The NHS is a major consumer of the earth’s scarce resources. The Trust is keen to play its part in ensuring it actively
supports the government’s sustainability agenda to make effective use of hospitals and services, particularly having
strategies in place to improvement environmental performance and consumption.

The Trust is committed to having in place active carbon management arrangements across a range of service areas which
will contribute to reducing its overall carbon footprint.

It is recognised a commitment to reduce carbon emissions, manage energy consumption and make effective use of
resources for service delivery is of crucial importance.
The NHS Sustainable Development Unit developed the NHS Carbon Reduction Strategy for England with a target to
deliver a 34% carbon dioxide (CO2) reduction by 2020.

The Trust has a continuing commitment to carbon reduction and providing sustainable environments and its Energy
Efficiency Committee meets regularly to discuss ideas that improve both operational efficiency and user experience.

Richard Beeken, Chief Executive.

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2017/18
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Purpose and Activities of Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust is an integrated trust. The Manor Hospital provides a full range of district general hospital
services and community health services for adults and children which are run from more than 60 settings across the
borough, including health centres and GP surgeries, while community services also provide support in people’s own
homes.

We have integrated health and social care with the development of seven Integrated Locality Teams. The teams are
co-located Community, Social Care staff and Mental Health staff who provide a ‘wrap-around’ service to GP practices. 

The area the trust serves 

Walsall has an overall estimated population of 281,293 (ONS, mid-2017). It is predicted to increase by 5.9% over 10 years.
Like many areas, the predicted growth of Walsall’s older population of over 65s is higher than this at 12.4%. There has
already been an 8.8% increase in births in Walsall.

Overall, life expectancy is gradually increasing for both men and women and the gap with comparative areas has shown
positive signs of narrowing. The focus continues to be on prolonging a healthy life expectancy and understanding and
planning for the implications that will have on service need and provision. 

Walsall is a culturally diverse town where people of Indian, Pakistani and Bangladeshi background form the largest
minority ethnic groups. The number of non-UK born residents in Walsall increased by 3.7% (or 9,900 people) between
the 2001 and 2011 censuses and Walsall now has a small Eastern European population which makes up about 1% of the
area’s residents. 

In terms of children and young people aged 0-17, the proportion of pupils from minority ethnic groups has increased to
37.4% of all pupils living in the area from 36.7% in 2016 and 24% Primary pupils have English as an additional language.
(School Census, January 2017). 

The 2015 Index of Multiple Deprivation now ranks Walsall as the 33rd most deprived English local authority (out of 326),
nudging Walsall just outside the most deprived 10% of districts in the country (30th in 2010 and 45th in 2007). 

Walsall fares particularly badly in terms of income (18th), employment (30th) and education, skills & training deprivation
(12th), and many of the issues that challenge the borough match the geography of deprivation. 

The high and increasing levels of child poverty put additional demands on services. Walsall ranks 18th of 152 upper tier
local authorities for income deprivation affecting children index (IDACI 2015) with the borough’s relative deprivation
increasing over time. 

One in three (29.9%) aged under 16 years are living in low income families, higher than the national average of 20.1%
(HMRC, 2016).

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19
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A year in the life of 
Walsall Healthcare 
NHS Trust 
Care Quality Commission inspection 

For the third time in as many years the CQC team returned to carry out an inspection at the trust – in February and
March and visited all of our medical inpatient areas and critical care services. Inspectors also attended both our public
and private Board sessions.

Overall, the informal feedback the trust has had has been positive. Inspectors said they were professionally welcomed by
staff in all areas who were keen to show them improvements made and referenced in particular changes made since the
2017 inspection.

In Medicine, the team was impressed by the emerging patient safety culture, patient safety huddles, morbidity and
mortality reviews and the cleanliness of ward areas, aided by the excellent housekeeping staff. In Critical Care, they saw a
visible leadership team which was praised for the successful transition into the new Intensive Care Unit. They witnessed a
strong patient safety culture and excellent patient/carer feedback.

As with any organisation striving to make a positive shift from a rating of “requires improvement”, there were things
highlighted as a concern as well. In particular, nursing colleagues remain concerned about the establishment levels on the
wards. The CQC asked for further evidence regarding our establishment review process, recently completed. They also
raised concerns about the slow development and roll out of our critical care outreach team and delayed step downs from
critical care to the wards.

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19
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It is a credit to the hard work and professionalism of staff that the trust clearly made a strong impression on the CQC this
time and its report was expected in early summer. 

CQC re-inspection of Maternity Services 

“Motivated and engaged” staff were credited with driving significant progress in our Maternity Services which received
an improved rating following an unannounced inspection by the CQC. 

The CQC gave the service an overall rating of Requires Improvement with a rating of Good for the caring domain after
re-inspecting it in June last year. Maternity Services were rated as “Inadequate” when the CQC inspected the trust in June
2017. 

The trust’s Transitional Care Unit, which provides extra care for newborn babies who don’t need the level of care of a
neonatal unit, was hailed as an example of “outstanding practice.” 

The CQC highlighted the unit as “an innovative and dedicated approach to postnatal care. The CQC also highlighted
areas of poor practice which included information not being accessible for all, greater compliance of mandatory training
and some remaining cultural issues. 

In its report the CQC described staff as being “proud of the service” and referred to a “much more positive” culture.
Concerns raised in the Warning Notice issued to Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust in 2017, which included insufficient staffing
levels and the monitoring of Cardiotocography (fetal heartbeat), have been addressed and improvements made. 

The report stated: “Staff were motivated and engaged with driving improvement for the service.

“Senior staff were now actively accepting and addressing the problems identified. There had been a significant shift in
the attitude of consultants who were reacting well to the changes required. 

“Consultants told us the senior leadership team understood the pressures of the department and described them as very
supportive. Leaders monitored improvements via a robust maternity improvement plan which everyone understood.
“Without exception we observed all staff interactions with patients were caring and supportive. Maternity staff
confirmed that the department was a calmer, more supportive environment.”

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19
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The changing face of
our hospital estate
Scanner provision doubled 

Patients are now using latest generation MRI scanners at Walsall Manor Hospital following completion of a major
healthcare investment in September 2018. 

Work to house two new scanners started in January last year in partnership with the InHealth Group which provides the
service. 

The equipment is used to diagnose and identify a range of conditions from back and knee injuries to brain problems
cancer, multiple sclerosis and arthritis. The trust’s previous scanner was more than 16 years old. 

The trust has entered into a 15 year contract with the InHealth Group which has seen the replacement of the old scanner
and installation of a second.

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19
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The Siemens Aera scanners provide exceptional image quality and are more suitable for patients who suffer from claus-
trophobia than standard scanners. They are also suitable for bariatric patients – a service that has previously been un-
available in Walsall. 

The investment will also enable the trust to make better use of its financial resources. The latest generation scanners only
require 24 hours maintenance per year as opposed to the usual 36 hours to reduce downtime. Radiologists are able to
view and interact with the images whilst the patient is in the scanner.

Completion of new Intensive Care Unit 

Patients moved into the Manor Hospital’s new state-of-the art Intensive Care Unit in December 2018 with staff from
across the trust all playing their part in ensuring things ran as smoothly as possible. 

The ICU, constructed by Skanska, has brought together Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust’s Intensive Therapy Unit (ITU) and
the High Dependency Unit (HDU) creating an 18-bedded unit. 

The new ICU allows the trust to treat patients in individual rooms, preventing cross infection and ensuring their dignity
and privacy. The standardisation of equipment at every bed space means any bed can be used for either an HDU or ITU
patient, preventing them having to be moved. Each bed has a ceiling-mounted pendant that supplies a comprehensive
range of essential services including essential gases, power for equipment and IT links. 

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19
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A relatives’ room has also been created to better support families and friends of patients. The room has been named the
‘Francoise Suite’ in memory of patient Francoise Ankrett and has been created using a kind donation from her family. 

Neonatal Unit expansion progressing well 

Work to create a new obstetric theatre and expand the Neonatal Unit from 15 to 20 cots is progressing well and is on
track for completion in the autumn.

The £5.6m project will see a purpose-built Intensive Therapy Unit and High Dependency Unit within Neonatal. 

The trust will be able to increase its provision to 20 cots – taking its HDU cots from two to four and special care cots from
11 to 14. 

Parts of the Neonatal expansion have had to be “live” running alongside the day to day care and support offered
through the existing unit. 

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19
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New Emergency Department funding

The Government announced £36m of funding for a new Emergency Department at Walsall manor Hospital as part of a
£963 million package of improvements revealed by Health and Social Care Secretary Matt Hancock. 

When the department was built it was to cater for around 40,000 patients a year but the trust sees around 80,000. 

It needs specialist areas for resus, paediatrics and mental health and last December’s announcement means that
significant improvements can be made giving our patients a better experience. 

The trust has been completing a procurement process with a view to appointing a contractor by spring 2019 which, with
NHSI and Government approval, should pave the way for work to start in late summer 2019. The construction is likely to
take around 18 months.

Investment

In March the Trust Board agreed to move to the procurement phase for implementing a new Electronic Patient Record
(EPR). More than 1,200 staff, when surveyed, made it clear that they were professionally frustrated with the limitations of
the current Patient Administration System (PAS).

The solution the Board has agreed to pursue will bring patient safety benefits, bed management/flow benefits and pro-
ductivity benefits. It will be strategically aligned given its ability to integrate with GP and social care systems, all essential
in the Walsall Together journey of bringing health and care integration in the borough.

The new system will help mobilise clinicians and users, where technology talks to each other without the need for endless
reams of paper and time. End results will see the trust go live with E-paging and E-Messaging this year, a new PAS system
by end of the year and the EPR component by 2020. The system will then allow Electronic Bed Management, a new ED
system and Theatre system, paperless clinics and self check-in. 
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Walsall Together

Walsall’s health and care system partners which include Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust, Walsall Clinical Commissioning
Group, Walsall Council, Dudley and Walsall Mental Health Partnership Trust and One Walsall have developed a business
case which outlines the way in which the ‘Walsall Together ‘ partners will change the ways and health and care is deliv-
ered in the community.

The overall aim is to improve the health and wellbeing outcomes of the population, increase the quality of care provided
and provide long term financial sustainability in the system. As an organisation the trust has played an integral part in
developing this.

There will be a Walsall Together Board with new senior roles to provide strategic oversight of the transformation and
these are hoped to be in place by May 2019. 

Our new trust values 

Walsall Healthcare had a list of “Promises” that were originally developed to signal the trust’s commitment to doing the
right thing by patients and its workforce. These Promises fed into the organisation’s strategic objectives and overall
Vision.

While well intentioned, the Promises didn’t strike the right chord with staff – this is what they’ve told us through the
many focus groups led by Staff Engagement Lead Simon Johnson. Few colleagues could recall the Promises as some were
quite lengthy and, although their importance was recognised, many didn’t believe they were truly embedded.

Our Trust Board and Executive Team agreed that the Promises needed to be refreshed and turned into Values chosen by
the people who work here. Evidence shows that the most engaged workforces choose their own values which become
embedded by staff being recruited against them and appraised through them so that they are lived and breathed by
everyone.

Staff were asked to come up with four single words that they felt represented their true values and what it should mean
to work for our trust.

When the final list of suggestions was drawn up staff were then invited to vote on their favourites.

We now have our four new Values which are:

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19
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Our Values should ultimately influence and shape the culture of the organisation. They have informed a behavioural
framework which determines how all staff, across all levels, should behave in line with these refreshed Values.

The Values also give the organisation the opportunity to regularly acknowledge and celebrate the efforts its teams in the
hospital and community services make towards embedding these.

Behavioural Framework

Our Behavioural Framework has been created using feedback from staff focus groups and is supported by our Trust
Board.

Staff told us that they felt unacceptable or unhelpful behaviours are currently not discussed explicitly which means poor
behaviour remains unchallenged. Good behaviour can therefore go unrewarded or unrecognised.

A draft framework was shared at the Leadership event in the summer and senior managers had an opportunity to
contribute towards this – their feedback led to an updated document.

Our Engagents – established through Staff Engagement Lead Simon Johnson to help further cascade key messages -
carried out additional consultation with staff and our Passion for Engagement Group also liaised with Staffside. The
Behavioural Framework is now being included in Trust Induction.

By introducing a Behavioural Framework, aligned to our four values, we are sending a clear message to staff across all
levels of the trust about what we expect to see and, equally as important, what our patients and their families can expect
to see too. And it provides us with an important appraisal, learning and development tool.

Here are some examples of acceptable and unacceptable behaviours as detailed within the framework.

Compassion

What we expect to see:

l Introducing yourself with a friendly smile, saying your name and who you are
l Recognising the contributions of others, saying thank you and meaning it
l Taking time to actively listen to the needs of others

What we do not expect to see:

l Having a ‘face fits’ culture
l Favouring friends/allies over others who are just as deserving
l Ignoring others when you can see they need help or ask for it

Teamwork

What we expect to see:

l Working collaboratively with colleagues, partners and any users of Trust services
l Supporting colleagues when they might have made a mistake
l Acknowledging everyone counts

What we do not expect to see

l Only thinking of ‘team’ as the immediate people you work with rather than the wider team
l Being unapproachable
l Only seeming to tell people what to do and assuming your way is the only way

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19
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Professionalism

What we expect to see:

l Being reflective
l Positive approach and striving to make a difference
l Openness to improvement and change

What we do not expect to see:

l Doing the bare minimum
l Taking credit for the work of others
l Using social media to place inappropriate comments about the Trust, colleagues or others

Respect

What we expect to see:

l Making equality, diversity and inclusion of all a core value
l Use of appropriate language
l Honesty when things go wrong and saying sorry

What we do not expect to see:

l Disregarding or not knowing these Trust values and behaviours
l Bullying and harassing behaviour
l Discrimination or treating people unfairly 

Cultivating a Culture of Continuous Improvement 

Our Quality Improvement Academy (QIA) was established in February 2018 with the aim of creating a culture of
continuous improvement across the trust. The QIA has evolved from the Listening into Action engagement approach,
which attracted interest from colleagues with a strong enthusiasm for local change. 

Improving quality is about making healthcare safe, effective, patient-centred, timely, efficient and equitable. In the
history of the NHS, there has never been such a focus on improving the quality of health services. 

The QIA has its own steering and governance group called the Quality Improvement Faculty, which is constantly on hand
to provide any additional help and guidance to the active improvement teams, but also to think creatively about how to
spread quality improvement knowledge across the organisation. 

The Faculty is formed from specialists based within the organisation and is led by Executive Director of Transformation
and Improvement Daren Fradgley, with colleagues from Service Improvement, Organisational Development,
Engagement, Library Services, and Governance amongst some of its members. Dr Hesham Abdalla is the Trust Quality
Improvement Clinical Lead and has been chairing the Faculty meetings and driving forward engagement amongst
medical colleagues. 

Earlier this year, five members of the Quality Improvement Faculty became associate members of the NHS Improvement’s
Quality, Service Improvement and Redesign (QSIR) Teaching Faculty. They are amongst 140 associates who are spreading
quality and service improvement knowledge and skills within 54 organisations across the UK, and this accreditation
means Walsall’s QIA can now offer accredited courses at the trust 

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19
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The Academy provides specialist training to individuals and teams in the use of supportive Quality Improvement tools
and methodology offering expert advice. By providing support and training to staff across the trust it can improve the
knowledge, skills and capabilities of colleagues and so help to drive a culture of continuous quality improvement for
Walsall. 

The first Walsall Healthcare Quality Improvement Conference took place in March with eminent healthcare professor
Michael West who spoke on compassionate leadership and patient safety. 

Engaging and empowering our staff

Walsall Healthcare’s Trust Board has been using a number of channels to improve engagement with staff over the last 12
months.

Chief Executive Richard Beeken holds weekly, informal one-to-one sessions in Costa Coffee for staff to talk to him about
improvements they’re proud of, ideas they’d like support with or to raise concerns. This is in addition to the monthly
Chief Executive’s Brief sessions that held in both the hospital and community; essential and mandatory sessions for senior
managers to ensure that key messages and updates are shared widely and well across teams. These sessions are also open
for all colleagues with senior managers encouraged to bring along a team member.

The Director of Nursing Karen Dunderdale worked with staff, patients and volunteers to develop a Nursing Strategy
which was launched before Christmas. She joined senior nursing leaders to visit ward and community staff across the
trust to raise awareness of this strategy. 

The trust also introduced a weekly Tuesday Topics session giving staff an opportunity to meet the Executive team, learn
about the latest news and developments from around the trust and ask questions. After a few months attendance dwin-
dled and the sessions stopped as staff said they preferred the more formal Chief Executive’s Brief.

Communications colleagues live tweet each Trust Board meeting.

All members of the Executive Team write a weekly blog to go into the Daily Dose – a daily, electronic staff newsletter.

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19
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And trust Chair Danielle Oum has spent time with teams across Walsall Manor Hospital and out in its community services,
shadowing staff in a variety of settings to gain real insight into the frontline. 

She joined staff working to safeguard children, the security team, Theatres, and the Emergency Department and visited
Walsall Palliative Care Centre, talking to patients as well as colleagues, observed clinics being run in paediatric
outpatients and pain management and caught up with the Learning Disability team. She also spent time in Maternity
and shadowed Finance and Library staff. 

She is keen to continue this and will be joining other teams to have a real sense of the challenges and opportunities that
healthcare colleagues are managing every day.

In November 2018 the trust introduced a regular Manor Mop-up newsletter specifically for housekeeping and support
service staff following their feedback that communication with this group of colleagues was poor. The newsletter is
available electronically but is also printed out and left in cleaning cupboards and on notice boards for all to access. In
addition, meetings with the Executive Team also took place.

Freedom to Speak Up Guardians

Following his review and subsequent report into failings in care in Mid Staffordshire, Sir Robert Francis recommended the
appointment of Freedom To Speak Up (FTSU) Guardians and the Secretary of State endorsed this role as an important
step towards developing an organisation’s culture of safety, openness and transparency.

Here in Walsall, we have three FTSU Guardians – Shabina Raza, Kim Sterling and Val Ferguson – and they are working
alongside trust leadership teams to support the organisation to become a more open and transparent place to work
where all colleagues are actively encouraged and enabled to speak up safely.

FTSU guardians have a key role in helping to raise the profile of raising concerns in their organisation and provide
confidential advice and support to staff in relation to concerns they have about patient safety and/or the way their
concern has been handled. Guardians don't get involved in investigations or complaints, but help to facilitate the raising
concerns process where needed, ensuring organisational policies are followed correctly.

Trust Board pledge
We want to develop a workplace where everyone feels included and able to offer high quality services. To help make this
happen Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust renewed its values -chosen by you – which are Respect, Compassion, Professionalism
and Teamwork. 

The trust has also responded to a national call to action to tackle bullying in the NHS and continues to work to eliminate
it. A strategy for Equality, Diversity and Inclusion is being developed to ensure equality, human rights and inclusion are
considered when we are providing services to our patients and service users, and also for colleagues. Your trust board has
committed to this work by making a pledge to all of us: 

“We, your Trust Board, pledge to demonstrate through our actions that we listen to and support people. We will ensure
that the organisation treats people equally, fairly and inclusively, with zero-tolerance of bullying. We uphold and
role-model the trust values chosen by you.” 

All colleagues need to know that should they require support there are a number of people they can speak to or services
they can access: 

l Line Manager/Managers 
l Other colleagues 
l Staffside 
l Human Resources 
l Workplace Support Advisers 
l Freedom to Speak Up Guardians 
l The Chaplaincy-Spiritual Care Team

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19
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In addition to these options, depending upon the concern, colleagues can also utilise: 

l Incident reporting process 
l ‘Speak Up’ (where a concern can be raised anonymously)

Pulse Check

Just over half of the trust responded to last year’s Pulse Check survey which meant the results were in sufficient numbers
to be able to get a meaningful overview. Staff were open and honest and really told us where they believe the organisa-
tion stands.

The areas that staff said offered us the greatest opportunity for improvement were:

l Day-to-day frustrations are quickly identified and resolved
l Communication between senior management and staff is effective
l Our work environment, facilities and systems enable me to do my job well

Staff also came up with a total of 1799 improvement ideas.

While Pulse Check analysis has been shared between the relevant care groups and departments within divisions the trust
is working on a more tailored approach to ensure as many staff as possible – across all levels of the organisation – see the
results for themselves.

There is a real opportunity to learn from Pharmacy, Trauma & Orthopaedics, Audiology and Maternity which have signifi-
cantly improved their Pulse Check Results since 2017.

Audiology, School Nursing, Endocrinology and Diabetes and Palliative Medicine all emerged as the top rated areas to
work.

Staff Survey

Results collated into 10 themes. Show “statistically significant” improvement in the staff engagement score between
2017 and 2018.

Benchmark report shows improvement on five of the ten themes - although not at a statistically significant level.

Stability on four of the ten themes 

The last theme (morale) introduced in 2018 and not benchmarked at this point.

Results will be reviewed at Divisional and Corporate level to formulate trust-wide action plan for improvement during
2019/20.

Fuller analysis of the national trend of a differential experience for BAME staff.

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19
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Improving our patients’ experience

The Quiet Protocol has been launched to make patients’ evenings more restful and relaxed. 

It was introduced following feedback through Patient Experience surveys which showed that patients are often having
trouble falling and staying asleep due to noisy and often too bright environments. This can have a real impact on their
recovery. 

A noisy environment is also detrimental to staff as it can make communication difficult and amplify work pressures which
means an increased chance of errors being made. 

Wards now start a wind down at 9pm-10pm taking the last evening round as an opportunity to better prepare patients
for a peaceful evening; checking their pain levels and positioning needs, providing oral care and making ear plugs and
eye masks available if requested. 

The protocol is initiated from 11pm to 6am when all staff are encouraged to reduce controllable noise.

Over the last three quarters we have continued to implement our patient experience strategy that puts the patient and
carer voice at the heart of our services and ensures that the trust has a co-ordinated approach of ‘listening to’ and
‘learning from’ patient feedback.

Around 92% of patients who used our hospital and community services said they would recommend us to their friends
and family if they needed similar care or treatment. This score is based on over 39,000 Friends and Family Test (FFT)
surveys completed by our service users. Our national and local surveys results continued to show improvements and also
highlight areas where more work is needed.

The chart below shows average FFT results for positive recommendation scores (%)for inpatients, A&E, outpatients and
community services in first three quarters of 2018-2019.
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Trust Friends and Family Test - ‘Would reccommend %’ Scores 
(quarterly average) 2018/19

The chart below shows the same for all the Maternity Service touchpoints:

Trust Friends and Family Test - Maternity Services touchpoints ‘Would reccommend %’ Scores 
(quarterly average) 2018/19
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Comment themes

The themes below have been generated from over 31,000 FFT comments left by patients. The themes are ranked, and in
relation to whether they were reported positively or negatively:

Key improvements include the ‘Back to Basics’ A&E patient experience improvement project which has been shortlisted
for a national award, enhancing the Quiet Protocol with sleep packs to help patients sleep well at night, continuing with
our Information Reading Panel, implementing the Always Event® improvement programme, collaborative working with
our local Healthwatch to conduct ward reviews, pharmacist at discharge lounge project, Improving Patient Experience in
Imaging department.

We have entered the second phase of our ‘You & I’ programme for staff engagement in patient experience by covering
Maternity Services. The Patient Experience team is part of projects for QSIR training through the Quality Improvement
Academy and is increasingly co-producing improvements with its patients and carers.
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Key areas highlighted for improvements in our national surveys and FFT included communication, patient involvement in
decisions about care and treatment, arrangements around discharge and waiting times.

The trust is also extremely grateful to over 300 volunteers who support staff and patients across the hospital, Palliative
Care Centre, Chaplaincy and Self Care Management. We continue to increase the number of our volunteers and develop
new roles based on the requirements of our different clinical and non-clinical services.

#WalsallandProud of our staff

The NHS turned 70 on 5 July 2018 and to mark the occasion, Walsall Healthcare, along with Walsall Clinic Commissioning
Group and Dudley & Walsall Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust, joined forces to create a commemorative photo.

Walsall Healthcare also staged a day of celebration featuring Compton Care Choir, two of our midwives who wrote their
own song and Christoph and the Nursettes, from our adult community nursing service, who put their own twist on a
couple of big band numbers including Frank Sinatra’s ‘My Kind of…Trust.’

Walsall branch of the NHS Retirement Fellowship. Volunteers and the League of Friends all supported the big day.

As a fitting finale to NHS 70, staff took part in their own It’s A Knockout family fun day that weekend at Walsall
Arboretum.
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Another busy 
charity year
Our Well Wishers charity enjoyed a bumper year – and that’s thanks to the amazing support of our colleagues, businesses
and members of the public. Without them Well Wishers wouldn’t exist and we wouldn’t be able to celebrate the
fantastic improvements that are having such a positive effect on our patients, their families and our own teams.

These donations are put to good use helping us to buy items or enhance services above and beyond what the NHS can
provide.

Here’s just some of the highlights from the last 12 months:

Focus on our Stroke Rehabilitation Unit 

An exciting partnership between Well Wishers and the Saddlers Shopping Centre was launched last year, with shoppers
voting for the project they wanted to support with a year of fundraising. And the development of our Stroke Rehabilita-
tion Unit to make it one of the best services in the country was voted the winner, with more than 300 people choosing it
as their favourite cause. 

Centre manager Melvin Glasby said: “We couldn’t be more excited about teaming up with Well Wishers. We’re in the
heart of Walsall and it means so much to us to be able to work in partnership to make an impact on the lives of our cus-
tomers who either use local healthcare services themselves or have family and friends who do. 

“Community involvement is extremely important to us and we think this partnership demonstrates that commitment.”
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Tai Chi to help Walsall neurological patients 

Suitable Walsall patients with Parkinson’s Disease and Multiple Sclerosis will be able to benefit from Tai Chi sessions to
help them manage their health and wellbeing. 

Two assistant practitioners from the trust’s Community Neurological Rehabilitation Team based at Short Heath Clinic,
Mary McKenzie and Diane Ward, have been funded through Well Wishers to go on a course specialising in the approach.
They hope to be able to offer sessions to carefully selected patients in the autumn. 

Beth Ashcroft, Team Lead/Physiotherapist explained: “There is growing evidence that Tai Chi can help patients with neu-
rological conditions to improve their balance, reduce falls, maintain a range of movement and muscle strength and re-
duce anxiety – particularly people with Parkinson’s Disease and Multiple Sclerosis. 

“Now that we have the funding from the charity we can send Mary and Diane on the course so that they can offer this to
those patients who are suitable as part of the work we do through our patient education sessions to support those man-
aging long term conditions. Our patients have asked us for Tai Chi to be made available and we’re really pleased to be
able to offer this, where appropriate, as an additional element to our self-management strategies.” 

A real team effort 

A £15,000 appeal to help create a new sensory room for children with disabilities and complex conditions was reached in
under a year – to the delight of service users, parents, carers and staff. 

Shelfield’s Child Development Centre now boasts a feature to be proud of with outdated and broken equipment re-
placed and a brand new ball pit. 

The target was reached thanks to a 100 mile sponsored cycle, fashion show, bag pack, cake sales, raffles and donations
and community groups, businesses, Walsall Football Club and healthcare staff all got behind the appeal either bringing in
donations or taking part in events to help swell funds. 
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Lolly’s legacy for teens

Money raised in memory of popular former patient Lauren 
“Lolly” Wilkinson has created a chill out room for teenagers 
being treated on the children’s ward at Walsall Manor Hospital. 

Lolly’s family managed to raise £5,000 following the 
17-year-old’s death from a cardiac arrest after an asthma attack 
in January 2017. The money came from donations at her funeral 
as well as from the wider Darlaston community who knew the 
popular Grace Academy student. 

They joined the Mayor and Mayoress of Walsall to officially 
open the room – Lolly’s Place – and gave it their blessing. 

Lolly’s mum Pam said: “We’re really pleased with it and think it 
is a legacy from her.” 

Lolly’s sister Kerry Wilkinson added: “It’s nice to see the room 
now after the work and planning that has gone into it.      
Patients can just shut the door behind them and forget they’re 
in hospital because it’s a relaxing space.” 

Her sister Nicola Waite praised Lolly’s friends who helped 
design the room by suggesting how it should look. 

“They were the ones who said it should have a homework area 
and it has TVs, a gaming area, hair and make-up area, laptops 
and a feature wall.“ 

Local businesses have kindly donated items and an additional 
£844 was put towards the cost by local fundraiser Sue Sutton 
who held a charity night at James Bridge Copper Social Club.

Scooter provision doubled 

Patients with mobility issues will be able to hitch a ride 
around Walsall Manor Hospital thanks to the generosity of 
fundraisers. 

Well Wishers has spent £6,600 on a new scooter to help 
transport patients to and from their appointments, 
treatment and tests; doubling scooter provision.

Another jam-packed few months of events has been 
organised for 2019.
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Key issues and risks

During 2017/18, the Trust identified the following key risks to the delivery of its strategic objectives. The major risks
identified and monitored through the Board Assurance Framework during the year related to:

l Failure to deliver consistent standards of care to patients' across the Trust results in poor patient outcomes and           
incidents of avoidable harm.

l Failure to achieve financial plans as agreed by the Board and communicated to NHSI
l If the Trust does not agree a suitable alliance approach with the Local Health Economy partners it will not be able  

to deliver a sustainable integrated care model.
l Failure to progress the delivery of the Walsall Integrated model for health and social care.
l The lack of leadership capability and capacity could lead to insufficient key performance improvement and the 

Trusts ability to be a high performing organisation.
l High levels of sickness absence within the Trust impacts upon the Trust's resourcing plan and ability to deliver safe 

and high quality care and also impacts upon the Trust's ability to effectively use resources and deliver the financial 
plan. The current policy framework for the Trust does not adequately support Staff Health and Wellbeing and does 
not effectively mitigate absence levels.

l Failure to improve organisational Culture impacts on staff well being, retention and the Trusts ability to attract and 
recruit new staff

l Failure to understand the health and wellbeing of the workforce and implement appropriate initiatives
l Failure to promote, develop and support a culture which values equality, diversity and inclusion
l Freedom to Speak Up - there is a risk that the systems and processes for raising a concern are insufficient and not 

robustly embedded within the Trust
l IM&T systems which do not meet the requirements of the organisation

Statement of Going Concern

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial statements do not contain the adjustments
that would result if the company was unable to continue as a going concern.

The Trust has recorded revenue deficits in the four financial years prior to 2018/19. The Board are committed to
addressing the current deficit position and with the financial support of the Department of Health have agreed a
break-even plan for 2019/20. To deliver the break-even plan the Trust will have access to Financial Recovery Funding
(£11.5m) and to Provider Sustainability Funding (£5.5m) in the financial year. The 2019/20 plan also relies on the Trust
achieving a cost improvement programme of £8.5m. There is therefore a material uncertainty that casts significant doubt
upon the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. The Board recognises there is risk associated with the
achievement of cost improvement targets but points to recent performance in delivery of savings, £11m in 2017/18 and
£11.1 in 2018/19. The planned target for 2019/20 is therefore considered achievable. The Board of Directors have
therefore given careful consideration to the Going Concern principle when preparing these accounts, and the planned
revenue break-even for 2019/20 supports this decision.

The Trust retains access to the Uncommitted Interim Revenue Support Facility and cash supporting loans are agreed
monthly with the Department of Health dependent on cash requirements.

The Board has concluded that although there is an element of material uncertainty, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Trust has access to sufficient resources, including revenue allocations and capital loan funding, to
continue to provide services to patients for the foreseeable future. For this reason the Board has adopted the going
concern basis when preparing these accounts.

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial statements do not contain the adjustments
that would result if the company was unable to continue as a going concern.
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2018/19 Performance

The Well-led Framework used by NHS Improvement identifies effective oversight by Trust Boards as essential to ensuring
trusts consistently deliver safe, sustainable and high quality care for patients. This includes robust oversight of care
quality, operations and finance. At the Trust, a Performance Report is submitted monthly to the Board for assurance. For
the purpose of reporting, indicators are grouped into the five strategic objectives identified by the Trust (Safe, High
Quality Care, Care at Home, Resources, Partners and Value Colleagues).

The following committees receive a version of this report focusing on the relevant metrics applicable to the committee.
Trust Board receives a summary Integrated Performance report based on the committees versions.

The Performance report is presented to the following committees:

l Quality, Patient Experience and Safety
l Performance, Finance and Investment
l People and Organisational Development

The monthly report to the Committees and Trust Board identifies performance against: key operational and quality
requirements mandated both nationally and locally determined; activity against planned levels, finance and work force
information.

Performance against the identified metrics is populated and assigned a Red, Amber or Green rating based on
achievement against pre- defined thresholds.

The purpose of this approach is to ensure the Board is provided with robust information on organisational and
operational performance.

Further information is provided to the Board on an exception basis where underperformance in a particular area or
against a specific target is identified.

During the year the Accountability Framework was also revised and relaunched. The Accountability Framework is
designed to support the Trust in delivering its vision and strategic objectives. Performance of each Clinical Division and
Estates & Facilities is assessed to monitor and report progress towards the delivery of the annual and longer term plans
of the Trust utilising the same themes that are reported within the Integrated Performance Report. Monthly review
meetings are held between the Divisions and the Trust Executive Directors. Plans are in place to extend this framework
in 2019/20 to include all Corporate Support functions.

Safe, High Quality Care
Emergency Department (ED)

Over the year 85.9% of patients attending emergency services (Emergency Department, Urgent Care Centre and Walk in
Centre) were admitted, transferred or discharged within four hours of arrival. Performance was below the 95% standard
mandated nationally. The overall performance achieved was an improvement on the performance reported of 82.67% in
2017/18. The difficult winter period covering November 2018 – March 2019 also saw an improvement in comparison to
the previous year. This performance improvement was against a backdrop of a 4% increase in attendances at the main
Emergency Department, compared to 2017/18.

Ambulance handovers

There are two national quality requirements relating to the timeliness of handovers between the Emergency Department
and ambulance staff. The national standard is all handovers should take place within 15 minutes of arrival, with none
taking place over 30 minutes and 60 minutes from arrival. Across the year the Trust achieved 72.2% of handovers within
15 minutes which is an improvement compared to the previous year of 65.8%. The number of ambulances recorded with
handovers above 60 minutes totalled 155 compared to 236 in 2017/18, another notable improvement against a backdrop
of linear growth in ambulance activity.
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Referral to Treatment (incomplete pathway) within 18 weeks

The Trust reported 91.02% incomplete RTT against the National Standard of 92%. However this a significant
improvement in comparison to the yearend position in March 2018 when performance was 84.74% and the National
Benchmarked position of 86.7%. This is the best RTT performance in over 2 years.

The number of patients waiting 40 weeks and over for treatment reduced from 113 patients in May 2018 to 14 patients
in March 2019.

One patient waited longer than 52 weeks compared to 13 in the previous year.

Cancer Performance

The Trust achieved six of the seven national cancer targets for the year 2018/19. An additional 1550 2WW GP referrals
have been received, equating to a 14.32% increase compared to 17/18 . Of the additional 1550 referrals received, 336 of
these came from out of area CCG’s,, equating to a 21.6% increase compared 17/18. All suspected cancer sites have seen
an increase in referrals, however, Breast, Children’s, Gynaecology, Skin and Head and Neck services have seen the largest
increase, with an average of 21% additional referrals made.

Diagnostic waiting times: Percentage of Service Users waiting 
6 weeks or more from Referral for a diagnostic test

The national target is that no more than 1% of service users should wait 6 weeks or more and the Trust reported
performance of 0.32% for the year which is therefore better than the national target and the national average reported
position.

Sleeping Accommodation Breaches

The number of breaches recorded significantly reduced to 18 in comparison to the previous years total of 66. The
breaches which were reported all occurred on the high dependency unit. At the beginning of December 2018 we were
proud to open our new integrated critical care unit which, along with patient flow improvements since October 2018,
has contributed to the reduction in breaches and we anticipate reporting to further improve.

Trust attributable Clostridium difficile infection (CDI) cases

The Trust’s annual objective was to have no more than 17 Trust attributable CDI cases and 19 were reported during the
year.

Methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA)

The Trust reported 2 confirmed case of Methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) in 2018/19.
There were 17 never events that occurred in 2018/19. However, 16 of these related to the same issue which was incorrect
use of prosthesis and were identified following a retrospective review.
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Care at Home
ED Re-attenders

The percentage of patients who re-attended ED within 7 days of their previous attendance fluctuated during the year
and equated to 7.43% across the whole year.

Partners
% of Emergency Readmissions within 30 Days of a discharge from hospital

The percentage of emergency re-admissions reported during the year ranged from 9.9% to 11.5% against a trust internal
target of 10%.

The newly formed Walsall Together integrated care partnership, with Walsall Healthcare as Host provider, will be
identifying appropriate strategic interventions and associated metrics to monitor against during 2019/20.

Resources
Outpatients DNA (Did Not Attend) rates

The Trust has improved the DNA rates during the year to 10.44% compared to 12.16% in 17/18.

The outpatient transformation program has introduced a number of initiatives to improve outpatient attendance:

l Two way interactive, personalised texting, reminding patients to attend their appointments and technology to 
change the appointment date

l Outsourcing of letters to improve the assurance regarding printing and delivery.

We have a number of services that have a DNA rate of less than 7%, the focus for 19/20 will be to reduce and sustain this
reduction across all services. Validation continues to ensure that only patients requiring further treatment or monitoring
appointments remain open on the Trust’s patient management system. This work has been extremely successful and will
continue through 2019/20.

Virtual review of diagnostics and patients waiting a follow up appointment commenced during 2018/19, in line with
National guidance to redesign interactions in outpatients. This will reduce the number of formal outpatient appoint-
ments patient will be required to attend and improve access in services with challenging waiting times to deliver in 19/20.

Theatre Utilisation ‐ Touch Time Utilisation (%)

The Theatre improvement program has seen the Touch Time Utilisation improve from 70.73% at the start of the year to
92.73% in March 2019. (This measures the time taken to complete a surgical procedure from the start of anaesthesia
through to the patient entering recovery) A high level of touch time utilisation represents an effective use of theatre
time.

The Theatres improvement program has seen utilisation improvement through:

l Senior Leadership
l Clear accountability at speciality level
l Engagement with key stakeholders
l Transparent reporting based on activity and finance
l Structured performance monitoring system

These actions have ensured that the grip and control measures that are in place along with ensure that the Care Groups
retain ownership of the plans.

Value Colleagues
Finance and staffing are covered in section xxx in greater detail.
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Performance 2017/2018 2018/2019 Improved 2018/2019 Benchmark
Indicator Position? Target Position

Safe, High Quality Care

Sleeping 
Accommodation 
Breaches 66 18 Yes 0 NA

Trust attributable 
MRSA infection 
cases 0 2 No 0 NA

Trust attributable 
C. Difficle 
infection cases 11 19 No 17 NA

VTE Risk 
Assessment 88.49% 94.90% Yes 95% Q3: 95.65%

*NHS Safety 
Thermometer: 
Harm Free Care 94.75% 95.67% Yes 94% NA

Never Events: 
occurred in month 3 17 No 0 NA

Medication errors 
causing serious harm 21.42% 13.81% Yes 12% NA

A&E waiting times – 
admitted, transferred or 
discharged within 4 hours 82.67% 85.90% Yes 95% 86.6%

Trolley waits in A&E 
longer than 12 hours 3 0 Yes 0 NA

Ambulance handovers 
% within 15 minutes 
from arrival 65.80% 72.20% Yes 100% NA

Ambulance handovers 
>30 minutes from arrival 1836 1474 Yes 0 NA

Ambulance handovers 
>60 minutes from arrival 236 155 Yes 0 NA

*Referral to Treatment 
(RTT): incomplete <18 
weeks snap shot 
March 2019 84.74% 91.02% Yes 92% 86.7%*

Referral to Treatment 
(RTT): incomplete >52 
week waits at 
month end 13 1 Yes 0 NA

Diagnostic waiting 
times: >6 weeks from 
referral for test 99.06% 99.68% Yes 99% 97.5%

Cancer: 2 weeks from 
urgent GP referral to 
1st outpatient 95.45% 93.59% No 93% 92.29%**
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Performance 2017/2018 2018/2019 Improved 2018/2019 Benchmark
Indicator Position? Target Position

Safe, High Quality Care

Cancer: 2 weeks from urgent 
GP referral for breast symptoms 
to 1st outpatient 96.55% 88.96% No 93% 81.24%**

Cancer: 31 days from diagnosis 
to first definitive treatment 99.39% 99.31% No 96% 96.15%**

Cancer: 31 days to subsequent 
treatment – surgery 98.93% 98.81% No 94% 91.86%**

Cancer: 31 days to subsequent 
treatment - drug 100% 100% - 98% 99.14%**

Cancer: 62 days from urgent 
GP referral to first definitive 
treatment 88.05% 88.35% Yes 85% 79.35%**

Cancer: 62 days from referral 
from NHS
screening service to first 
definitive treatment 98.03% 96.99% No 90% 86.07%**

Last minute cancelled operations 
(non-clinical reasons) not 
re-booked within 28 days 0 8 No 0 NA

Delayed transfers of 
care – acute beds 2.56% 3.46% No 2.50% NA

Urgent operations cancelled 
for a second time 0 0 - 0 NA 

Care at Home

ED Re-attenders within 7 days 6.74% 7.43% No 7% NA 

Partners

% of Emergency Readmissions 
within 30 days of a discharge 
from hospital 10.46% 10.73% No 10% NA 

Resources

Completion of valid NHS 
number in acute commissioning 
dataset submitted via SUS 99.89% 99.93% Yes 99% NA

Completion of valid NHS 
number in A&E commissioning 
dataset submitted via SUS 99.26% 99.29% Yes 95% NA

Outpatient DNA Rate 12.16% 10.44% Yes 8% NA
*Theatres Utilisation – Touch 
Time Utilisation 70.73% 92.73% Yes 75% NA

Notes

* (In Title/ Performance Indicator) - Figures of last month of financial year
* (In Benchmarking Position) – Avg. figure of national position of last month of financial year
** (In Benchmarking Position) – Avg. figure of national position of final quarter of financial year
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SECTION 2: 
ACCOUNTABILITY 
REPORT
Corporate Governance Report

The Directors’ Report

The Trust Board meets in public and the meetings are open to anyone who wants to attend. Details, including agenda
and papers are available on the Trust website.

Ms Danielle Oum is the Chair of the Trust and took office on 8 April 2016.

Mr Richard Beeken is the Chief Executive of the Trust (Accountable Officer) and was appointed on 26 February 2018.

The table below sets out the names of the Chair, Chief Executive and all individuals who were directors of the Trust from
April 2018 until the publication date of this Annual Report. The individuals in the table form the composition of the Trust
Board and have authority or responsibility for directing or controlling the major activities of the Trust during the year.

Non-executive directors are not employees of the Trust and are appointed to provide
independent support and challenge to the Trust Board. All Board directors are required to comply with the Trust
Standards of Business Conduct, including declaration of any actual or potential conflict of interest.
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Trust Board Composition

Name Designation In Year Start / Leave Dates

Non Executive 
Directors

Danielle Oum Chair - 
John Dunn Non-executive Director - 
Sukhbinder Heer Non-executive Director - 
Philip Gayle Non-executive Director - 
Paula Furnival Associate Non-executive Director To 08/03/19 
Anne Baines Non-Executive Director with effect from 

14 December 2018 (Associate Non-Executive 
Director until 13 December 2018) From 01/07/18 

Pam Bradbury Non-Executive Director From 01/12/18 

Associate Non 
Executive Directors

Dr Elizabeth England Associate Non-Executive Director (non-voting) From 01/12/18 
Alan Yates Associate Non-Executive Director (non-voting) From 01/07/18

Executive 
Directors

Russell Caldicott Director of Finance & Performance - 
Daren Fradgley Director of Strategy & Transformation (non-voting) - 
Richard Beeken Chief Executive - 
Jenna Davies Director of Governance (non-voting) From 04/06/18 
Catherine Griffiths Director of People & Culture (non-voting) From 10/09/18 
Margaret Barnaby Interim Chief Operating Officer From 06/12/18 
Dr Karen Dunderdale Director of Nursing / Deputy CEO From 30/07/18 
Dr Matthew Lewis Medical Director From 22/10/18 

Non Executive and 
Executive Directors 
who have left 
the Trust

Professor Russell Beale Non-executive Director To 04/12/18 
Victoria Harris Non-executive Director To 10/12/18 
Philip Thomas-Hands Chief Operating Officer To 15/10/18 
Mr Amir Khan Medical Director To 19/10/18 
Louise Ludgrove Interim Director of Organisational Development 

& Human Resources (non-voting) To 30/08/18 
Barbara Beal Interim Director of Nursing To 18/05/18
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Trust Board Member Profiles

Danielle Oum
Chair of the Trust Board (Voting Position)
Appointed April 2016

Danielle has more than 10 years' experience of leading public service business improvement and
programme management, and has also worked extensively in the private sector, building and
leading international teams. Danielle's professional expertise is in stakeholder engagement and
transformational change. Her other professional interests are socio-economic inclusion, cross
sector partnerships and regeneration. Danielle was previously the Chair of Dudley and Walsall
Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust.

John Dunn
Non-Executive Director (Voting Position)
Chair of Performance, Finance and Investment Committee
Appointed February 2015

John’s professional life was spent almost exclusively in the Telecoms sector and he has extensive
experience in the field of operations, and customer service. His career includes 20 years’
experience at divisional board level in a variety of executive and non-executive roles and his last
position with BT was as Managing Director Openreach. As MD, he was responsible for the
delivery and repair of customer service and for the provision and maintenance of the local access
network for the south of the UK.

Sukhbinder Heer
Non-Executive Director (Voting Position)
Chair of Audit Committee
Appointed September 2016

Sukhbinder has more than 30 years’ senior management experience in corporate finance and
private equity as well as leading one of the UK’s top professional services companies. Over the
past few years Sukhbinder has also undertaken a number of non-executive positions in private,
public and charity sectors and is currently also Non-Executive Director and Chair of Audit at
Birmingham Community Healthcare Foundation Trust (BCHCFT).

Philip Gayle
Non-Executive Director (voting position)
Champion for Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
Appointed August 2016

Phil is currently Chief Executive Officer for Connect West Midlands, an organisation that supports
those affected by substance misuse. Phil has considerable experience of the health sector and has
also worked as a Non-executive Director for Sandwell and West Birmingham NHS Trust. Phil is
passionate about contributing to improving services for patients in particular their experience of
care at the Trust and has a strong interest in equality, diversity and ethics.
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Paula Furnival 
Associate Non-Executive Director (non-voting position) 
Appointed – Left – 08th March 2019

Paula is the Executive Director of Adult Social Care for Walsall Council, and her experience has
been gained in working within the NHS and councils who have social care responsibility.
Prior to that Paula was a solicitor working in criminal, youth court and child care law, where she
gained a real insight into the social and emotional issues facing many families which led to her
gaining her first role in social care in Knowsley on Merseyside, 20 years ago.

She has been a District Director in Staffordshire where she was a commissioner and provider of
services across a population of about 150,000, running assessment and care management support
for older people, mental health and learning and physical disability services and, care homes, and
day services.

In 2010, Paula was part of a small team which helped to form a new provider of community
health and social care, the Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Partnership NHS Trust; the largest
single integrated provider of health and care at that time.

More recently Paula has worked for NHS England supporting commissioning delivery and
transformation developing CCG five year plans, negotiating on Better Care Fund plans and
leading programmes of integrated commissioning, prevention and early intervention support.
She describes herself as an advocate of enabling people to live as independently as possible and
works to integrate services to best meet the needs of local communities.

Richard Beeken
Chief Executive (Voting Position)
Appointed March 2018

A graduate of the NHS Management Training Scheme and the NHS Top Leaders Programme,
Richard has extensive NHS Leadership experience, including a number of executive roles. As CEO
at Wye Valley NHS Trust, Richard led the organisation out of special measures. He was previously
Delivery and Improvement Director for NHS Improvement West Midlands, Interim Chief Executive
at Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust, and most recently was the Chief Operating Officer
for University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust.

Russell Caldicott
Director of Finance and Performance (Voting Position)
Appointed July 2015

Russell lives locally and has in excess of 20 years’ experience of working within the acute sector of
the NHS, formerly undertaking roles such as Senior Divisional Accountant, Associate Director of
Finance and Deputy Director of Finance. A Qualified Accountant and advocate of continuing
professional development, Russell occupies the role of Executive on the Board of the West
Midlands Healthcare Financial Management Association, providing support and opportunities for
development to the finance teams of Central England.

Amir Khan
Medical Director and Director of Infection Prevention and Control (Voting Position)
Appointed October 2011
Left – 19th October 2018

Amir is a General Surgeon with a specialist interest in Vascular and Bariatric Surgery and joined
Walsall in 1992 after completing his training. Amir led on the establishment of Walsall as a
regional Bariatric Centre and is the lead accountable Director for the Medical workforce. Amir is
also the Director of Infection Prevention and Control and the organisations Caldicott Guardian.
Patient Safety and quality of care are key priorities for Amir in ensuring that our clinical outcomes
for patients are of a high standard.
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Barbara Beal 
Interim Director of Nursing (Voting Position) 
Appointed November 2017 
Left - 18th May 2018 

Approaching 45 years in the NHS, Barbara’s career has seen her start out as a cadet nurse before
progressing to Head of Midwifery and Executive Director of Nursing & Midwifery, Chief
Operating Officer and Deputy Chief Executive as well as a Non-Executive Director. Her range of
skills means she has been able to offer her knowledge as an experienced nurse and midwife, a
clinical advisor, and executive/coach mentor in both the NHS and independent healthcare sector;
Barbara is committed to help support the Trust on the next stage of its improvement journey: “To
focus on the safety, quality of care and experience of our patients, families, carers and our staff”
When not at work, Barbara enjoys spending time with her family and travelling.

Philip Thomas-Hands
Chief Operating Officer (Voting Position)
Appointed October 2016
Left - w/c 15th October 2018

Philip has worked in healthcare since 1985, working across acute hospitals, Mental Health,
Primary Care, Medicine, Surgery and Specialised Services across both Gloucestershire and the
Midlands.

Philip has also worked for GP fund holders and in the private sector, spending five years as a
management consultant to the manufacturing and healthcare industries. For the past four year
he has been a Non-executive Director for a housing association. His role is to deliver systems, and
constantly improve them, to ensure that clinicians can look after as many patients as possible
within the resources available. Professional interests include change management, succession
planning, task management and a strong focus on patient experience.

Daren Fradgley
Director of Strategy and Transformation (Non-Voting Position)
SIRO
Appointed January 2016

Daren joined the Trust after holding numerous operational and director posts at West Midlands
Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust (WMAS). A paramedic by background Daren joined
WMAS in 1994 on frontline operations initially in the Black Country and then Birmingham before
moving to the Emergency Control Rooms in 2005. He then went on to manage the Trust
Performance Improvement team including informatics and Business Intelligence team. In 2013 he
became the A&E Operations Director before moving to NHS 111.

Daren is responsible for the Trust's transformation and cost improvement programme together
with strategic and business development.

Louise Ludgrove 
Interim Director of HR 
Appointed May 2017 (non-voting position) 
Left – 30th August 2018

Louise joined the Trust in May 2017 as Interim Director of OD & HR. She has worked in the NHS
since the early 1990s in provider, integrated and Foundation Trusts. Louise became a Director in
2003 and having worked in permanent roles, became an interim Director in 2011.
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Jenna Davies
Director of Governance
Appointed - 04th June 2018 (non-voting position)

Jenna joined the NHS in 2008 and has predominately worked in senior leadership roles in the
Corporate and Clinical Governance fields. Jenna studied Law at the University of Central England
and qualified in June 2008. Jenna has led and contributed to a number of large scale
improvement programmes including a highly complex OD project and preparation for FT
application status. Jenna was appointed as Director of Governance in June 2018 and is responsible
for the efficient administration of the Trust, particularly with regard to ensuring compliance with
statutory and regulatory requirements and for ensuring that decisions of the board of directors
are implemented.

Catherine Griffiths
Director of People & Culture
Appointed - 10th September 2018 (non-voting position)

Catherine has a background in local government and more than 20 years’ experience of HR and
large-scale service transformation and redesign. Her expertise lies in employee engagement and
empowering those around her to make positive changes for the benefit of the organisation and
its service users.

She joined the NHS for the first time in 2015 where she took on the role of Deputy Director of HR
as part of Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust.

Catherine then made the move to Walsall Healthcare in September 2018 and now sits on the
Trust Board as Director of People and Culture – overlooking HR and Organisational Development.
Her focus is to ensure a positive and inclusive culture amongst the workforce to ensure staff have
the support they need to develop their own talents in order to improve patient experience. Her
role also means ensuring staff are living by the trust values (Respect, Compassion, Professionalism
and Teamwork) and are supported to be happy and healthy while at work.

Catherine has lived in and around the West Midlands for more than 25 years and is qualified at
Masters level in Strategic HR management and holds an LLM in Employment Law.

Margaret Barnaby
Interim Chief Operating Officer
Appointed - 06th December 2018 (voting position)

Mags has extensive senior level experience in planning and delivering services to achieve national
and local targets, and in the strategic and operational management of change. She is passionate
about the NHS and driven by a desire to make a positive difference to the quality of services for
patients and staff. One of her key strengths is an innate ability to identify the links in complex
problems, particularly the human dimension, in order to develop strategic vision and problem
solving. In over 25 years working at a senior level in the NHS, Mags has held substantive
appointments as Director of Human Resources, Director of Operations, and Director of Planning
and Strategy in England and Wales. She was awarded a BA (Hons) at Warwick University in 1984,
following which she studied a number of professional and post-graduate courses including MSc
Strategic Human Resources Management (Leeds Business School 1991), MIPD (1997), Postgraduate
Certificate with the National Leadership and Innovation Agency (Birkbeck College 2007). In 2016
Mags attended Harvard Business School to study Advanced Negotiation Skills for Strategic
Decision Making.
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Dr Karen Dunderdale
Director of Nursing / Deputy Chief Executive / Director of Infection, Prevention & Control
Appointed - 30th July 2018 (voting position)

Karen was born and brought up in Scunthorpe. In 1991 she qualified as a registered nurse and
worked on a general medical ward before moving to coronary care.

She became a cardiac nurse specialist developing cardiac rehabilitation and heart failure services
and became chief nurse in 2011 in an acute trust. Karen has also held the board level roles of
Chief Operating Officer, Deputy CEO and acting CEO for a short spell.

She has a PhD in Quality of Life in Chronic Heart Failure from York University and has contributed
substantially to the development of cardiac nursing.

More recently Karen has worked for the National nursing team at NHS Improvement and until
recently was the vice chair of her local hospice.

Dr Matthew Lewis
Medical Director / Caldicott Guardian
Appointed - 22nd October 2018 (voting position)

Matthew was previously Consultant Gastroenterologist at Sandwell & West Birmingham Hospitals
NHS Trust, where he has also been a Divisional Director. As Medical Director at Walsall Healthcare
NHS Trust, his key areas of focus are to further develop our service integration with primary care
and other hospitals, to improve medical engagement in quality governance and patient safety
and to better link service plans to medical workforce plans. Matthew is also the organisation’s
Caldicott Guardian. Patient Safety and quality of care are key priorities for Matthew in ensuring
that our clinical outcomes for patients are of a high standard.

Pam Bradbury
Non-Executive Director (voting position)
Appointed – 01st December 2018

Pam’s career has spanned far and wide, gaining experience as a nurse, manager and leader in the
NHS and as a professional advisor within the Dept.of Health. Pam is also a key figure within
Healthwatch England – central region.
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Dr Elizabeth England
Associate Non-Executive Director (non-voting position)
Appointed – 01st December 2018

Dr Liz England is a GP working in a busy inner-city practice in Birmingham since 2005, where she
leads on mental health and learning disabilities. She is also the Mental Health and Learning
Disability Clinical Lead for Sandwell West Birmingham (SWB) CCG. Prior to this, Liz trained as a
clinical academic in the Department of Primary Care. She gained  her PhD in Mental Health at the
University of Birmingham and led the mental health team for a number of years and was
principle investigator on a number of NIHR funded research studies exploring the development
of integrated primary care mental health service models.

After thirteen years as an academic clinician, she decided to have a more direct influence on
mental health service development and took up the post of clinical commissioner in SWB CCG.
Working with the Joint Commissioning team for mental health in Birmingham and a range of
other partners, including people with lived experience of mental health problems, she has been
involved in developing community based integrated primary care mental health services and
improving specialist mental health services such as Early Intervention Services. She is especially
interested in developing preventative, holistic services that support people’s bio-psycho-social
needs before mental health problems develop. This is particularly important children and young
people. Important aspects of this role include quality and safety and safeguarding.

She is also currently a national clinical advisor for the NCCMH community mental health team
pathway being developed, working with an inspiring group of people from all backgrounds and
is the RCGP Mental Health and Whole Person Care Clinical Lead. She wrote the RCGP mental
health position statement and has been supporting the development of the mental health
curriculum for trainee GPs and provide educational resources for GP colleagues.

Personal interests include a love of cooking, taking her dog for a walk (and carrying him most of
the way!) and yoga.

Alan Yates
Associate Non-Executive Director (non-voting position)
Appointed – 01st July 2018

Alan has over 25 years senior management experience in the affordable housing sector in
regeneration and development, primarily in the Black Country. He has a particular interest in the
relationship between housing and health and he is the Chairman of the Sustainable Housing
Action Partnership (SHAP), the National Housing Federation Regional Investment Group, and
Energiesprong UK.

Anne Baines
Associate Non-Executive Director (non-voting position)
Appointed - 1st July 2018

Anne has had near 40 years’ experience within the NHS in the West Midlands. Before taking
(semi) retirement in 2017 she had spent the last 15 years in and around Board level roles in both
providing and commissioning roles covering strategy, business development and transformation,
communications and HR. She was the Director Strategy at Walsall Healthcare Trust from
2010-2014 and is happy to have returned as an associate Non Executive member as she has fond
memories of the Trust and colleagues working there. Anne is a member of the Quality and Safety
Committee and has been appointed the NED lead for the Freedom to Speak Up policy.
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Arrangements for the performance review of Board members

All Board members have an annual appraisal. The Chair has here appraisal with the appropriate Director of NHS Improve-
ment. The Chair conducts appraisals with all Non-Executive Directors. The annual objectives of the Chief Executive reflect
the priorities of the Trust set by the Trust Board and are agreed with the Chair. The Chair reviews the Chief Executive’s
performance against these objectives. Each executive director agrees objectives with the Chief Executive. The Chief Exec-
utive conducts performance reviews for each Director. The annual appraisals for all Executive Directors, including the
Chief Executive, are reported to the Remuneration Committee.

Attendance at Trust Board meetings

Trust Board Total % Attended Sessions 

Executive Directors 

Richard Beeken 82% 9 11 
Russell Caldicott 100% 11 11 
Karen Dunderdale 100% 6 6 
Philip Thomas Hands 88% 7 8 
Margaret Barnaby 67% 2 3 
Amir Khan 100% 7 7 
Matthew Lewis 100% 4 4 
Barbara Beal 0% 0 1 
Jenna Davies 89% 8 9 
Louise Ludgrove 100% 5 5
Catherine Griffiths 100% 5 5 
Daren Fradgley 73% 8 11 

Non-Executive Directors 

Danielle Oum 100% 11 11 
John Dunn 91% 10 11 
Sukhbinder Heer 82% 9 11 
Russell Beale 75% 6 8 
Victoria Harris 75% 6 8 
Phil Gayle 100% 11 11 
Anne Baines 100% 8 8 
Pam Bradbury 50% 1 2 
Paula Furnival 45% 5 11 
Liz England 100% 2 2 
Alan Yates 50% 4 8

Company Directorships and Other Significant Interests 
held by members of the Board

The Board of Directors has a legal obligation to act in the best interests of the organisation in accordance with its
governing document and to avoid situations where there may be a potential conflict of interest. As such, there is a
requirement for Board Members to register company directorships and other significant interests that they hold that may
be perceived as conflicting with their overriding duty as a Board Member.

The Trust’s register of interest is shown below and is also available on our public website and can be found by using the
following link:

www.walsallhealthcare.nhs.uk

The register is updated as interests are declared and at least annually and is reviewed by the Audit Committee and the
Trust Board.
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Register of Interest of Trust Board members during 2019/20

Name Position/Role at Interest Declared
Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust 

Ms Danielle Oum Chair Board Member: WM Housing – Unknown end Date 
Board Member: Wrekin Housing – Unknown end Date 
Chair Healthwatch Birmingham 
Committee Member: Healthwatch England
Chair: Midlands Landlord whg 
Co - Chair, Centre for Health and Social Care, 
University of Birmingham from 10 Dec 2018 

Professor Russell Beale Non-executive Director Director, shareholder: CloudTomo - security 
company – pre commercial. Founder & minority 
shareholder: BeCrypt – computer security company. 
Director, owner: Azureindigo – health & behaviour 
change company, working in the health (physical & 
mental) domains; producer of educational courses for 
various organisations including in the health domain. 
Academic, University of Birmingham: research into 
health & technology – non-commercial. 
Spouse: Dr Tina Newton, is a consultant in Paediatric 
A&E at Birmingham Children’s Hospital & co-director 
of Azureindigo. 
Journal Editor, Interacting with Computers. 
Governor, Hodnet Primary School. 
Honorary Race Coach, Worcester Schools Sailing 
Association. 
Non-executive Director for Birmingham and Solihull 
Mental Health Trust with effect from January 2017. 

Mr John Dunn Non-executive Director No Interests to declare. 

Ms Paula Furnival Associate Non-executive Director Executive Director of Adult Social Care, Walsall 
Council. 

Mrs Victoria Harris Non-executive Director Manager at Dudley & Walsall Mental Health 
Partnership NHS Trust 
Governor, All Saints CE Primary School Trysull 
Spouse, (Dean Harris) Deputy Director of IT at 
Sandwell & West Birmingham Hospital 
from March 2017 

Mr Sukhbinder Heer Non-executive Director Non-executive Director of Hadley Industries PLC 
(Manufacturing) 
Partner of Qualitas LLP (Property Consultancy). 
Non-executive Director Birmingham Community 
NHS Foundation Trust (NHS Entity). 
Non-executive Director Black Country Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust Chair of Mayfair Capital 
(Financial Advisory). 
Partner - Unicorn Ascension Fund ( Venture Capital) 

Mr Philip Gayle Non-executive Director Chief Executive Newservol (charitable 
organisation – services to mental health provision). 

Mrs Anne Baines Non-executive Director Director/Consultant at Middlefield Two Ltd
Associate Consultant at Provex Solutions Ltd Clinical 
Strategy Lead – Worcester Acute Hospitals NHS Trust 

Ms Pamela Bradbury Non-executive Director Chair of Healthwatch Dudley Consultant with Health 
Education England 
People Champion – NHS Leadership Academy 
Partner is an Independent Clinical Lead with Sandwell 
and West Birmingham Clinical Commissioning Group 

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19

424242



Mr Alan Yates Associate Non-executive Director Director Sustainable Housing Action Partnership 
Director Energiesprong Uk 
Director Liberty Developments LTB 
Trustee Birmingham and Country Wildlife Trust 
Executive Director Accord Housing Association ltd 

Dr Elizabeth England Associate Non-executive Director Clinician – Laurie Pike Health Centre, Modality 
Clinician – Lilley Road Medical Centre, GP at Hand 
Mental Health & Learning Disability Clinical Lead, 
SWB CCG 
Clinical Director – Mindsafe 
Mental Health Clinical Lead – RCGP 

Mr Richard Beeken Chief Executive Spouse, Fiona Beeken is a Midwifery Lecturer at 
Wolverhampton University. 
Director – Watery Bank Barns Ltd. 

Mr Russell Caldicott Director of Finance Chair and Executive Member of the Branch of the 
and Performance West Midlands Healthcare Financial Management 

Association 

Mr Daren Fradgley Director of Strategy Director of Oaklands Management Company 
and Improvement Clinical Adviser NHS 111/Out of Hours 

Dr Matthew Lewis Medical Director Spouse, Dr Anne Lewis, is a partner in general 
practice at the Oaks Medical, Great Barr 
Director of Dr MJV Lewis Private Practice Ltd. 

Dr Karen Dunderdale Director of Nursing/Deputy CEO No Interests to declare. 

Ms Jenna Davies Director of Governance No Interests to declare. 

Miss Catherine Griffiths Director of People and Culture Catherine Griffiths Consultancy Ltd 
Chattered Institute of Personnel (CIPD) 

Ms Margaret Barnaby Interim Chief Operating Director of Ltd Company as a Management 
Officer Consultant

Husband has properties
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Personal data related incidents reported to the 
Information Commissioners’ Officer – 2018/19

The Trust had a total of 4 reportable incidents during 2018/19 relating to information governance data breaches during
this period. This included inappropriate access to staff data via ESR by another member of staff with the same name as
the data subject, a subject access request which contained the personal data of a third party which was not fully
redacted, patient data being left unattended during an assessment and a member of staff transferring personal
identifiable data to their own email address. These were all promptly reported to the Information Commissioner’s Office
and appropriate remedial and investigative action taken.
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Indident Date

13/04/2018

27/07/2018

Nature of 
Incident

On a date unknown
an employee had
been to the ESR office
to have their
password re-set as
they needed to access
their ESR record to
view their payslip. A
member of the ESR
Team provided the
employee with a
username and
password. When the
employee logged on
at home and opened
the payslip (with the
help of her
daughter in law) she
realised that this
wasn’t her record but
was for a colleague
with the same name

Unredacted third
party data was
disclosed as part of a
subject access
request. Personal
information included
that of four people
who were not the
data subject.

Nature of
Data Involved

Payslip details: 
- Date of Birth 
- Marital Status 
- NI Number 
- Phone Numbers &    
Personal E-Mail 

- Addresses 
- Qualifications 
- Emergency Contact 
Details 

- Sexual Orientation 
- Religious Belief 
- Registrations and 
Memberships 

- Disability 
Information 

- Bank Account 
Details (Salary 
Payments) 

- Absence Calendar 
(Sickness 
Records/Annual 
Leave/Special Leave 
etc.) 

- Compliance & 
Competency profile 

- Payslip
Assignment Number
Tax Code
Salary
NI Number
Contractual Hours
Increment Date

- Pay scale Details
- Pay & Allowance 
Details

- Pay Deduction 
Details (e.g. Tax, 
Pension, Childcare 
Vouchers etc.)

Personal data of 5
data subjects
(Mother, 3 children
and Father) being
disclosed to the
Father when
requesting
information relating
to his child

Number of
Data Subjects

One

Five

Notification 
Steps

Compliance and 
Risk team – notified
20/04/2018 

Duty of candour 
applied. 

Reported on 
STEIS – 26/04/2018 

Reported on the IG
Toolkit - 26/04/2018 

Acknowledgement
received from ICO
27/04/2018

Compliance and Risk
team – notified
30/07/2018 

Duty of candour 
applied. 

Reported on 
STEIS – 31/07/2018 

Reported on the IG
Toolkit - 31/07/2018 

Acknowledgement
received from ICO
28/03/2019
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Indident Date

20/11/2018

15/03/2019

Nature of 
Incident

A laptop bag 
containing a personal
laptop, password 
protected memory
stick and 6 sets of
Walsall wheelchair
patient notes was left
at a Wrottesley Park
nursing home in
Wolverhampton
whilst the RE was 
undertaking a patient
assessment with
Wolverhampton 
Therapy staff. During
the assessment the
therapy staff member
sustained a head in-
jury and the RE took
them to hospital 
leaving the bag 
behind. On return to
the nursing home,
the bag could not be
located.

As part of a 
disciplinary 
investigation it has
been necessary to
gain access to a 
member of staff work
emails. It has been
found that patient 
information has been
emailed to their 
personal email 
addresses from their
Trust account.

Nature of
Data Involved

Six sets of records for
Walsall Wheelchair
patients were 
misplaced when in
the possession of a
Rehab Engineer, 
employed by a third
party Trust, 
contracted to work
for Walsall Healthcare
NHS Trust. The
records pertained to 
4 children, 2 adults
(one of which was
noted to have 
cognitive 
impairment).

A practice nurse 
referral with full 
patient details and 
2 emails containing
handover documents
with patients names,
ages, conditions and
treatment regimes.

Number of
Data Subjects

Six

57

Notification 
Steps

Compliance and 
Risk team – notified
26/11/2018 

Duty of candour 
applied. 

Reported on 
STEIS – 28/11/2018 

Reported on the IG
Toolkit - 28/11/2018

Acknowledgement
received from ICO
05/12/2018

Compliance and 
Risk team – notified
15/03/2019 

Duty of candour 
applied. 

Reported on 
STEIS – 18/03/2019 

Reported on the IG
Toolkit - 18/03/2019 

Acknowledgement
received from ICO
18/03/2019



Statement of Disclosure to Auditors

Each individual who is, or was, a member of the Trust Board in the year covered by this report confirmed that, as far as
they are aware, there is no relevant audit information which would be relevant to the auditors for the purposes of their
audit report, and of which the auditors are not aware, and have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken to
make themselves aware of any such information and to establish that the auditors are aware of it.

Statement of the Chief Executive’s responsibilities 
as the accountable officer of the trust

The Chief Executive of NHS Improvement, in exercise of powers conferred on the NHS Trust Development Authority,
has designated that the Chief Executive should be the Accountable Officer of the trust. The relevant responsibilities of
Accountable Officers are set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer Memorandum. These include ensuring that:

l there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and assets and assist in the 
implementation of corporate governance;

l value for money is achieved from the resources available to the trust;
l the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and conform 

to the authorities which govern them;
l effective and sound financial management systems are in place; and 
l annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of State to give a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and the income and expenditure, recognised gains and 
losses and cash flows for the year.

I confirm that, as far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the entity’s auditors are unaware,
and I have taken all the steps I ought to have taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the entity’s auditors are aware of that information.

I can confirm that the ARA as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and that I take personal responsibility for
the ARA and the judgments required for determining that it is fair, balanced and understandable.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in my letter of
appointment as an Accountable Officer.

Richard Beeken
Chief Executive 

Date:  July 2019
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Remuneration and 
Staff Report
Remuneration Policy

The trust’s approach to Remuneration Policy for Directors is ensuring the salary is within the average range for trusts of
a similar size and scope in order that directors’ pay remains both competitive and value for money.

The trust has a Remuneration Committee that agrees the remuneration packages for executive directors. Further
information about this committee can be found in the Corporate Governance Report section of this Annual Report.

Fair Pay Disclosure
Fair Pay Disclosure

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid director in
their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.

In 2018/19, 0 employees received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid Director (there were 0 in 2017/18).

Remuneration ranged from £17,652 to £162,075 (2017-18 - £15,404 to £200,000).

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay and benefits-in-kind as well as
severance payments. It does not include employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of
pensions.

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee agrees remuneration packages for Executive Directors. The notice
period and termination payments are defined within the NHS Agenda for Change payment model as for all employees.
No performance bonus payments were made to directors during the financial year.

The information contained within summary financial statements has been subject to external audit scrutiny. In
addition, the directors’ remuneration tables have been audited for compliance with Statutory Instrument 2008 No 410.

Pay Multiples – Audited

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest-paid director in
their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust in the financial year 2018-19
was £162,075 (2017-18, £200,000). This was 5.97 times (2017-18, 7.8) the median remuneration of the workforce, which
was £27,146 (2017-18, £26,000). In 2018-19 no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid director.

The pay multiple has reduced from 7.8 to 5.97 times the median salary largely due to a change in the highest paid
Director during the financial year reflecting a reduction in salary.
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Our organisation and people

As at 31 March 2019, Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust employed 4288 substantive staff. Of these, 3918 colleagues were
permanently employed on recurrent, open-ended contracts of employment. A further 370 colleagues were employed
on fixed term contracts of employment.

The following table provides a snapshot of the average workforce composition during 18/19:

Headcount

Additional Clinical Services 763
Additional Professional Scientific and Technical 143
Administrative and Clerical 946
Allied Health Professionals 249
Estates and Ancillary 396
Healthcare Scientists 77
Medical and Dental 376
Nursing and Midwifery Registered 1358
Students 22

All staff by pay band:

Equal Opportunities

All staff by gender *Senior Managers* by gender

Female Male Female Male

3515 773 177 265
81.97% 18.03% 40.05% 59.95%

*For the purposes of this document, “Senior Managers” represent colleagues employed on a Band 8B+, VSM or
Medical Consultant contract.

During the next year, specific actions will be carried out to reduce the gender pay gap, including:

l A review of current recruitment & selection practices to ensure that opportunities are inclusive.
l Establishing what more can be done to improve flexible working.
l Investigating how we can recognise female contributions to the continuous improvement of NHS services by 

encouraging applications for Clinical Excellence Awards (CEA).
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All staff by ethnicity Senior Managers* by ethnicity

White BAME Unknown White BAME Unknown

3118 1161 9 148 289 5
72.71% 27.08% 0.21% 33.48% 65.38% 1.13%

99.79% of the substantive workforce has chosen to disclose its ethnic background, with 27.08% of
colleagues declaring themselves to be from a BAME background, representative of the local
population and national NHS Workforce. (NHS BAME Workforce population – 18.2%).

BAME (Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic) colleagues account for 73.42% of the medical consultant
workforce, whilst 12.50% of the Band 8B – Band 9 workforce have identified themselves as being
from a BAME background.

The Trust is committed to equality of opportunity and recognises that a renewed Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion action plan is required to address the disparity identified in publications such as the
Workforce Race Equality Standards review.

Substantive senior staff
(or senior managers) by band Headcount

Band 8 - Range B 34
Band 8 - Range C 16
Band 8 - Range D 6
VSM** 12
Consultant (Medical & Dental) 156

Total 224

**Very Senior Manager/Director

Female Male

All Substantive Colleagues 3515 81.97% 773 18.03%
Of which are:
Directors 4 50.00% 4 50.00%
Senior staff 81 37.50% 135 62.50%

Our workforce is predominately female (81.97%), and this is the predominant gender in all of the staff groups except
for medical staff and senior managers where the position is the reverse. NHS Employers estimates that the NHS
workforce is 77% female and 23% male. Our workforce gender percentage is therefore slightly higher compared to
the overall NHS gender percentage in England. As part of the Trust’s Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy
consideration will be given to the gender distribution and whether targeted intervention is required, particularly at
the senior manager level where the gender percentage is lower than average.

While the gender gap for colleagues within Band 1-8a roles falls in line with the overall NHS gender percentage in
England, the average number of female colleagues holding more senior positions is 40.05%. Amongst the medical and
dental workforce only 4 out of every 10 positions is held by a female colleague, with men making up 72.44% of
consultant staff. We can use this data to inform our recruitment campaigns to try and rebalance the gender difference
at higher bands.

Other Protected Characteristics

Diversity and Inclusion is integral to how we attract, retain, develop and engage our staff and the team relationship
we build with each other. If staff feel engaged, motivated, valued and part of a team with a sense of belonging,
patients are more likely to be satisfied with the service they receive. Inclusive workplaces are crucial for our wellbeing,
in improving the quality of patient care and outcomes and minimising risk.

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust embraces the diversity of people from all groups in society. It values differences in age,
disability, gender, marital status, pregnancy and maternity, race, sexual orientation, and religion or belief. It is
committed to eliminating unlawful discrimination by ensuring that equality, diversity and human rights are central to
its policy making, service planning, employment practices, patients and community engagement and involvement.
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As a public sector organisation the Trust has an obligation as an employer to have policies and procedures that are
sensitive to these differences. It aims to employ a workforce which is representative of the population it serves because
by doing so, the trust is better able to treat its patients effectively and be a better place to work.

Although health overall is improving, unacceptable health inequalities persist between different communities in the
region. As a provider of both acute and community services, the trust is in a powerful position to make a lasting
difference to the health and wellbeing of the population.

The organisation has made some gains in embedding inclusive practice as an integral part of the organisation, but still
has much to do. As well as fulfilling its statutory responsibilities, the trust also needs to make sure that people in the
West Midlands experience real improvements in health and wellbeing. The trust’s ambition is for Walsall to be
recognised as a leader of equality and diversity in the workplace, and more importantly in the delivery of inclusive and
high-quality healthcare services for all.

Staff Sickness Absence

2018/19 2017/18 2016/17

Total Working Days Absent 44,344 42,776 39,391
Total Average FTE Staff 3,673 3,791 3,796
Average working Days absent 12 11 10

*(Based upon 225 days in a FTE working year).
# ref accounts section

The Trust continues to build on the Health and Wellbeing agenda.

During the past 12 months the trust has:

l Run workshops to facilitate a discussion to help shape and further develop the Health and Wellbeing service in 
order to support attendance at work for all staff.

l A review of the Attendance policy has resulted in a new policy being drafted and progressed, the focus of the 
policy being on Health and Wellbeing and preventative action taken early on in the process,

l The Trust has invested in both the Occupational Health and the Health & Wellbeing teams.
l Continues to provide

l stress management group sessions for staff, resilience training, stress management sessions for 
managers, counselling service

l MSK fast-track referrals

During 2019/20, we are planning on:

l Launch of new Attendance policy Summer 2019
l Further investment around preventative, lifestyle promotion and support

Staff Policies

The Trust has a range of HR policies that support staff and which are widely available on the Intranet. In respect of
disability, the Trust’s Recruitment and Selection Policy and Guidelines sets out the Trust’s commitment to ensuring that all
staff, including those who are disabled are treated fairly and equitably in relation to the appointment processes. The
Trust is a disability confident employer and as two tick accreditation, guaranteeing an interview for disabled applicants
who meet the person specification and to ensure reasonable adjustments are made.

The Trust has an Equality, Diversity and Inclusion group, which amongst others ensures that disabled persons have equal
access to development and support.

The Attendance Policy and Occupational Health Service ensure that staff who become disabled are given appropriate
training, support and redeployment opportunities. The Trust monitors its employment and policies to ensure actions are
taken to avoid unlawful discrimination whether director or indirect.

The Trust has signed up to the Dying Matters pledge as promoted by Unison.

The full range of Human Resources Policies is available to all Trust employees via the Trust’s Intranet.
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The Trust maintains an excellent relationship with staff side representatives through established employee and
management consultation and negotiating forums (Joint Staff Consultation and Negotiating Committee, Local
Negotiating Committee and Junior Doctors forum). These forums continue to provide invaluable feedback to Trust
management on matters of concern to employees and allows for consultation of any proposed changes.

The Trust continues to maintain the Department of Health and Social Care’s principle of improving the working lives of
staff and supports the NHS agenda of maintaining healthy work environment for all staff. Our Occupational Health
service delivers health awareness and offers health surveillance programmes for staff and maintains a comprehensive
counselling service.

Consultancy costs

The Trust paid £1.73m on consultancy costs during 2018/2019.

Off Payroll

For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2019, for more than £245 per day and that last longer than six months:

TABLE 1 Off-payroll engagements longer than 6 months

For all off payroll engagements as of 31.3.19, for more
than £245 per day lasting longer than 6 months Number

Number of existing engagements as of 31.3.2019 11
Of which, the number that have existed:
less than 1 year at the time of time of reporting 8
for between 1 and 2 years at the time of reporting 3
for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting
for between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting
for 4 or more years at the time of reporting

For all new off-payroll engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 1 April 2018 and March
2019, for more than £245 per day and that last for longer than six months.

TABLE 2 New Off-payroll engagements Number

No. of new engagements, or those that reached six months
in duration, between 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 8
Of which:
No. assessed as caught by IR35 4
No. assessed as not caught by IR35 4
No. engaged directly (via PSC contracted to department)
and are on the entities payroll 4
No. of engagements reassessed for consistency /
assurance purposes during the year. 1
No. of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status
following the consistency review 1

For any off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with signi ficant financial
responsibility, between 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019

Table 3: Off-payroll board member/senior official engagements Number

Number of off payroll engagements of 'board members,
and/or senior officers with significant financial
responsibility' during the year (1) 0
Total No. of individuals on payroll and off-payroll that have
been deemed 'board members and/or senior officials' with
significant financial responsibility during the year. This
figure includes both on payroll and off payroll engagements (2). 17
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Note:

(1) There should only be a very small number of off-payroll engagem ents of board me mbers and/or senior officials 
with significant financial responsibility, permitted only in exceptional circumstances and for no more than six months

(2) As both on payroll and off-payroll engagements are included in the total figure, no entries here
should be blank or zero In any cases where individuals are included within the first row of this table the department 
should set out:

l Details of the exceptional circumstances that led to each of these engagements.

l Details of the length of time each of these exceptional engagements lasted.

Exit Packages

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.
Exit costs in this note are accounted for in full in the year of departure. Where the Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust has
agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by the Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust and not by the NHS
Pensions Scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pensions Scheme and are not included in the table.

A Mutually Agreed Resignation (MAR) Scheme is a scheme whereby organisations may offer a severance payment to an
employee to leave their employment voluntarily. The scheme has been developed to assist employers in addressing some
of the financial challenges facing the NHS and its key purpose is to create job vacancies for colleagues facing redundancy.
The scheme is time limited and has HM Treasury approval. There have been no MARS agreements in the financial year.

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages agreed in the year. 

Note: the expense associated with these departures may have been recognised in part or in full in a previous period.

Compensation - Early Retirement/Loss of Office & Payments to Past Directors There were no compensation payments
during the financial year ending on the 31st March 2019 for early retirements or loss of office or payments made to past
directors.
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Annual Governance
Statement 2017/18 
Scope of responsibility 

As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the
achievement of the NHS Trust’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental
assets for which I am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible
for ensuring that the NHS Trust is administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and
effectively. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Accountable Officers’ Memorandum.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks
to the achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact, should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust for the year ended
31 March 2019 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

Leadership

The Trust Board has the ultimate responsibility for risk management and must be satisfied that appropriate policies and
strategies are in place and that systems are functioning effectively. The Board has established an Audit Committee who
assists the Board in this process by performing an annual review of the effectiveness of the risk management activities
supported by the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual work, report and opinion on the effectiveness of the system of internal
control.

Our Trust Board is supported by a range of Committees that scrutinise and review assurances on internal control; such
Committees include the People and Organisational Development Committee, Performance, Finance, and Investment
Committee, and the Quality, Patient Experience, and Safety Committee.

Training

Training and education are key elements of the development of a positive risk management culture. Risk management
forms a fundamental aspect of many training activities throughout the Trust, where staff are provided with the necessary
awareness, knowledge and skills to work safely and to minimise risks at all levels.

Risk management awareness training is delivered to all members of staff through our induction programme and to
existing staff through mandatory training programmes.

The Trust is moving to a new divisional governance structure, which will support clinical and non-clinical areas in areas
such as risk management, patient safety, health and safety, and quality improvement. This expertise will support in the
effective management of operational, corporate and strategic risks. Established organisational learning mechanisms
enable us to continue to improve the level of risk awareness at all levels of the organisation, these include: the use of
root cause analysis in incident investigations; policy and process reviews; clinical and organisational audit; data analysis;
improvement planning; internal communication channels; and training programmes.

The Trust Board regularly scan the horizon for emergent opportunities or threats, and considers the nature and timing of
the response required in order to ensure risk is kept under prudent control at all times.
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The risk and control framework

The Risk Management Strategy provides a framework for managing risks across the Trust and is consistent with best
practice and Department of Health guidance. The strategy provides a clear, structured and systematic approach to the
management of risks to ensure that risk assessment is an integral part of clinical, managerial and financial processes
across the organisation. The strategy sets out the role of the Trust Board and its committees together with the individual
responsibilities of the Chief Executive, Executive Directors and all staff, in managing risk.

Risk management by the Trust Board is underpinned by four (4) interlocking systems of internal control:

l The Board Assurance Framework
l Trust Risk Register (informed by Divisions, Care Groups and Teams)
l Audit Committee
l Annual Governance Statement

The Board Assurance Framework (BAF) sets out the key risks to the Trust’s strategic objectives together with the controls
in place to mitigate the risks and the assurance that can be evidenced relating to their control.

The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring systems and controls are in place, sufficient to mitigate risks which may
threaten the achievement of the Trust’s objectives. The Board achieves this primarily through the work of its sub
committees, through use of Internal Audit and other independent inspection and by systematic collection and scrutiny of
performance data to evidence the achievement of the objectives.

The BAF is designed to provide the Board with a simple but comprehensive method for the effective and focussed
management of Principal Risks to Trust objectives. The Board defines the Principal Risks and ensures that each is assigned
to a Lead Director as well as to a Lead Committee:

l The Lead Director is responsible for assessing any Principal Risks assigned to them by the Board and for providing   
assurance as to the effectiveness of primary risk controls to the Lead Committee

l The role of the Lead Committee is to review the Lead Director’s assessment of their Principal Risks, consider the 
range of assurances received as to the effectiveness of primary risk controls, and to recommend to the Lead Director
any changes to the BAF to ensure that it continues to reflect the extent of risk exposure at that time

l The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the whole BAF in order to provide assurance to the Board that 
Principal Risks are appropriately rated and are being effectively managed; and for advising the Board as to the 
inclusion within the BAF of additional risks that are of strategic significance During 2018/19 the Board refreshed its 
BAF. The Trust Board has received and reviewed the Board Assurance Framework three times throughout the year. 
Internal audit have reviewed the processes and controls around the Trust’s BAF and found that the Assurance 
Framework in place is founded on a systematic risk management process and does provide assurance to the Board. 
The Assurance Framework does reflect the Trust’s key objectives and risks and is reviewed on at least a quarterly
basis by the Board. The proforma Board Assurance Framework Document complies with HM Treasury Guidance on 
Assurance Frameworks.

The major risks identified and monitored through the BAF during the year related to:

l BAF001 Failure to deliver consistent standards of care to patients' across the Trust results in poor patient outcomes 
and incidents of avoidable harm.

l BAF005 The lack of leadership capability and capacity could lead to insufficient key performance improvement and 
the Trusts ability to be a high performing organisation.

l BAF006 High levels of sickness absence within the Trust impacts upon the Trust's resourcing plan and ability to 
deliver safe and high quality care and also impacts upon the Trust's ability to effectively use resources and deliver
the financial plan. The current policy framework for the Trust does not adequately support Staff Health and 
Wellbeing and does not effectively mitigate absence levels.

l BAF007 Failure to improve organisational Culture impacts on staff well-being, retention and the Trusts ability to 
attract and recruit new staff

l BAF008 Healthy organisation - failure to understand the health and wellbeing of the workforce and implement 
appropriate initiatives

l BAF009 Failure to promote, develop and support a culture which values equality, diversity and inclusion

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19

565656



l BAF010 Freedom to Speak Up - there is a risk that the systems and processes for raising a concern are insufficient 
and not robustly embedded within the Trust

l BAF002 Failure to achieve financial plans as agreed by the Board and communicated to NHSI

l BAF011 IM&T systems which do not meet the requirements of the organisation

l BAF003 If the Trust does not agree a suitable alliance approach with the Local Health Economy partners it will be 
able to deliver a sustainable integrated care model.

l BAF004 Failure to progress the delivery of the Walsall Integrated model for health and social care.

Escalation of risk issues is through the Divisional Governance structure that allows two-way communication from the
Board, its main Committees and Trust wide committees/operational groups which report into the Risk Management
Group. Each Divisional Quality governance meeting on a monthly basis considers risk, patient safety quality alongside
the risk registers for the service areas. Themes or specific issues requiring escalation are taken to the monthly Risk
Management Group for consideration and potential inclusion in the Corporate Risk Register.

The Audit Committee is responsible for scrutinising the overall systems of internal control (clinical and non-clinical) and
for ensuring the provision of effective independent assurance via internal audit, external audit and local anti-fraud
services. The Audit Committee reports to the Board via a Highlight Report after every meeting and annually on its work
via the Annual Report of the Audit Committee in support of the Annual Governance Statement, specifically commenting
on the fitness for purpose of the BAF, the completeness and extent to which risk management is embedded in the Trust
and the integration of governance arrangements. The Audit Committee also assesses its own effectiveness, what it has
accomplished and whether it has fulfilled its responsibilities along with that of the Board sub committees.

The Trust Board and its sub committees have taken an active role in the improvement of risk management processes. This
has included the alignment of Board Assurance Framework and Corporate Risks to the Board sub committees and
agreed schedules of review of the risks at each.

Serious Incidents affect service users and staff. Ensuring these are reported effectively and in a timely manner helps the Trust to
learn the most from such incidents so that safety can be improved. The Trust has a robust process for making sure that Serious
Incidents are acted upon promptly and that resulting actions are reviewed in detail at Divisional Board meetings with a
summary and learning themes reported through to the Quality Patient Experience and Safety Committee.

During 2018/19 the Trust had 143 Serious Incidents, compared with 167 in 2017/18. The main categories being pressure
ulcers (57), medical equipment (17) and slip trips and falls (15).

The Trust Board is comprised of a Chair, six non-executive director members and five executive director members: the
Chief Executive, Medical Director, Director of Nursing, Director of Finance and Performance and Chief Operating Officer.
Two other associate non-executive directors and three other executive director members without voting rights attend
each Trust Board meeting: the Director of Governance (Trust Secretary), Director of People & Culture and the Director of
Strategy and Improvement. The Chair of the Trust Board has a second and casting vote on any decision making matters.

The Trust Board saw the departure of two non-executive director members during 2018/2019. Anne Baines who was an
associate non-executive director, was made a full voting member in 14 December 2018. 

The executive team has undergone a period of change during the year with the departure of the Chief Operating Officer,
Interim Director of HR, Interim Director of Nursing and Medical Director members of the team. Jenna Davies was
appointed as Director of Governance, Karen Dunderdale as Director of Nursing and Deputy CEO, Catherine Griffiths as
Director of People & Culture and Matthew Lewis as Medical Director.

The Trust Board is supported by a framework of sub-committees. The Trust governance structure has had a full review during 2018/19
and is shown at Appendix 1 and illustrates the robustness and effectiveness of the risk management and performance processes.

The Board has overall responsibility for the effectiveness of the governance framework and has along with its sub committees
undertaken a review of its effectiveness. There are six formally designated sub-committees of the Board all  of which are
Chaired by a non-executive director:

l Audit Committee, chaired by Sukhbinder Heer, Non-executive Director.
l Quality and Safety Committee, chaired by Anne Baines, Non-executive Director.
l Finance, Performance and Investment Committee, chaired by John Dunn, Non-executive Director.
l People and Organisational Development Committee –chaired by Philip Gayle, Non-executive Director.
l Nominations and Remuneration Committee chaired by Danielle Oum, Chair of Trust
l Charitable Funds Committee, chaired by Alan Yates, Associate Nonexecutive Director.
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The Trust Board is responsible for setting the risk appetite of the organisation as described in the Risk Management
Strategy. Risk Appetite is defined as ‘the amount of risk the organisation is prepared to accept, tolerate, or be exposed to
at any point in time.’ It allows the board to take considered risks and to seek assurance that risks of any grade in areas of
low tolerance are being managed, rather than focussing predominately on high rated risks.

The Trust’s approach to quality improvement is clear that quality is the responsibility of all staff from ‘ward to board’.
The Board is committed to ensuring patients receive the highest level of safe, high quality, compassionate care, through
a shift to a culture of continuous quality improvement based upon the sustainable implementation of a Trust wide
Improvement Programme. Reporting processes and mechanisms through Trust Board, it’s Committees, Executive Team
and through to Divisions and their governance processes reflect this approach. Accountability for quality is clear through
the leadership and management arrangements within the Trust. The revised governance and assurance structure
implemented in 2015 continues and is aligned with the clinically led management model in the Divisions providing ward
to board reporting and assurance. Divisions continue to enable better and more rapid decision-making, as close as
possible to the point of care delivery, which, in turn, enables more effective clinical engagement and leadership in service
development and delivery as well as providing service users with greater access to decision-making.

Executive leadership, accountability and responsibility for quality governance is held by the Director of Nursing and the
Medical Director. Quality governance oversight and integration with corporate governance is overseen by the Director of
Governance.

The Trust’s approach to clinical quality improvement is supported by the Quality Improvement Faculty which has been
established to support colleagues on the improvement journey. This encompasses the existing Listening into Action (LiA)
Programme and the Service Improvement Team. This provides additional innovative, research, and evidence based
support to the services and clinicians. The first phase focuses on Human Factors in Maternity and Gynaecology.

The Trust’s strategic priorities and combined support service offer aligns clinical services and support functions to deliver
the best care possible to those who use Trust services. Trust Board receives regular reports, directly and through the
Quality, Patient Experience & Safety Committee, on all aspects of clinical quality and safety including management of
incidents and complaints, equality and diversity, service user experience, control of infection and research and
development. The Quality, Patient Experience & Safety Committee provides assurance to Trust Board that issues and risks
identified in a number of portfolio areas, such as managing aggression and violence, safeguarding adults and children,
infection prevention and control, and information governance, are being addressed. Where Quality, Patient Experience &
Safety Committee identifies an area of concern which has been raised at a particular time, we scrutinise that on behalf of
the Trust Board by receiving regular reports for a period.

The Trust’s Quality Strategy, our ‘’Quality Commitment’’ was approved at Trust Board in November 2016 and continued
through 2018/19. The priorities are monitored individually via the Trust quality governance framework which is delivered
through the governance structure and described in more detail below. This framework sets out what our strategic
commitment to safe, high quality care means in practice. It incorporates national and local drivers, commissioning
priorities and is consistent with STP quality priorities. It is based on three main sections:

Provide effective care – Improve Patient Outcomes

Improve safety – Reduce Harm

Care and compassion – Improve Patient Experience

The Trust’s quality governance framework provides the Trust Board with assurance that essential standards of quality
and safety are being delivered within the Trust. It provides assurance that the processes for the governance of quality are
embedded through the Trust. Performance and Quality reports to Trust Board provide assurance against a range of Key
Performance Indicators relating to service quality and, where reports indicate underperformance, action plans are
provided to and monitored by Trust Board.

The Board and sub committees receive assurance on compliance with quality and safety through a number of
mechanisms including the Performance and Quality Report which is considered at each of the sub committees and Board.
It regularly seeks out and reviews staff and patient feedback through the staff survey, pulse survey’s, staff forums,
leadership meetings, listening into action work streams, complaints and PALS feedback via telephone, email, face to face,
Friends & Family Feedback electronic and paper and collected at point of service, National Surveys, Local Surveys, Forums,
User Groups and the Membership forum. There is also regular Trust Board to staff engagement undertaken through
Board walks. The Trust also uses third party assurances gained through the internal audit function, health watch,
volunteers and regulatory inspections to assure itself of compliance.

The Quality, Patient Experience and Safety Committee is the central driving force for quality governance, regularly reporting to
the Trust Board that the essential standards of quality and safety are being delivered. This includes monitoring compliance with
the Care Quality Commissions Fundamental Standards and other statutory compliance through the Performance and Quality
Report prior to submission to the Trust Board. The Quality Committee’s other duties include:
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l promote quality, safety and excellence in patient care;
l identify, prioritise and manage risk arising from clinical care;
l ensure the effective and efficient use of resources through evidencebased
l clinical practice;
l promote and support the duty of candour to provide a culture of shared learning and openness; and
l protect the health and safety of Trust employees.

The Performance, Finance and Investment Committee have delegated authority to monitor and scrutinise:

l Putting the interests of patients at the heart of what the organisation does.
l Financial/Annual planning and monitoring.
l Cost transformation programmes.
l Activity and productivity including operational efficiency and effectiveness.
l Delivery of the Five Year Forward View, NHS Constitution Standards and local contractual obligations.
l Workforce cost.
l Information Management & Technology: seeking assurances about the underlying data to ensure that it is robust, 

reliable and accurate.
l Public Finance Initiative performance.
l Challenging relevant mangers when controls are not working or data is unreliable.
l Review, approve and evaluate business case investments and requests for capital expenditure within the powers 

delegated by the Trust Board.

The People and Organisational Development Committee has delegated authority to:

l Review performance data and quality indicators covering key aspects of the Trust-wide workforce matters,                
identifying areas for action at a corporate and local level, ensuring follow up takes place:

l Appraisal
l Mandatory Training
l Sickness
l DBS
l Staff Survey
l Flu Vaccination
l Recruitment & Staffing levels
l CQUINs
l Staff friends & family test
l Bank & Agency
l Volunteers

The Trust has continued to work to embed the enhanced quality governance measures through the accountability
framework maintaining a focus on strong governance and leadership across quality, finance and clinical care ensuring
that there is clinically led management decision-making, as close as possible to the point of care delivery.

The Trust is commitment to promoting equality and human rights and valuing diversity in all areas of Walsall Healthcare
NHS Trust. It does this by ensuring that Equality Impact Assessments are integrated into core business ensuring due
regard to the aims of the Equality Act at the point when decisions are made. The purpose of an Equality Impact
Assessment (EIA) is to improve the work of the Trust by making sure it does not discriminate and that, where possible,
promotes equality. The Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) focuses on systematically assessing and recording the likely
equality impact of an activity or policy. There is a focus on assessing the impact on people with protected characteristics.
This involves anticipating the consequences of activities on these groups and making sure that, as far as possible, any
negative consequences are eliminated or minimised and opportunities for promoting equality are maximised.

The EIA is carried out by completing a form, drawing on existing research, monitoring Information and consultation.
Once this has been completed, action plans can be drawn up and any decisions to change the delivery of an activity or
policy can be made.

The Equality Diversity and Inclusion Group will be responsible for reviewing EIAs which have identified negative
consequences.

The Trust Board development programme sets out the process by which it will assess itself against the NHS Improvement's
well led framework as part of the Trust’s journey of improvement. The Board has carried out self-assessments against the
Well Led Framework and an action plan has been developed and is being implemented. During 2019/20 the Trust will be
commissioning an external provider to carry out a review, directed by the findings of the self assessment. The action plan
is monitored via TMB, with a quarterly updates being provided to Board.
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During 2018/19 the Board have participated in a full Board team development programme and a series of workshops
focussed on the well led key lines of enquiry.

We continue to work with our two key partnerships to support future improvement – Walsall Together and the Black
Country Provider Partnership. The business case for Walsall Together has been through all the governing bodies and Trust
Boards. All organisations have approved the case as the appropriate strategic direction of travel with the Trust as the
Host Provider.

Terms of Reference together with a programme plan for the partnership have been drafted to establish an Integrated
Care Partnership Board which will be a sub committee of the Trust Board and we will be seeking the appointment of a
Non Exec Chair over the next few months.

With regard to the Black Country Provider Partnership we continue to work on services that have been identified within
the sustainability reviews as benefitting from a network approach. Whilst some of these are internal programmes of
work, there are three notable services that are undergoing wider partnership coordination. This work is being overseen
from an STP perspective by the Clinical Leadership Group which is represented by our Trust by Matthew Lewis as the
Medical Director

High reporting of incidents is a mark of high reliability organisations and therefore incident reporting is encouraged by
the Trust. It is essential that staff receive feedback, there is a focus on learning, frontline staff is engaged, and incident
reporting is easy, reporting systems focus on improving safety, not blaming individuals and appropriate actions taken.

In 2018/19, NHS Trusts have been required to make an annual statement of confirmation in relation to compliance with
elements of the NHS Provider Licence as follows:

l G6 – Meeting the requirements of the licence and the NHS Constitution, and, having implemented effective 
arrangements for the management of risk

l FT4 – Relates to corporate governance arrangements covering systems and processes of corporate governance in 
place and effective; effective Board and Committee arrangements; compliance with healthcare standards; effective
financial decision making; sufficient capability and capacity at Trust Board and all levels in the organisation; 
accountability and reporting lines.

The Trust Board confirmed that it has met the above requirements in May 2018 and is expected to confirm this position
again, in June 2019. The NHS Long-Term Plan informs workforce strategy; recognising that all strategic and operational
objectives depend on the collective skills, power and strength of our workforce. This principle underpins a workforce
planning methodology which places long-term sustainability, achieved through system-wide improvement approach, at
the heart of all Trust objectives.

In line with recommendations, outlined within ‘Developing Workforce Safeguards’, the Trust will address workforce
challenges, maximise opportunities and deploy safe staffing by;

l Setting medical and nursing establishments
l Limiting Temporary Staffing Usage
l Taking a Proactive Approach to Brexit Related Risks
l Implement New Roles & Workforce Opportunities

Regular reviews of both the Medical and Nursing establishment provide evidencebased intelligence to inform proactive
decision making, both at board and service level. A clinically-led Safeguarding Team ensures that suitably qualified and
competent colleagues are providing safe, effective care to patients. Workforce Transformation forums, adhering to both
current legislation & best practice, provide professional accountability in regards to new processes or working practice.

During 2018/19 the Trust received an unannounced focus inspection of its maternity services on the 5, 6 and 12 June.
The purpose of the inspection was to determine if the maternity services at Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust had made the
improvements highlighted following the 2017 inspection and if the requirements of the warning notice had met.
Following the inspection the Trust received a “requires improvement” rating.

The CQC also carried out a comprehensive inspection of the Trust’s medicine and critical care services at Walsall
Healthcare NHS Trust on 4 – 6 February 2019, of urgent and emergency care, surgery and maternity services at Walsall
Healthcare NHS Trust on 11 – 13 February 2019 and Community Sexual Health Services at Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust on
25 and 26 February 2019. Finally an inspection of the Trusts Well Led requirements was undertaken on 19-21 March 2019.

In addition, NHS Improvement (NHSI) conducted the Use of Resources inspection on the 8 February 2019.

The final Quality Reports detailing the inspection findings and ratings are unlikely to be published until the summer. 
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Therefore the current ratings for the Trust are detailed below:

The Trust has not been subject to any enforcement notices during 2018/19 but continues to monitor the three
enforcement notices against Regulation 18 HSCA (RA) Regulations 2014 Staffing, Regulation 12 HSCA (RA) Regulations
2014 Safe care and Treatment and Regulation 13 HSCA (RA) Regulations 2014 Safeguarding service users from abuse and
improper treatment.

The Trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commission.

In response to the report the Trust has developed a Patient Care Improvement Plan to manage the must and should do
actions listed in the report along with the requirement notices issued. The work and progress has been regularly reported
to the Quality, Patient Experience and Safety Committee and Board.

The key focus of the PCIP going forward is to make it business as usual as the Trust moves from a ‘Requires Improvement’
status to one of ‘Good’.

The trust has published an up-to-date register of interests for decision-making staff within the past twelve months, as
required by the ‘Managing Conflicts of Interest in the NHS’ guidance.

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures are in place to ensure all
employer obligations contained within the Scheme regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions
from salary, employer’s contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme’s rules, and that
member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.

Control measures are in place to ensure that the organisation complies with all relevant equality, diversity and human
rights legislation.

The Trust has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction Delivery Plans are in place in accordance with
emergency preparedness and civil contingency requirements as based on UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure that this
organisation’s obligations under the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with.

The trust has undertaken risk assessments and has a sustainable development management plan in place which takes
account of UK Climate Projections 2018 (UKCP18). The trust ensures that its obligations under the Climate Change Act
and the Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with.
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Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
of the use of resources

As Accountable Officer I have responsibility to the Trust Board for the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of
resources. This is achieved operationally through good governance and systems of internal control designed to ensure
that resources are applied efficiently and effectively.

The effective and efficient use of resources is managed by the following key policies:

Standing Orders

The Standing Orders are contained within the Trust’s legal and regulatory framework and set out the regulatory
processes and proceedings for the Trust Board and its committees and working groups including the Audit Committee,
whose role is set out below, thus ensuring the efficient use of resources.

Standing Financial Instructions (SFIs)

The SFIs detail the financial responsibilities, policies and principles adopted by the Trust in relation to financial
governance. They are designed to ensure that its financial transactions are carried out in accordance with the law and
Government policy in order to achieve probity, accuracy, economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

They do this by laying out very clearly who have responsibility for all the key aspects of policy and decision making in
relation to the key financial matters. This ensures that there are clear divisions of duties, very transparent policies in
relation to competitive procurement processes, effective and equitable recruitment and payroll systems and processes.
The budget planning and allocation process is clear and robust and ensures costs are maintained within budget or
highlighted for action. The SFIs are to be used in conjunction with the Trust’s Standing Orders and the Scheme of
Reservation and Delegation and the individual detailed procedures set by directorates.

Scheme of reservation and Delegation

This sets out those matters that are reserved to the Trust Board and the areas of delegated responsibility to committees
and individuals. The document sets out who is responsible and the nature and purpose of that responsibility. It assists in
the achievement of the efficient and effective resources by ensuring that decisions are taken at an appropriate level
within the organisation by those with the experience and oversight relevant to the decision being made. It ensures that
the focus and rigor of the decision making processes are aligned with the strategic priorities of the Trust and it ensures
that the Trust puts in place best practice in relation to its decision making.

Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy

The Bribery Act which came into force in April 2011 makes it a criminal offence for commercial organisations to fail to
prevent bribes being paid on their behalf. Failure to take appropriate measures to avoid (or at least minimise) the risk of
bribery taking place could lead to the imposition of fines, or imprisonment of the individuals involved and those who
failed to act to prevent it. This will help ensure that the taking or receiving of bribes is less likely and improve the
integrity and transparency of the Trust’s transactions and decisions.

The Trust Board places reliance on the Audit Committee to ensure appropriate and sound governance arrangements are
in place to deliver the efficient and effective use of resources and the Trust’s internal control systems are robust and
can be evidenced.

The Audit Committee agrees an annual work programme for the Trust’s Internal Auditors and the Counter Fraud Team,
and reviews progress on implementation of recommendations following audit and other assurance reports and reviews.

Independent assurance is provided through the Trust’s internal audit programme and the work undertaken by NHS
Counter Fraud Team (formerly NHS Protect), reports from which are reviewed by the Audit Committee. In addition,
further assurance on the use of resources is obtained from external agencies, including the external auditors and the
Regulators.

The Trust Board also places reliance on the Performance, Finance and Investment Committee to provide appropriate
scrutiny and review in respect of Trust performance relating to a number of areas including efficient and effective use of
resources. The Trust identified a risk to CIP delivery in 2018/19 and entered into the Financial Improvement Programme
supported by NHS Improvement. This robust programme was delivered through three phases for sustainability and
assurance (1-Diagnosis, 2-Plan for Recovery and 3-Implementation). An outcome of the programme included enhanced
governance processes to support the financial improvement efforts, CIP maturity was progressing with a requirement to
get existing schemes de-risked and new schemes quality impact assessed, a communication and engagement strategy was

626262



Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2017/18

developed. The Trust has also entered into a fourth phase of the programme to assure delivery in year and embed the
governance recommendations from the work undertaken by the partner organisation.

Information governance

The Trust had a total of 4 reportable incidents during 2018/19 relating to information governance data breaches during
this period. This included inappropriate access to staff data via ESR by another member of staff with the same name as
the data subject, a subject access request which contained the personal data of a third party which was not fully
redacted, patient data being left unattended during an assessment and a member of staff transferring personal
identifiable data to their own email address. These were all promptly reported to the Information Commissioner’s Office
and appropriate remedial and investigative action taken.

Information Governance Toolkit

During 2018/19 all NHS Trusts were required to carry out an information governance self-assessment using the new Data
Security & Protection Toolkit. The Data Security & Protection Toolkit was introduced in 2018 and encourages a compliance
assessment against the 10 National Data Standards. These standards are:

l Personal confidential data
l Staff responsibilities
l Training
l Managing data access
l Process reviews
l Responding to incidents
l Continuity planning
l Unsupported systems
l IT protection
l Accountable suppliers

In order to achieve ‘standards met’ Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust must confirm achievement of 100 mandatory assertions,
and provide evidence items to support each declaration.

Unfortunately the Trust was unable to demonstrate the required target of 95% of all staff being appropriately trained.
Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust’s Information Governance Assessment for 2018/19 is therefore ‘standards not fully met –
(plan agreed)’.

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trusts’ toolkit will be shared with the Care Quality Commission (CQC), NHS England and NHS
Improvement, and provides important evidence for the key line of enquiry on Information in the CQC well-led inspection.

The Trust continues to monitor its Information Governance mandatory training compliance, and through audit monitors
records quality, storage and retention. Our Information Governance improvement plan for 2018/19 is overseen by our
Information Governance Steering Group, chaired by our Interim Trust Secretary.

Cyber and Data Security

Cyber and data security continues to be an important focus for the Trust. This because evident in light of the events on
12 May 2017 when the NHS was subject to a well-publicised worldwide cyber-attack. As a result of the co-ordinated
emergency response to the threat by the Information Communications Technology (ICT) Department, the Trust defended
itself against this particular attack and there was no operational impact to the Trust.

The Trust Information Governance Steering Group receives regular reports on plans and actions to maintain and improve
cyber-security defences across the Trust. Some of the proactive work undertaken has included a cyber-security awareness
campaign.

Each year the Trust undertakes a cyber-penetration as part of its internal audit plan. This involves being subjected to a
simulated cyber-attack probing both our external and internal networks. The results provide areas for improving
including specific recommendations which are implemented to strengthen our cyber security. The overall opinion
provided by the 2018/19 test is requires improvement.

On the 7 March 2019, the Trust Board participated in a cyber-security workshop session. This covered the latest cyber
landscape, best practice guidance to help foster a positive cyber and information security culture encompassing people,
policy, process and ICT; Leadership, strategy and best practice information governance; understanding of responsibilities,
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liabilities and consequences of breach, including key legislation (such as GDPR); Guidance on risk management and
building resilience and capability; Providing a trusted forum to discuss your key issues and priorities and advice on the
next steps to improve data security within the Trust.

Annual Quality Report

The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations
2010 (as amended ) to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year.

The Trust’s Quality Account for 2018/19 provides a summary of the Trust’s quality achievements and challenges,
demonstrating how it meets its statutory and regulatory requirements as well as how it meets the expectations of its
service users, carers, stakeholders, its members and the public. The Report was externally audited. This provided
the required x assurance opinion on the content and consistency of the report, that the content was in line
with the Annual Reporting Manual (2016/17) issued by NHS Improvement and consistent with documents
reviewed. In terms of the performance indicator testing of two mandatory indicators (Friends and Family
and CDIF).

The Draft Quality Account is shared with partner agencies and stakeholders and commissioners for comment. Leadership
comes from the Trust Board with clearly devolved responsibility and accountability for individual quality improvement
priorities.

The Director of Governance is responsible for the preparation of the Quality Account and for ensuring that the document
presents a balanced view of quality within the Trust. The Quality Account is prepared with contributions from all
responsible and accountable leads.

The Quality, Patient Experience and Safety Committee is responsible for reviewing the report prior to submission with the
Annual Report and Accounts to the Audit Committee and then the Trust Board. The Trust's External Auditor, perform a
limited assurance review. They read the report and assess if the information is consistent with the requirements; consider
if it is materiality consistent with other information and substantively test the performance indicators.

Progress against the Quality Account priorities for the reporting period, 2018/19, has been reported through the Trust’s
governance framework via the Annual Business Cycles of the Quality, Patient Experience and Safety Committee and the
Trust Board receiving routine reports on:

l Medicines safety
l Sepsis and the deteriorating patient
l Equality and diversity

Priorities for 2018/19 have been developed for the Quality Account. Robust outcome metrics have been set for each
priority and action to identify progress and success in achieving this improvement. The metrics we have used are
meaningful to both staff and patients. Measurement will be used to demonstrate the impact of change and then
continued as on-going performance measures following the implementation of successful change, updates will be
reported via Quality, Patient Experience and Safety Committee to Trust Board.

Elective waiting time data

The Trust has been working during 2018/19 to improve the quality and accuracy relating to planned and elective waiting
time data. Validation continues to ensure that only patients requiring further treatment or monitoring appointments
remain open on the Trust’s patient management system. This work has been extremely successful and will continue
through 2018/19. Virtual review of diagnostics and follow up waiting lists commenced during 2018/19, in line with
National guidance to redesign interactions in outpatients. This will reduce the number of formal outpatient
appointments patient will be required to attend and improve access in services with challenging waiting times to deliver
in 19/20.

The Trust has not achieved the National standard for RTT (92% incomplete pathways waiting no longer than 18 weeks)
during the 2018/19 due to specific capacity pressures in some services. The number of patients waiting longer than
18 weeks reduced by circa 900 during the year, with good progress for services with long waiters and numbers waiting
greater than 40 weeks plus reduced. Data quality indicators for the Trust monitoring system for RTT indicates that data
quality has been sustained since the return to reporting in October 2016. Reports are regularly reviewed in order to
ensure that data quality issues are identified and validated within 48 hours. This work supports identifying training needs
for the administrative team and support for Clinicians with application of the National Referral to Treatment (RTT) rules.



The Trust Access Policy outlines standards of practice with regard to capture of outcomes following inpatient discharge
and outpatient attendance. KPIs are in place supporting the standards and there are weekly meetings held where
compliance is monitored. There is a monthly meeting where NHSE/NHSI are represented, along with Walsall CCG. The
RTT performance and data indicators are reported.

Review of effectiveness

As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. My review
of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and
the executive managers and clinical leads within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance
of the internal control framework. I have drawn on the information provided in this annual report and other
performance information available to me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in
their management letter and other reports. I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Trust Board, the Audit Committee, Quality, Patient Experience &
Safety Committee, Finance, Performance and Investment Committee, People and Organisational Development
Committee, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

In describing the process that had been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control, I have set out below some examples of the work undertaken and the roles of the Trust Board and Committees in
this process:

The Trust Board has met in public on eleven occasions and each meeting has been both well attended and quorate. The
Committees of the Board operate to formal terms of reference that the Board has approved, and carry out a range of
Board work at a level of detail and scrutiny that is not possible within the confines of a Trust Board meeting. Each of the
Committees provides assurance to the Board in relation to the activities defined within its terms of reference; this is
reported to the next meeting of the Board in the form of a highlight report to ensure that necessary issues are
highlighted in a timely way. The Board also receives the formal minutes of the meetings of each of the Committees once
approved by the Committee as a true record.

The work that has been undertaken by the Committees includes:

l scrutiny and approval of the annual financial statements and annual report, including the Trust’s Quality Account;

l receiving all reports prepared by the Trust’s Internal and External Auditors and tracking of the agreed 
management actions arising;

l monitoring the Clinical Audit Programme, serious incidents and never events and ensuring that risk is effectively 
and efficiently managed and that lessons are learned and shared;

l monitoring of compliance with external regulatory standards including the Care Quality Commission and the 
Information Governance toolkit;

l monitoring of the Cost Improvement Programme and the delivery of service development;

l ensuring the adequacy of the Trust’s Strategic Financial Planning;

l monitoring the implementation of the key strategies that the Board has approved; and, relevant policy 
approval/ratification.

The internal audit plan which is risk based, is approved by the Audit Committee at the beginning of each year. Progress
reports are then presented to the Audit Committee at each meeting with the facility to highlight any major issues. The
Chair of the Audit Committee can, in turn, quickly escalate any areas of concern to the Trust Board via a Highlight Report
and produces an annual report on the work of the Committee and a self-evaluation of its effectiveness. The plan also has
the flexibility to change during the year.

The Head of Internal Audit’s overall opinion on the effectiveness of the organisation’s system of internal control is that
“Overall, partial assurance with improvement required can be given on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control. We identified weaknesses which put system
objectives at risk in relation to the Data Security and Protection Toolkit, Mortality Review, Board Assurance Framework,
Well-Led Governance and Temporary Staffing audits. We have also considered the work of the predecessor internal
auditor - West Midlands Ambulance Service - who identified weaknesses which put the system objectives at risk in
relation to the Temporary Staffing – Medics, Risk Management and Consultant Job Planning audits completed during the
period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019. Improvements are required to improve the effectiveness of controls in all of these
areas.” 
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Data Security and Protection Toolkit Undertake a review of all processes that have been 
identified as causing a breach or a near miss to confirm 
it is operating effectively.

Ensure there is an effective annual test of the ITDRP

Mortality Review Update the ‘Learning from Deaths’ report to Board

Collate and report data on how many deaths were judged 
more likely than not to have been due to problems in
care, to ensure their reporting is in line with the NQB 
guidance.

Ensure that the clinicians complete all sections of the 
mortality review form to make sure that accurate and 
complete data is held.

Board Assurance Framework Update strategic objectives which were agreed at a Board 
Development session.

Share BAF with relevant monitoring committees prior to 
approval by the Board.

Establish a BAF process to ensure that risks are regularly 
updated and linked and aligned to the corporate risk 
register.

Ensure the Risk Management Group take the decisions as to 
whether to manage risks at the CRR or BAF level.

Well Led Governance Complete outstanding actions in the well led action plan, 
reprioritisation of executive leads’ workloads to create
sufficient management capacity.

Temporary Staffing audits Awaiting management response

Taking account of national and local context, the strategic direction for the Trust has been reviewed by the Trust Board. Areas key to
the delivery of the Trust’s business strategy, managed and monitored by the Trust Board and the Committees of the Board includes:

l Safe, High Quality Care – through the development of an integrated improvement programme to ensure 
sustainable change.

l Care at Home– by delivering services within the scope of Walsall Together; having a clear set of plans for joined up 
working with voluntary and housing partners; integrated secondary care pathways and social care collaboration.

l Partnerships - with collaborative working through the governance of Walsall Together; and horizontal integration 
of acute services across the STP. A Black Country approach to workforce promoting a professional passport to allow 
for a dynamic workforce across the area.

l Value our Colleagues - so they recommend us as a place to work through the development of professional 
leadership, enhanced engagement, embedding clinical leadership and accountability in the way we operate 
our services.

l Use Resources well to ensure we are sustainable - through the alignment of the overall Trust-wide improvement 
programme to ensure financial sustainability and sustainable benefits.

The Trust Board recognises the importance of ensuring that it is fit for purpose to lead the Trust and a programme of
Board Development activity has taken place during the year through a programme of Board Development.

The Audit Committee has responsibility for overseeing systems of internal control and effective governance and receives
assurances from the Quality, Patient Experience & Safety Committee, Performance, Finance & Investment Committee
and People and OD Committee through formal reporting arrangements following each meeting and cross membership
by the Chairs of the respective committees. Additionally, assurance is received by regular internal audit reports on
delivery of the internal audit programme and monitoring of actions to further strengthen governance arrangements.

The Trust Board are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010
(as amended in 2011 and 2012) to prepare a Quality Account for each financial year. The Quality, Patient Experience and Safety
Committee assume a scrutiny role in the development of this account prior to submission to the Trust Board for approval.
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The Performance, Finance and Investment Committee has provided a forum for the Trust Board to seek additional assurance in
relation to all aspects of financial and general performance, including performance against nationally set and locally agreed
targets, monitoring of the Cost Improvement programme, and monitoring of the Service Transformation Programme.

Significant internal controls issues

Ernst and Young LLP, External Auditors have issued the Trust a qualified Value for Money opinion relating to the CQC inspection
rating of requires improvement, Trust outturn position and 2018 staff survey and internal audit opion.

CQC

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspected the Trust in May and June 2017; and issued the Trust with an overall rating of
requires improvement. The report highlighted concerns in respect of urgent and emergency services; surgery; critical care;
maternity and gynaecology.

A Patient Care Improvement Programme (PCIP) was developed following receipt of the Chief Inspector of Hospitals Inspection
report (December 2017). The Regulatory & Must Do actions were reviewed by the ‘Teams of Three’ from the Core Services,
following which the first version of the PCIP was established. Since then this document has been developed to include
additional improvement actions identified by the Core Services.

During 2018/19 the Trust continued to ensure that the PCIP delivered against the recommendations from the December 2017
CQC report. Regular reports were received by the Quality Patient Experience and Safety Committee and Trust Board on delivery
of the actions.

In parallel, the Trust developed and delivered a comprehensive CQC preparation plan to support the Trust in preparing for an
inspection of its core services. The Trust received an unannounced focus inspection of its maternity services on the 5, 6 and
12 June and following the inspection the Trust received an improved rating of “requires improvement”.

In addition, the CQC also carried out a comprehensive inspection of the Trust’s medicine and critical care services at Walsall
Healthcare NHS Trust on 4 – 6 February 2019, of urgent and emergency care, surgery and maternity services at Walsall
Healthcare NHS Trust on 11 – 13 February 2019 and Community Sexual Health Services at Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust on
25 and 26 February 2019. 

At the time of writing this report the Trust is awaiting the report from the CQC.

Finance

The Trust’s outturn position for 2018/19 was a £27.7million deficit (£33.9million with accounting for an impairment of estate at
£6.2million) which is a significant deterioration compared to the 2018/19 planned deficit of £15.6million (£10.6m post receipt of
Provider Sustainability Funds).

The deterioration in the Trust’s financial outturn was due largely to failure to maintain effective controls over temporary
staffing and securing productivity improvements targeted within the financial plan.

The Trust has an established governance framework to underpin this work which includes:

l A monthly Performance and Finance Executive meeting chaired by the Director of Finance and attended by executive 
directors to hold Divisions to account for their performance in relation to finance and performance

l A monthly performance meeting chaired by the Deputy CEO and attended by executive directors to hold Divisions to 
account for their overall performance including finance, performance, quality, HR and activity. This balanced view of
performance facilitates an in depth scrutiny of economy, efficiency and effectiveness at a more granular level

l A Programme Management Office (PMO) oversees the development of the robust Cost Improvement Plan (CIP) and run 
rate improvement opportunities. To facilitate delivery of the plan, monitored at a bi-weekly chaired by the Director of 
Finance with the vice-chair and chair of Performance, Finance and Investment Committee in attendance

l A ‘Financial Cabinet’ made up of the Chair and Chief Executive with Chairs of Sub-Committees, Deputy Chief Executive 
and Director of Finance, formed to give Board assurance of delivery
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Staff Survey

The results of the 2018 National NHS staff survey show continuing poor performance for staff engagement with improvement
in 1 out of the 10 themes measured. The Trust’s response plan to the CQC inspection included actions to improve workforce
and staffing, however these actions have not yet demonstrated a sustained improvement in staff engagement or confidence in
the quality of services provided by the Trust.

The initial results of the staff survey were shared with the Trust Board in March 2019. The results of the survey have been
collated into ten themes (see below). The results are presented in the context of the best, average and worst results for similar
organisations, for Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust the benchmark group is Acute and Community Trusts.

1. The response rate for the Trust was 40% against 41% for the national average for the benchmark group.

2. The benchmark report shows a statistically significant improvement in the staff engagement score between 
2017 and 2018.

3. The benchmark report shows improvement on five of the ten themes between 2017 and 2018, although not at a 
statistically significant level.

4. The benchmark report shows stability on four of the ten themes detailed below between 2017 and 2018. 
The last theme (morale) was introduced in 2018 and therefore is not benchmarked at this point.

The themes are as follows:

l Equality, diversity & inclusion – improvement
l Health & wellbeing – stable
l Immediate managers – stable
l Morale – new
l Quality of appraisals - improvement
l Quality of care - stable
l Safe environment - Bullying & harassment - stable
l Safe environment - Violence - improvement
l Safety culture – improvement
l Staff engagement – statistically significant improvement

The next steps will be to review the results at Divisional and Corporate level in order to formulate a Trust wide action plan for
improvement during 2019-2020 and this will be considered at the People and OD Committee during April with a further and
detailed action plan to the Trust Board in May 2019.

Assurance Framework

The Trust has been issued with a Partial Assurance with improvement required opinion by the internal auditors, due to weak-
nesses in the design, and/or inconsistent application of controls, that have put the achievement of the organisations objectives
at risk in a number of areas reviewed. This has been reflected in the Annual Governance Statement for 2018/19.

The BAF is currently being updated to align with the updated strategic objectives which were agreed at a Board Development
session. The BAF will then be shared and approved at the relevant monitoring committees prior to approval by the Board.

A BAF process will be established to ensure that risks are regularly updated and linked and aligned to the corporate risk register.

The updated Risk Management Group will take the decisions as to whether to manage risks at the CRR or BAF level.

Conclusion

The Trust has identified CQC, Financial outturn and staff survey as a significant control issue which have been identified above.
There are no other significant issues to highlight.

Richard Beeken
Chief Executive

Date: July 2019
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SECTION 2: 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
Statement of the chief executive’s responsibilities as the 
accountable officer of the trust

The Chief Executive of NHS Improvement, in exercise of powers conferred on the NHS Trust Development Authority, has
designated that the Chief Executive should be the Accountable Officer of the trust. The relevant responsibilities of
Accountable Officers are set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer Memorandum. These include ensuring that:

l there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and assets and assist in the 
implementation of corporate governance;

l value for money is achieved from the resources available to the trust;

l the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and 
conform to the authorities which govern them;

l effective and sound financial management systems are in place; and

l annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of State to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and the income and expenditure, 
recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year.

As far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Trust’s auditors are unaware, and I have taken
all the steps that I ought to have taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Trust’s auditors are aware of that information.

I can confirm that the annual report and accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and that I take
personal responsibility for the annual report and accounts and the judgments required for determining that it is fair,
balanced and understandable.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in my letter of
appointment as an Accountable Officer.

Richard Beeken
Chief Executive

Date: July 2019
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the accounts

The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts for each financial year. The
Secretary of State, with the approval of HM Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the trust and of the income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year. In
preparing those accounts, the directors are required to:

l apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State with the approval 
of the Treasury;

l make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent;

l state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 
disclosed and explained in the accounts.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in
the above mentioned direction of the Secretary of State. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the above requirements in
preparing the accounts. The directors confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for patients, regulators and stakeholders to assess the NHS trust’s
performance, business model and strategy

By order of the Board.

..............................Date.............................................................Chief Executive

..............................Date............................................................Finance Director

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Report 2018/19

707070



Certificate on summarisation schedules

Trust Accounts Consolidation (TAC) Summarisation Schedules for […] NHS Trust

Summarisation schedules numbers TAC01 to TAC34 and accompanying WGA sheets for 2018/19 have been completed and
this certificate accompanies them.

Finance Director Certificate

1. I certify that the attached TAC schedules have been compiled and are in accordance with:

l the financial records maintained by the NHS trust

l accounting standards and policies which comply with the Department of Health and Social Care’s Group 
Accounting Manual and

l the template accounting policies for NHS trusts issued by NHS Improvement, or any deviation from these 
policies has been fully explained in the Confirmation questions in the TAC schedules.

2. I certify that the TAC schedules are internally consistent and that there are no validation errors*.

3. I certify that the information in the TAC schedules is consistent with the financial statements of the NHS Trust 
[**except for [insert text highlighting where the schedules differ from the accounts and explain the differences].

[Signature]

[Name], 
Director of Finance

[Date]

Chief Executive Certificate

1. I acknowledge the attached TAC schedules, which have been prepared and certified by the Finance Director, as the 
TAC schedules which the Trust is required to submit to NHS Improvement.

2. I have reviewed the schedules and agree the statements made by the Director of Finance above.

Richard Beeken
Chief Executive

Date: July 2019

*   If you are unable to eliminate validation errors after discussions with your auditors and contacting NHS 
Improvement then amend this accordingly.

** Please insert the ‘except for’ clause only if applicable.
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Statement of the chief executive’s responsibilities as the 
accountable officer of the trust

The Chief Executive of NHS Improvement, in exercise of powers conferred on the NHS Trust Development Authority, has
designated that the Chief Executive should be the Accountable Officer of the trust. The relevant responsibilities of
Accountable Officers are set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer Memorandum. These include ensuring that:

l there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and assets and assist in the 
implementation of corporate governance;

l value for money is achieved from the resources available to the trust;

l the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and 
conform to the authorities which govern them;

l effective and sound financial management systems are in place; and

l annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the

Secretary of State to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and the income
and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year.

As far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Trust’s auditors are unaware, and I have taken
all the steps that I ought to have taken to make myself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Trust’s auditors are aware of that information.

I can confirm that the annual report and accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and that I take
personal responsibility for the annual report and accounts and the judgments required for determining that it is fair,
balanced and understandable.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in my letter of
appointment as an Accountable Officer.

Richard Beeken
Chief Executive

Date: July 2019
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the accounts

The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts for each financial year. The
Secretary of State, with the approval of HM Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the trust and of the income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year. In
preparing those accounts, the directors are required to:

l apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State with the approval 
of the Treasury;

l make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent;

l state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 
disclosed and explained in the accounts.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in
the above mentioned direction of the Secretary of State. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the above requirements in
preparing the accounts.

The directors confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for patients, regulators and stakeholders to assess the NHS trust’s performance,
business model and strategy.

By order of the Board.

Richard Beeken
Chief Executive

Date: 22 May 2019
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2018/19 Financial Position 
 
The Trust has reported a deficit of £27.54m for the financial year (excluding impairments) and consequently the Trust has not 
achieved a break-even outturn position or the targeted operational deficit of £15.6m (resulting in a £10.5m deficit after receipt 
of Provider Sustainability Funding of £5m).  The deficit figure that is used to evaluate financial performance for the year is 
adjusted for impairments relating to the new build and renovation. 
 
In order to maintain financial balance in 2018/19 the Trust initially had to identify and achieve savings to meet the required 
national efficiency savings target, with targeted improved productivity in theatres and outpatients falling below plan. High levels 
of sickness and demands on Emergency services placed further pressures upon capacity resulting in higher than planned 
temporary workforce costs. The Trust has had loan support during the year from the Department of Health to settle creditor 
accounts within reasonable time frames thereby ensuring continuity of services. 
 
 

How is our financial performance assessed? 
 
The Department of Health measures NHS Trust financial performance against the following four targets. 
 

 
 

 
Where our money comes from 
 
The majority of Trust income comes from the provision of patient care services (£234million), the remainder of income comes 
from such things as Education, Training and Research, Income Generation (car parking, staff catering and accommodation) 
and the provision of non-patient related services to Walsall Commissioning Care Group. 
 

 
What we spend our money on 
 
The Trust spent £287million in the financial year 2018/19. The largest component of this expenditure was salaries and wages 
where we spent £179million. The Trust spent a further £37.3million on clinical supplies and services such as drugs and 
consumables used in providing healthcare to patients.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Definition of Target Target Set Actual Target Met

Income and Expenditure Revised Break
Even (Managing Services within the income
received by the Trust)

£'000 (10,496) (27,541) x

External Financing Limit ( Managing
Services within the "cash limit" agreed with
the Department of Health)

£'000 37,103 33,450 ü

Capital Resource Limit (Managing Capital 
Expenditure within the Capital Resource 
Limits agreed with the Department of 
Health)

£'000 13,057        13,057        ü

Capital Cost Absorption Duty (return on 
assets employed).  The Trust was not 
required to submit a dividend payment. % 3.5% 0.0% ü
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The chart below shows a breakdown of the main categories of expenditure for 2018/19. 

 
   

 

Capital Investment 

 

The total capital expenditure in 2018/19 totalled £13.0million. The main areas of investment were: 

 

                        £’m 

Ô Reconfiguration, lifecycle and refurbishment works     11.7 

Ô Computer replacement and Information systems        0.5 

Ô Medical and theatre equipment                             0.8 

Total                                      13.0 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

14.8%

1.2%

8.8%

5.4%

64.9%

0.5%
4.5%

Clinical Supplies and Services

Establishment Expenditure

Other

Premises and Plant

Salaries and Wages

Education & Training

Capital Charges & Fixed Asset Impairment
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  Income and expenditure account for the year ended 31 March 2019 

   
 

 

Balance Sheet at 31 March 2019 

                   

 

2018/19 2017/18
£'000 £'000

Revenue from patient care activities 234,735             225,136             
Other operating revenue 18,299               18,827               
Operating expenses (276,533)           (260,388)           
OPERATING SURPLUS (23,499) (16,425) 
Profit/(Loss) on disposal of asset (160)                   1,329                 
SURPLUS BEFORE INTEREST (23,659) (15,096) 
Interest receivable 61 24
Other Gains and (Losses) -                      -                      
Finance Costs (10,260)              (9,147)                
SURPLUS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (33,858) (24,219) 
Public Dividend Capital Dividend Payable - -
RETAINED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR (33,858) (24,219) 

*Impairments (excluding IFRIC 12 impairments) 6,186                 1,234                 
Adjustments in respect of donated asset reserve elimination 131                     (282)                   
Adjustments in respect of 16/17 CQUIN -                      (814)                   
Adjusted retained surplus/(deficit) (27,541)              (24,081)              

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
£'000 £'000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 139,153             138,291             
Intangible assets 1,277                 1,311                 
Trade and other receivables 778                     1,054                 

141,208             140,656             
CURRENT ASSETS
Stock and work in progress 2,362                 2,277                 
Trade and other receivables 16,532               17,214               
Cash and cash equivalents 4,186                 2,277                 

23,080               21,768               
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables (29,461)              (29,292)              
Borrowings (15,590)              (10,782)              
Other Liabilities (1,445)                (1,411)                
Provision for liabilities and charges (117)                   (431)                   
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (23,533)              (20,148)              
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 117,675             120,508             

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables -                      -                      
Borrowings (202,939)           (177,817)           
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES -                      -                      
TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED (85,264)              (57,309)              
FINANCED BY:
Public dividend capital 64,190               58,318               
Revaluation reserve 15,925               16,023               
Retained earnings (165,379)           (131,650)           
TOTAL CAPITAL AND RESERVES (85,264)              (57,309)              
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  Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2019 

                                  

 
 
 
  

2018/19 2017/18

£'000 £'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash inflow from operating activities (20,635) (19,812) 
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE

Interest received 55           24           

(20,580) (19,788) 
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

(Payments) to acquire tangible fixed assets (12,603) (8,916)    
(Payments) to acquire intangible fixed assets (267)       (811)       
Receipts from sale of tangible fixed assets -         2,019     
Net cash (outflow) from capital expenditure (12,870) (7,708)    

DIVIDENDS PAID -         -         

(33,450) (27,496) 
MANAGEMENT OF LIQUID RESOURCES

(Purchase) of current asset investments -         -         
Sale of current asset investments -         -         
Net cash inflow from management of liquid resources -         -         
Net cash inflow before financing (33,450) (27,496) 

FINANCING

Public dividend capital received 5,872     2,000     
Public dividend capital repaid -         -         
Other loans received 33,184   29,557   
Other loans repaid -         -         
Capital element of finance leases and PFI (3,697)    (3,489)    
Capital grants and other capital receipts -         -         
Net cash (outflow) from financing 35,359   28,068   

Increase (reduction) in cash 1,909 572

Opening cash holding 2,277 1,705

Closing cash holding 4,186 2,277

Net cash inflow from returns on investments and servicing of 
finance

Net cash inflow before management of liquid resources and 
financing
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 Better Payment Practice Code 

The Trust is a member of the ‘Better Payment Practice Code’ in dealing with our suppliers. The code sets out the following 
principles: 
 

o agree payment terms at the outset of a deal and stick to them 
o pay bills in accordance with any contract agreed with the supplier or as agreed by law i.e. the code requires the Trust to 

pay    
o all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt 
o tell suppliers without delay when an invoice is contested and settle disputes quickly 

 
 

During 2018/19 the percentage of bills paid within target was: 
 

o number of bills: 4% 
o value of bills: 15% 

 

  

                   

 

 
  

2018/19 2017/18
Number Number

Better payment practice code-measure of compliance
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 64,650          57,119          
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid within the target 15,346          11,024          
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within the target 23.7% 19.3%

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 1,759            1,394             
Total NHS trade invoices paid within the target 68                  179                
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within the target 3.9% 12.8%

2018/19 2017/18
Value Value

 £000's  £000's 
Better payment practice code-measure of compliance
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 110,086        93,330          
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid within the target 53,859          40,749          
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within the target 48.9% 43.7%

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 12,566          14,815          

Total NHS trade invoices paid within the target 1,939            3,228             
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within the target 15.4% 21.8%
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

2018/19 2017/18

Note £000 £000

Operating income from patient care activities 3 234,735 225,136 

Other operating income 4 18,299 18,827 

Operating expenses 6, 8 (276,533) (260,388)

Operating surplus/(deficit) from continuing operations (23,499) (16,425)

Finance income 11 61 24 

Finance expenses 12 (10,260) (9,147)

PDC dividends payable - - 

Net finance costs (10,199) (9,123)

Other gains / (losses) 13 (160) 1,329 

Share of profit / (losses) of associates / joint arrangements - - 

Gains / (losses) arising from transfers by absorption - - 

Corporation tax expense - - 

Surplus / (deficit) for the year from continuing operations (33,858) (24,219)

Surplus / (deficit) on discontinued operations and the gain / (loss) on disposal 

of discontinued operations 14 - - 

Surplus / (deficit) for the year (33,858) (24,219)

Other comprehensive income

Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:

Impairments 7 - - 

Revaluations 17 31 3,604 

Share of comprehensive income from associates and joint ventures - - 

Fair value gains/(losses) on equity instruments designated at fair value 

through OCI - - 

Other recognised gains and losses - - 

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit pension scheme liability / asset - - 

Other reserve movements - - 

May be reclassified to income and expenditure when certain conditions are met:

Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets mandated at fair value through 

OCI - - 

Recycling gains/(losses) on disposal of financial assets mandated at fair 

value through OCI - - 

Foreign exchange gains / (losses) recognised directly in OCI - - 

Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the period (33,827) (20,615)

Adjusted financial performance (control total basis):

Surplus / (deficit) for the period (33,858) (24,219)

Remove impact of consolidating NHS charitable fund - - 

Remove net impairments not scoring to the Departmental expenditure limit 6,186 1,234 

Remove (gains) / losses on transfers by absorption - - 

Remove I&E impact of capital grants and donations 131 (282)

Prior period adjustments - - 

Remove non-cash element of on-SoFP pension costs - - 

CQUIN risk reserve adjustment (2017/18 only) - (814)

Remove 2016/17 post audit STF reallocation (2017/18 only) - - 

Adjusted financial performance surplus / (deficit) (27,541) (24,081)

Other gains/(losses) records a restatement of the profit on disposal of assets.

A valuation exercise was undertaken on the newly completed Integrated Critical Care Unit (ICCU) which resulted in an 

impairment loss on the development of £6.186m.



Statement of Financial Position

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2018

Note £000 £000

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 14 1,277 1,311 

Property, plant and equipment 15 139,153 138,291 

Investment property - - 

Investments in associates and joint ventures - - 

Other investments / financial assets 20 - - 

Receivables 20 778 1,054 

Other assets - - 

Total non-current assets 141,208 140,656 

Current assets

Inventories 19 2,362 2,277 

Receivables 20 16,532 17,214 

Other investments / financial assets 20 - - 

Other assets - - 

Non-current assets held for sale / assets in disposal groups - - 

Cash and cash equivalents 21 4,186 2,277 

Total current assets 23,080 21,768 

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 22 (29,461) (29,292)

Borrowings 24 (15,590) (10,782)

Other financial liabilities 23 - - 

Provisions 25 (117) (431)

Other liabilities 23 (1,445) (1,411)

Liabilities in disposal groups - - 

Total current liabilities (46,613) (41,916)

Total assets less current liabilities 117,675 120,508 

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 22 - - 

Borrowings 24 (202,939) (177,817)

Other financial liabilities - - 

Provisions 25 - - 

Other liabilities 23 - - 

Total non-current liabilities (202,939) (177,817)

Total assets employed (85,264) (57,309)

Financed by 

Public dividend capital 64,190 58,318 

Revaluation reserve 15,925 16,023 

Financial assets reserve - - 

Other reserves - - 

Merger reserve - - 

Income and expenditure reserve (165,379) (131,650)

Total taxpayers' equity (85,264) (57,309)

The notes on the following pages  form part of these accounts.

Name Richard Beeken

Position Chief Executive

Date 23 May 2019

trevor.baker
Stamp



Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2019

Public 

dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Financial 

assets 

reserve*

Other 

reserves

Merger 

reserve

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' equity at 1 April 2018 - brought forward 58,318 16,023 - - - (131,650) (57,309)

Impact of implementing IFRS 15 on 1 April 2018 - - - - - - - 

Impact of implementing IFRS 9 on 1 April 2018 - - - - - - - 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year - - - - - (33,858) (33,858)

Transfers by absorption: transfers between reserves - - - - - - - 

Transfer from revaluation reserve to income and expenditure reserve for 

impairments arising from consumption of economic benefits - - - - - - - 

Other transfers between reserves - (129) - - - 129 - 

Impairments - - - - - - - 

Revaluations - 31 - - - - 31 

Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets - - - - - - - 

Share of comprehensive income from associates and joint ventures - - - - - - - 

Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets mandated at fair value 

through OCI - - - - - - - 

Fair value gains/(losses) on equity instruments designated at fair value 

through OCI - - - - - - - 

Recycling gains/(losses) on disposal of financial assets mandated at fair 

value through OCI - - - - - - - 

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) recognised directly in OCI - - - - - - - 

Other recognised gains and losses - - - - - - - 

Remeasurements of the defined net benefit pension scheme 

liability/asset - - - - - - - 

Public dividend capital received 5,872 - - - - - 5,872 

Public dividend capital repaid - - - - - - - 

Public dividend capital written off - - - - - - - 

Other movements in public dividend capital in year - - - - - - - 

Other reserve movements - - - - - - - 

Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2019 64,190 15,925 - - - (165,379) (85,264)

* Following the implementation of IFRS 9 from 1 April 2018, the 'Available for sale investment reserve' is now renamed as the 'Financial assets reserve'

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

Public 

dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Available for 

sale 

investment 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Merger 

reserve

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' equity at 1 April 2017 - brought forward 56,318 12,752 - - - (107,764) (38,694)

Prior period adjustment - - - - - - - 

Taxpayers' equity at 1 April 2017 - restated 56,318 12,752 - - - (107,764) (38,694)

Surplus/(deficit) for the year - - - - - (24,219) (24,219)

Transfers by absorption: transfers between reserves - - - - - - - 

Transfer from revaluation reserve to income and expenditure reserve for 

impairments arising from consumption of economic benefits - - - - - - - 

Other transfers between reserves - (145) - - - 145 - 

Impairments - - - - - - - 

Revaluations - 3,604 - - - - 3,604 

Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets - (188) - - - 188 - 

Share of comprehensive income from associates and joint ventures - - - - - - - 

Fair value gains/(losses) on available-for-sale financial investments - - - - - - - 

Recycling gains/(losses) on available-for-sale financial investments - - - - - - - 

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) recognised directly in OCI - - - - - - - 

Other recognised gains and losses - - - - - - - 

Remeasurements of the defined net benefit pension scheme 

liability/asset - - - - - - - 

Public dividend capital received 2,000 - - - - - 2,000 

Public dividend capital repaid - - - - - - - 

Public dividend capital written off - - - - - - - 

Other movements in public dividend capital  in year - - - - - - - 

Other reserve movements - - - - - - - 

Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2018 58,318 16,023 - - - (131,650) (57,309)



Information on reserves

Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the 

time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. Additional PDC may also be issued to trusts by the 

Department of Health and Social Care. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable to the 

Department of Health as the public dividend capital dividend.

Revaluation reserve

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the 

extent that, they reverse impairments previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in 

operating income. Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to the 

extent that a previous gain was recognised unless the downward movement represents a clear consumption of economic 

benefit or a reduction in service potential.

Financial assets reserve / Available-for-sale investment reserve

This reserve comprises changes in the fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income.  When these instruments are derecognised, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised as other 

comprehensive income or expenditure are recycled to income or expenditure, unless the assets are equity instruments 

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income as a result of irrevivable election at recognition.

Income and expenditure reserve

The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the trust.



Statement of Cash Flows
2018/19 2017/18

Note £000 £000 

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating surplus / (deficit) (23,499) (16,425)

Non-cash income and expense:

Depreciation and amortisation 6 6,166 6,393 

Net impairments 7 6,186 1,234 

Income recognised in respect of capital donations 4 (92) (475)

Amortisation of PFI deferred credit - - 

Non-cash movements in on-SoFP pension liability - - 

(Increase) / decrease in receivables and other assets 964 (2,546)

(Increase) / decrease in inventories (85) (170)

Increase / (decrease) in payables and other liabilties 299 1,277 

Increase / (decrease) in provisions (314) 11 

Tax (paid) / received - - 

Operating cash flows from discontinued operations - - 

Other movements in operating cash flows - - 

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (10,375) (10,701)

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 55 24 

Purchase and sale of financial assets / investments - - 

Purchase of intangible assets (267) (811)

Sales of intangible assets - - 

Purchase of property, plant, equipment and investment property (12,603) (8,916)

Sales of property, plant, equipment and investment property - 2,019 

Receipt of cash donations to purchase capital assets - - 

Prepayment of PFI capital contributions - - 

Investing cash flows of discontinued operations - - 

Cash movement from acquisitions / disposals of subsidiaries - - 

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (12,815) (7,684)

Cash flows from financing activities

Public dividend capital received 5,872 2,000 

Public dividend capital repaid - - 

Movement on loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 33,184 29,557 

Movement on other loans - - 

Other capital receipts - - 

Capital element of finance lease rental payments - - 

Capital element of PFI, LIFT and other service concession payments (3,697) (3,489)

Interest on loans (2,193) (1,311)

Other interest - - 

Interest paid on finance lease liabilities - - 

Interest paid on PFI, LIFT and other service concession obligations (8,067) (7,800)

PDC dividend (paid) / refunded - - 

Financing cash flows of discontinued operations - - 

Cash flows from (used in) other financing activities - - 

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 25,099 18,957 

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,909 572 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - brought forward 2,277 1,705 

Prior period adjustments - 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - restated 2,277 1,705 

Cash and cash equivalents transferred under absorption accounting 34 - - 

Unrealised gains / (losses) on foreign exchange - - 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 21 4,186 2,277 



Notes to the Accounts

Note 1 Accounting policies and other information

Note 1.1 Basis of preparation

The Department of Health and Social Care has directed that the financial statements of the Trust shall meet the 

accounting requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual (GAM), which shall be 

agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 

GAM 2018/19 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the GAM follow 

International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as 

determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the GAM permits a 

choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy that is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of 

the Trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted are described 

below. These have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

Note 1.1.1 Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of 

property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

Note 1.2 Going concern

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial statements do not contain the adjustments 

that would result if the company was unable to continue as a going concern.

The Trust has recorded revenue deficits in the four financial years prior to 2018/19. The Board are committed to 

addressing the current deficit position and with the financial support of the Department of Health have agreed a break-

even plan for 2019/20. To deliver the break-even plan the Trust will have access to Financial Recovery Funding 

(£11.5m) and to Provider Sustainability Funding (£5.5m) in the financial year. The 2019/20 plan also relies on the Trust 

achieving a cost improvement programme of £8.5m.  There is therefore a material uncertainty that casts significant 

doubt upon the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. The Board recognises there is risk associated with the 

achievement of cost improvement targets but points to recent performance in delivery of savings, £11m in 2017/18 and 

£11.1 in 2018/19. The planned target for 2019/20 is therefore considered achievable. The Board of Directors have 

therefore given careful consideration to the Going Concern principle when preparing these accounts, and the planned 

revenue break-even for 2019/20 supports this decision.

The Trust retains access to the Uncommitted Interim Revenue Support Facility and cash supporting loans are agreed 

monthly with the Department of Health dependent on cash requirements.

The Board has concluded that although there is an element of  material uncertainty, the Directors have a reasonable 

expectation that the Trust has access to sufficient resources, including revenue allocations and capital loan funding, to 

continue to provide services to patients for the foreseeable future. For this reason the Board has adopted the going 

concern basis when preparing these accounts. 

Note 1.3 Interests in other entities

The Trust has no interest in other entities.

Note 1.4 Revenue from contracts with customers

Where income is derived from contracts with customers, it is accounted for under IFRS 15. The GAM expands the 

definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations which enables an entity to receive cash or another financial 

asset that is not classified as a tax by the Office of National Statistics (ONS). As directed by the GAM, the transition to 

IFRS 15 in 2018/19 has been completed in accordance with paragraph C3 (b) of the Standard: applying the Standard 

retrospectively but recognising the cumulative effects at the date of initial application (1 April 2018). 

Revenue in respect of goods/services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by 

transferring promised goods/services to the customer and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated 

to those performance obligations. At the year end, the Trust accrues income relating to performance obligations satisfied 

in that year. Where the Trust’s entitlement to consideration for those goods or services is unconditional a contract 

receivable will be recognised. Where entitlement to consideration is conditional on a further factor other than the 

passage of time, a contract asset will be recognised. Where consideration received or receivable relates to a 

performance obligation that is to be satisfied in a future period, the income is deferred and recognised as a contract 

liability. 

The Trust receives payment of its contract activity income monthly and is adjusted where necessary following a forecast 

of performance which is agreed at the financial year-end. The income is invoiced and recognised in the accounts and 

may potentially have minor revisions following validation through the national contract reconciliation process. 



Revenue from NHS contracts

The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners for health care services. A performance 

obligation relating to delivery of a spell of health care is generally satisfied over time as healthcare is received and 

consumed simultaneously by the customer as the Trust performs it. The customer in such a contract is the 

commissioner, but the customer benefits as services are provided to their patient. Even where a contract could be 

broken down into separate performance obligations, healthcare generally aligns with paragraph 22(b) of the Standard 

entailing a delivery of a series of goods or services that are substantially the same and have a similar pattern of 

transfer. At the year end, the Trust accrues income relating to activity delivered in that year, where a patient care spell 

is incomplete.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that collection of consideration is probable. Where contract challenges from 

commissioners are expected to be upheld, the Trust reflects this in the transaction price and derecognises the relevant 

portion of income.

 Where the Trust is aware of a penalty based on contractual performance, the Trust reflects this in the transaction price 

for its recognition of revenue. Revenue is reduced by the value of the penalty.

The Trust does not receive income where a patient is readmitted within 30 days of discharge from a previous planned 

stay. This is considered an additional performance obligation to be satisfied under the original transaction price. An 

estimate of readmissions is made at the year end this portion of revenue is deferred as a contract liability.

The Trust receives income from commissioners under Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) schemes. 

The Trust agrees schemes with its commissioner but they affect how care is provided to patients. That is, the CQUIN 

payments are not considered distinct performance obligations in their own right; instead they form part of the 

transaction price for performance obligations under the contract.

Revenue from research contracts

Where research contracts fall under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised as and when performance obligations are 

satisfied. For some contracts, it is assessed that the revenue project constitutes one performance obligation over the 

course of the multi-year contract. In these cases it is assessed that the Trust’s interim performance does not create an 

asset with alternative use for the Trust, and the Trust has an enforceable right to payment for the performance 

completed to date. It is therefore considered that the performance obligation is satisfied over time, and the Trust 

recognises revenue each year over the course of the contract.

NHS injury cost recovery scheme

The Trust receives income under the NHS injury cost recovery scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured 

individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid, for instance by an insurer. The Trust 

recognises the income when it receives notification from the Department of Work and Pension's Compensation 

Recovery Unit, has completed the NHS2 form and confirmed there are no discrepancies with the treatment. The income 

is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less an allowance for unsuccessful 

compensation claims and doubtful debts in line with IFRS 9 requirements of measuring expected credit losses over the 

lifetime of the asset.

Note 1.4.1 Revenue grants and other contributions to expenditure

Government grants are grants from government bodies other than income from commissioners or trusts for the 

provision of services. Where a grant is used to fund revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income to match that expenditure. 

The value of the benefit received when accessing funds from the the Government's apprenticeship service is 

recognised as income at the point of receipt of the training service. Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited 

training provider, the corresponding notional expense is also recognised at the point of recognition for the benefit.

Note 1.4.2 Other income

Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of sale have been met, and 

is measured as the sums due under the sale contract.

Note 1.5 Expenditure on employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments such as social security costs and the apprenticeship levy are 

recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned 

but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that 

employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following period.



Pension costs 

NHS Pension Scheme

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, 

defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of 

Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed in a way that would enable employers to identify 

their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as though it is a 

defined contribution scheme.

Employer's pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due. 

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is 

due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time 

the trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment. 

Note 1.6 Expenditure on other goods and services

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is 

measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except where 

it results in the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment. 

Note 1.7 Property, plant and equipment

Note 1.7.1 Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised where:    

• it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes

• it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust

• it is expected to be used for more than one financial year 

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably

• the item has cost of at least £5,000, or

• collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have cost of more than £250, where the 

assets are functionally interdependent, had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have similar 

disposal dates and are under single managerial control.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, 

eg, plant and equipment, then these components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful 

economic lives.

Note 1.7.2 Measurement

Valuation

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to 

acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 

operating in the manner intended by management.

All assets are measured subsequently at valuation. Assets which are held for their service potential and are in use (ie 

operational assets used to deliver either front line services or back office functions) are measured at their current value 

in existing use. Assets that were most recently held for their service potential but are surplus with no plan to bring them 

back into use are measured at fair value where there are no restrictions on sale at the reporting date and where they do 

not meet the definitions of investment properties or assets held for sale.

Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying values are 

not materially different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period. Current values in existing 

use are determined as follows:

   •  	Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use

   •  	Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost on a modern equivalent asset basis.

Assets held at depreciated replacement cost have been valued on an alternative site basis where this would meet the 

location requirements of the services being provided.

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment 

loss. Cost includes professional fees and, where capitalised in accordance with IAS 23, borrowings costs. Assets are 

revalued and depreciation commences when the assets are brought into use.



IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and fittings, and plant and machinery that are held for operational use are 

valued at depreciated historic cost where these assets have short useful lives or low values or both, as this is not 

considered to be materially different from current value in existing use. 

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an increase in the carrying 

amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future economic benefits or service potential deriving from the 

cost incurred to replace a component of such item will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be determined 

reliably. Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it meets the criteria for 

recognition above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised. Other expenditure that does not generate 

additional future economic benefits or service potential, such as repairs and maintenance, is charged to the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred.

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful lives in a manner consistent with the 

consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not 

depreciated. 

Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as ‘held for sale’ cease to be depreciated upon the 

reclassification. Assets in the course of construction and residual interests in off-Statement of Financial Position PFI 

contract assets are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the trust, respectively. 

Revaluation gains and losses

Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse a 

revaluation decrease that has previously been recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in 

operating income.

Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an available balance for the asset 

concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses. 

Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an 

item of ‘other comprehensive income’.

Impairments

In accordance with the GAM, impairments that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefits or of service 

potential in the asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve 

to the income and expenditure reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating 

expenses; and (ii) the balance in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment.

An impairment that arises from a clear consumption of economic benefit or of service potential is reversed when, and to 

the extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operating 

expenditure to the extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the impairment had never 

been recognised. Any remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the original 

impairment, a transfer was made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is 

transferred back to the revaluation reserve when the impairment reversal is recognised.

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ are treated as revaluation gains.

7 Note 1.7.3 De-recognition

Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘held for sale’ once all of the following criteria are met:

• the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms which are usual and customary 

for such sales;

• the sale must be highly probable ie:         

- management are committed to a plan to sell the asset

- an active programme has begun to find a buyer and complete the sale

- the asset is being actively marketed at a reasonable price

- the sale is expected to be completed within 12 months of the date of classification as ‘held for sale’ and

- the actions needed to complete the plan indicate it is unlikely that the plan will be abandoned or significant 

changes made to it.

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their ‘fair value less 

costs to sell’.  Depreciation ceases to be charged. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale contract conditions 

have been met.

Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as ‘held for sale’ 

and instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset’s useful life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when 

scrapping or demolition occurs.



7 Note 1.7.4  Donated and grant funded assets 

8 Note 1.7.5  Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) transactions  

8 Note 1.7.6  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

Min life Max life

Years Years

Land - - 

Buildings, excluding dwellings 1 62 

Dwellings 1 20 

Plant & machinery 1 15 

Transport equipment 1 7 

Information technology 1 10 

Furniture & fittings 1 10 

8 Note 1.8 Intangible assets 

8 Note 1.8.1 Recognition 

Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt. The 

donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor has imposed a condition that the future 

economic benefits embodied in the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the 

donation/grant is deferred within liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition 

has not yet been met.

The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as other items of property, 

plant and equipment. 

PFI and LIFT transactions which meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a service concession, as interpreted in HM Treasury’s 

FReM , are accounted for as ‘on-Statement of Financial Position’ by the trust. In accordance with IAS 17, the underlying 

assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, together with an equivalent finance lease liability. Subsequently, 

the assets are accounted for as property, plant and equipment and/or intangible assets as appropriate.

The annual contract payments are apportioned between the repayment of the liability, a finance cost, the charges for 

services and lifecycle replacement of components of the asset. The element of the annual unitary payment increase due 

to cumulative indexation is treated as contingent rent and is expensed as incurred. 

The service charge is recognised in operating expenses and the finance cost is charged to finance costs in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset. The range of useful lives are shown in 

the table below:

Finance-leased assets (including land) are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life or the lease term, unless the 

trust expects to acquire the asset at the end of the lease term in which case the assets are depreciated in the same 

manner as owned assets above.

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold separately from 

the rest of the trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is 

probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust and where the cost of the 

asset can be measured reliably. 

Internally generated intangible assets

Internally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and similar items are not capitalised as 

intangible assets.

Expenditure on research is not capitalised.

Expenditure on development is capitalised only where all of the following can be demonstrated:

• the project is technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an intangible asset for sale or use

• the trust intends to complete the asset and sell or use it

• the trust has the ability to sell or use the asset

• how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic or service delivery benefits, eg, the presence of a 

market for it or its output, or where it is to be used for internal use, the usefulness of the asset;

• adequate financial, technical and other resources are available to the trust to complete the development and sell or use 

the asset and

• the trust can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the asset during development.



8 Note 1.8.2 Measurement 

8 Note 1.8.3 Useful economic life of intangible assets 

Min life Max life

Years Years

Information technology - - 

Development expenditure - - 

Websites - - 

Software licences 1 10 

Licences & trademarks - - 

Patents - - 

Other (purchased) - - 

Goodwill - - 

9 Note 1.9 Inventories 

# Note 1.10 Investment properties

The Trust does not have investment properties.

# Note 1.11 Cash and cash equivalents

# Note 1.12 Carbon Reduction Commitment scheme (CRC)

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 

hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily 

convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on 

demand and that form an integral part of the Trust’s cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded 

at current values.

The CRC scheme is a mandatory cap and trade scheme for non-transport CO2 emissions. The trust is registered with 

the CRC scheme, and is therefore required to surrender to the Government an allowance for every tonne of CO2 it emits 

during the financial year. A liability and related expense is recognised in respect of this obligation as CO2 emissions are 

made.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is measured using the 

weighted average cost method.

Software

Software which is integral to the operation of hardware, eg an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item 

of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of hardware, eg application software, is 

capitalised as an intangible asset.

Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create, produce and 

prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequently intangible assets are measured at current value in existing use. Where no active market exists, intangible 

assets are valued at the lower of depreciated replacement cost and the value in use where the asset is income 

generating. Revaluations gains and losses and impairments are treated in the same manner as for property, plant and 

equipment. An intangible asset which is surplus with no plan to bring it back into use is valued at fair value under IFRS 

13, if it does not meet the requirements of IAS 40 of IFRS 5.

Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or “fair value less costs to sell”.

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of 

economic or service delivery benefits.

Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset.  The range of useful lives are shown in 

the table below:



# Note 1.13 Financial assets and financial liabilities

# Note 1.13.1 Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities arise where the Trust is party to the contractual provisions of a financial 

instrument, and as a result has a legal right to receive or a legal obligation to pay cash or another financial instrument. 

The GAM expands the definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations which give rise to arrangements that 

in all other respects would be a financial instrument and do not give rise to transactions classified as a tax by ONS.

This includes the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in 

accordance with the Trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage requirements and are recognised when, and to the extent 

which, performance occurs, ie, when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.

# Note 1.13.2 Classification and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus or minus directly attributable transaction 

costs except where the asset or liability is not measured at fair value through income and expenditure. Fair value is taken 

as the transaction price, or otherwise determined by reference to quoted market prices or valuation techniques.

Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance leases are recognised 

and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases described below.

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are those held with the objective of collecting contractual cash 

flows and where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes cash equivalents, contract and 

other receivables, trade and other payables, rights and obligations under lease arrangements and loans receivable and 

payable.

After initial recognition, these financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest method less any impairment (for financial assets). The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 

estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the 

gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Interest revenue or expense is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial 

asset or amortised cost of a financial liability and recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and a financing 

income or expense.  In the case of loans held from the Department of Health and Social Care, the effective interest rate 

is the nominal rate of interest charged on the loan. 

Impairment of financial assets

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost including lease receivables, contract receivables and contract assets 

or assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the Trust recognises an allowance for expected 

credit losses. 

The Trust adopts the simplified approach to impairment for contract and other receivables, contract assets and lease 

receivables, measuring expected losses as at an amount equal to lifetime expected losses. For other financial assets, the 

loss allowance is initially measured at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses (stage 1) and subsequently at 

an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk assessed for the financial asset significantly increases 

(stage 2).

For financial assets that have become credit impaired since initial recognition (stage 3), expected credit losses at the 

reporting date are measured as the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the present value of 

estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. 

Expected losses are charged to operating expenditure within the Statement of Comprehensive Income and reduce the 

net carrying value of the financial asset in the Statement of Financial Position.

# Note 1.13.3 Derecognition

Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or the 

Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.



# Note 1.14 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the 

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

# Note 1.14.1 The trust as lessee 

Finance leases

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the trust, the asset is recorded as 

property, plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is the 

lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using the interest 

rate implicit in the lease. 

The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is accounted for an item 

of property plant and equipment. 

The annual rental charge is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to achieve a constant 

rate of finance over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged to Finance Costs in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income. The lease liability, is de-recognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives 

are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease 

term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases of land and buildings

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the 

classification for each is assessed separately. 

# Note 1.14.2 The trust as lessor

Finance leases

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Trust's net investment 

in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the 

trust's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs 

incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 

recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

# Note 1.15 Provisions 

The Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or amount; for 

which it is probable that there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be made of 

the amount. The amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the resources required 

to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows 

are discounted using the discount rates published and mandated by HM Treasury.  

Clinical negligence costs

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution, 

which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all 

clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried 

by NHS Resolution on behalf of the trust is disclosed at note 25.1 but is not recognised in the Trust’s accounts. 

Non-clinical risk pooling 

The trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling 

schemes under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution and in return receives assistance with the 

costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any “excesses” payable in respect of particular claims 

are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises. 



16 Note 1.16 Contingencies

Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or more future 

events not wholly within the entity’s control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed where an inflow of economic 

benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised unless the probability of a transfer of economic benefits is likely. 

Contingent liabilities are defined as:

• possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control; or

• present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will arise 

or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

17 Note 1.17 Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the 

time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. HM Treasury has determined that PDC is not a financial 

instrument within the meaning of IAS 32. 

At any time, the Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the trust. PDC is 

recorded at the value received.

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is 

calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the trust during the 

financial year. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for 

(i) donated assets (including lottery funded assets), 

(ii) average daily cash balances held with the Government Banking Services (GBS) and National Loans Fund (NLF) 

deposits, excluding cash balances held in GBS accounts that relate to a short-term working capital facility, and 

(iii) any PDC dividend balance receivable or payable. 

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health and Social Care (as the issuer of PDC), the 

dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the 

annual accounts. The dividend thus calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result the 

audit of the annual accounts.

18 Note 1.18 Value added tax 

Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on 

purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the 

capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are 

stated net of VAT.

19 Note 1.19 Corporation tax

The Trust has determined that it is has no corporation tax liability. 

20 Note 1.20 Foreign exchange 

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust's functional and presentational currency is sterling.  Transactions denominated in a 

foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the dates of the transactions. 

21 Note 1.21 Third party assets 

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the 

trust has no beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed in a separate note to the accounts in accordance 

with the requirements of HM Treasury’s FReM . 

22 Note 1.22 Losses and special payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health 

service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to 

special control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which 

govern the way that individual cases are handled. Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional 

headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance 

cover had the trust not been bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue 

expenditure).

However the losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and compensations register which 

reports on an accrual basis with the exception of provisions for future losses.



23 Note 1.23 Gifts

Gifts are items that are voluntarily donated, with no preconditions and without the expectation of any return. Gifts include 

all transactions economically equivalent to free and unremunerated transfers, such as the loan of an asset for its 

expected useful life, and the sale or lease of assets at below market value.

24 Note 1.24 Future Transfers of functions to other NHS bodies

The Trust has entered into a partnership agreement with Wolverhampton, Dudley and Sandwell & West Birmingham 

acute hospital trusts for the provision of pathology services. The agreement will eventually lead to a capital development 

at Wolverhampton hospital as the main service hub with minor facitlities retained at other hospitals. Staffing transfers 

have been actioned in preparation for the planned future service structure. All physical assets remain with the Trust at 

present.

25 Note 1.25 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The are no critical judgements in the preparation of the accounts.

26 Note 1.26 Sources of estimation uncertainty

The is no estimation issue in the preparation of the accounts.

27 Note 1.27 Early adoption of standards, amendments and interpretations

No new accounting standards or revisions to existing standards have been early adopted in 2018/19.

28 Note 1.28 Standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective or adopted

This is not applicable to the accounts for 2018/19.



Note 2 Operating Segments

The Trust has one operating segment, which is the provision of healthcare.

Note 3 Operating income from patient care activities

All income from patient care activities relates to contract income recognised in line with accounting policy 1.4.1

Note 3.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature) 2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Acute services 

Elective income 26,986 24,355 

Non elective income 71,211 69,403 

First outpatient income 18,747 18,158 

Follow up outpatient income 9,547 8,778 

A & E income 11,237 10,624 

High cost drugs income from commissioners (excluding pass-through costs) 12,669 13,386 

Other NHS clinical income 39,209 40,653 

Community services income from CCGs and NHS England 30,824 30,116 

Income from other sources (e.g. local authorities) 10,150 8,585 

All services

Private patient income 25 5 

Agenda for Change pay award central funding 2,843 - 

Other clinical income 1,287 1,073 

Total income from activities 234,735 225,136 

Note 3.2 Income from patient care activities (by source)

Income from patient care activities received from: 2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

NHS England 18,536 22,558 

Clinical commissioning groups 200,772 192,915 

Department of Health and Social Care 2,843 - 

Other NHS providers 1,102 - 

NHS other - - 

Local authorities 10,170 8,585 

Non-NHS: private patients 25 5 

Non-NHS: overseas patients (chargeable to patient) 177 57 

Injury cost recovery scheme 1,086 763 

Non NHS: other 24 253 

Total income from activities 234,735 225,136 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations 234,735 225,136 

Related to discontinued operations - - 



3 Note 3.3 Overseas visitors (relating to patients charged directly by the provider)

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Income recognised this year 177 57 

Cash payments received in-year 40 17 

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables - 44 

Amounts written off in-year - - 

4 Note 4 Other operating income

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Other operating income from contracts with customers:

Research and development (contract) 197 232 

Education and training (excluding notional apprenticeship levy income) 7,578 9,054 

Non-patient care services to other bodies 4,381 4,545 

Provider sustainability / sustainability and transformation fund income (PSF / STF) 2,153 - 

Income in respect of employee benefits accounted on a gross basis 392 388 

Other contract income 3,202 3,775 

Other non-contract operating income

Research and development (non-contract) - - 

Education and training - notional income from apprenticeship fund - 86 

Receipt of capital grants and donations 92 475 

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure - - 

Support from the Department of Health and Social Care for mergers - - 

Rental revenue from finance leases - - 

Rental revenue from operating leases 304 272 

Amortisation of PFI deferred income / credits - - 

Other non-contract income - - 

Total other operating income 18,299 18,827 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations 18,299 18,827 

Related to discontinued operations - - 

1 Note 5 Additional information on revenue from contracts with customers recognised in the period

2018/19

£000 

1,411 

Revenue recognised from performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous periods - 

Other income includes car parking income, IT recharges and other trading income.

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in within contract liabilities at the 

previous period end



Note 6 Operating expenses

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies 5,977 2,202 

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DHSC bodies 1,536 1,434 

Purchase of social care - - 

Staff and executive directors costs 179,269 173,686 

Remuneration of non-executive directors 77 84 

Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs costs) 18,865 17,754 

Supplies and services - general 3,646 3,451 

Drug costs (drugs inventory consumed and purchase of non-inventory drugs) 18,418 18,824 

Inventories written down 43 56 

Consultancy costs 1,730 2,267 

Establishment 3,299 3,466 

Premises 9,189 7,663 

Transport (including patient travel) 1,391 702 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 5,865 5,883 

Amortisation on intangible assets 301 510 

Net impairments 6,186 1,234 

Movement in credit loss allowance: contract receivables / contract assets 50 

Movement in credit loss allowance: all other receivables and investments - 319 

Increase/(decrease) in other provisions - - 

Change in provisions discount rate(s) - - 

Audit fees payable to the external auditor

audit services- statutory audit 64 48 

other auditor remuneration (external auditor only) 16 43 

Internal audit costs 93 144 

Clinical negligence 10,987 12,989 

Legal fees 125 134 

Insurance 223 179 

Research and development 395 - 

Education and training 1,358 980 

Rentals under operating leases 930 687 

Early retirements - - 

Redundancy - - 

Charges to operating expenditure for on-SoFP IFRIC 12 schemes (e.g. PFI / LIFT) 4,376 4,224 

Charges to operating expenditure for off-SoFP PFI / LIFT schemes - - 

Car parking & security 504 462 

Hospitality - - 

Losses, ex gratia & special payments 68 55 

Grossing up consortium arrangements - - 

Other services, eg external payroll - - 

Other 1,552 908 

Total 276,533 260,388 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations 276,533 260,388 

Related to discontinued operations - - 



Note 6.1 Other auditor remuneration

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor:

1. Audit of accounts of any associate of the trust - - 

2. Audit-related assurance services 16 43 

3. Taxation compliance services - - 

4. All taxation advisory services not falling within item 3 above - - 

5. Internal audit services - - 

6. All assurance services not falling within items 1 to 5 - - 

7. Corporate finance transaction services not falling within items 1 to 6 above - - 

8. Other non-audit services not falling within items 2 to 7 above - - 

Total 16 43 

Note 6.2 Limitation on auditor's liability

Note 7 Impairment of assets

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit resulting from:

Loss or damage from normal operations - - 

Over specification of assets - - 

Abandonment of assets in course of construction - - 

Unforeseen obsolescence - - 

Loss as a result of catastrophe - - 

Changes in market price - - 

Other 6,186 1,234 

Total net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit 6,186 1,234 

Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve - - 

Total net impairments 6,186 1,234 

There is no limitation on auditor's liability for external audit work carried out for the financial years 2018/19 or 2017/18.

The Trust completed the development of a new Integrated Critical Care Unit (ICCU) in year, replacing its outdated 

Intensive Care and High Depency Units. Folloinwg its completion, the Trust commissioned an independent valuation 

resulting in the recognition of an impairment loss( £6.186 million) agaisnt the oringal cost of the development.



Note 8 Employee benefits

2018/19 2017/18

Total Total

£000 £000 

Salaries and wages 141,809 137,035 

Social security costs 13,154 12,794 

Apprenticeship levy 652 636 

Employer's contributions to NHS pensions 15,818 15,718 

Pension cost - other - - 

Other post employment benefits - - 

Other employment benefits - - 

Termination benefits - - 

Temporary staff (including agency) 8,745 7,503 

Total gross staff costs 180,178 173,686 

Recoveries in respect of seconded staff - - 

Total staff costs 180,178 173,686 

Of which

Costs capitalised as part of assets - - 

Note 8.1 Retirements due to ill-health

During 2018/19 there was 1 early retirement from the trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health (4 in the year ended 31 

March 2018).  The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements is £21k (£298k in 2017/18).  

The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division.



Note 9 Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes.  Details of the benefits 

payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.  Both 

are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the 

direction of the Secretary of State for Health in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would 

enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is 

accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is 

taken as equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.  

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those 

that would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period 

between formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these 

follows:

 

a) Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s 

Department) as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting 

period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as 

providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 

2019, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2018, updated to 31 March 2019 with summary global member and 

accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM 

interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The Trust offers an additional defined workplace pension scheme, National Employment Savings Scheme (NEST), to 

which a minority of staff contribute.  

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part 

of the annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are 

published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

 

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking 

into account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and 

employers. 

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016. The 

results of this valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019. The Department of Health and 

Social Care have recently laid Scheme Regulations confirming that the employer contribution rate will increase to 

20.6% of pensionable pay from this date. 

 

The 2016 funding valuation was also expected to test the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap set 

following the 2012 valuation. Following a judgment from the Court of Appeal in December 2018 Government announced 

a pause to that part of the valuation process pending conclusion of the continuing legal process. 



# Note 10 Operating leases

# Note 10.1 Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust as a lessor

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Operating lease revenue

Minimum lease receipts 304 272 

Contingent rent - - 

Other - - 

Total 304 272 

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2018

£000 £000 

Future minimum lease receipts due: 

- not later than one year; 195 209 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 779 733 

- later than five years. 3,506 3,482 

Total 4,480 4,424 

# Note 10.2 Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust as a lessee

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Operating lease expense

Minimum lease payments 930 687 

Contingent rents - - 

Less sublease payments received - - 

Total 930 687 

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2018

£000 £000 

Future minimum lease payments due: 

- not later than one year; 935 710 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 284 286 

- later than five years. 181 241 

Total 1,400 1,237 

Future minimum sublease payments to be received - - 

The Trust has received rental income for use of the Urgent Care Centre and temporary accomodation for the homeless. 

The Trust has vehicle leases primarily relating to cars for employees working within community services. The employees 

have the option to renew their lease arrangment after 3 years. Employees do not have the option to purchase the vehicle 

at the end of the agreement.

This note discloses income generated in operating lease agreements where Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust is the lessor.

This note discloses costs and commitments incurred in operating lease arrangements where Walsall Healthcare NHS 

Trust is the lessee.



Note 11 Finance income

Finance income represents interest received on assets and investments in the period.

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Interest on bank accounts 61 24 

Interest income on finance leases - - 

Interest on other investments / financial assets - - 

Other finance income - - 

Total finance income 61 24 

Note 12 Finance expenditure

Finance expenditure represents interest and other charges involved in the borrowing of money.

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Interest expense:

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 2,193 1,347 

Other loans - - 

Overdrafts - - 

Finance leases - - 

Interest on late payment of commercial debt - - 

Main finance costs on PFI and LIFT schemes obligations 8,067 7,800 

Contingent finance costs on PFI and  LIFT scheme obligations - - 

Total interest expense 10,260 9,147 

Unwinding of discount on provisions - - 

Other finance costs - - 

Total finance costs 10,260 9,147 

Note 12.1 The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act 1998 / Public 

Contract Regulations 2015

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Total liability accruing in year under this legislation as a result of late payments 80 - 

Amounts included within interest payable arising from claims under this legislation - - 

Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation - - 

Note 13 Other gains / (losses)

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Gains on disposal of assets - 1,329 

Losses on disposal of assets (160) - 

Total gains / (losses) on disposal of assets (160) 1,329 

Gains / (losses) on foreign exchange - - 

Fair value gains / (losses) on investment properties - - 

Fair value gains / (losses) on financial assets / investments - - 

Fair value gains / (losses) on financial liabilities - - 

Recycling gains / (losses) on disposal of financial assets mandated as fair value 

through OCI - - 

Total other gains / (losses) (160) 1,329 

The loss on disposal refers to a restatement of the profit on the sale of buildings.



Note 14 Intangible assets - 2018/19

Software  

licences

Licences & 

trademarks Patents

Internally 

generated 

information 

technology

Development 

expenditure Goodwill Websites

Intangible 

assets under 

construction

Other 

(purchased) Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2018 - brought forward 7,622 - - - - - - - - 7,622 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - - 

Additions 267 - - - - - - - - 267 

Impairments - - - - - - - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - - - - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - - - - - - - 

Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - - - - - - - 

Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2019 7,889 - - - - - - - - 7,889 

Amortisation at 1 April 2018 - brought forward 6,311 - - - - - - - - 6,311 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - - 

Provided during the year 301 - - - - - - - - 301 

Impairments - - - - - - - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - - - - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - - - - - - - 

Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - - - - - - - 

Amortisation at 31 March 2019 6,612 - - - - - - - - 6,612 

Net book value at 31 March 2019 1,277 - - - - - - - - 1,277 

Net book value at 1 April 2018 1,311 - - - - - - - - 1,311 



Note 14.1 Intangible assets - 2017/18

Software  

licences

Licences & 

trademarks Patents

Internally 

generated 

information 

technology

Development 

expenditure Goodwill Websites

Intangible 

assets under 

construction

Other 

(purchased) Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2017 - as previously 

stated 6,811 - - - - - - - - 6,811 

Prior period adjustments - - - - - - - - - - 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2017 - restated 6,811 - - - - - - - - 6,811 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - - 

Additions 811 - - - - - - - - 811 

Impairments - - - - - - - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - - - - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - - - - - - - 

Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - - - - - - - 

Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2018 7,622 - - - - - - - - 7,622 

Amortisation at 1 April 2017 - as previously stated 5,801 - - - - - - - - 5,801 

Prior period adjustments - - - - - - - - - - 

Amortisation at 1 April 2017 - restated 5,801 - - - - - - - - 5,801 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - - 

Provided during the year 510 - - - - - - - - 510 

Impairments - - - - - - - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - - - - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - - - - - - - 

Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - - - - - - - 

Amortisation at 31 March 2018 6,311 - - - - - - - - 6,311 

Net book value at 31 March 2018 1,311 - - - - - - - - 1,311 

Net book value at 1 April 2017 1,010 - - - - - - - - 1,010 



Note 15 Property, plant and equipment - 2018/19

Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation/gross cost at 1 April 2018 - brought 

forward 8,185 130,835 2,652 6,891 39,120 253 9,738 761 198,435 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - 

Additions 140 5,926 274 5,280 877 - 201 184 12,882 

Impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Revaluations - 31 - - - - - - 31 

Reclassifications - - - - - - - - - 

Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - - - - - - 

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2019 8,325 136,792 2,926 12,171 39,997 253 9,939 945 211,348 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2018 - 

brought forward 69 18,796 1,329 - 30,387 253 8,775 535 60,144 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - 

Provided during the year - 3,511 142 - 1,752 - 431 29 5,865 

Impairments - 6,186 - - - - - - 6,186 

Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - - - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - - - - - - 

Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - - - - - - 

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2019 69 28,493 1,471 - 32,139 253 9,206 564 72,195 

Net book value at 31 March 2019 8,256 108,299 1,455 12,171 7,858 - 733 381 139,153 

Net book value at 1 April 2018 8,116 112,039 1,323 6,891 8,733 - 963 226 138,291 



Note 15.1 Property, plant and equipment - 2017/18

Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2017 - as 

previously stated 8,788 126,920 2,438 1,463 37,350 253 9,535 682 187,429 

Prior period adjustments - - - - - - - - - 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2017 - 

restated 8,788 126,920 2,438 1,463 37,350 253 9,535 682 187,429 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - 

Additions 3 1,773 70 5,428 1,770 - 203 79 9,326 

Impairments - (1,195) (39) - - - - - (1,234)

Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Revaluations (6) 3,337 273 - - - - - 3,604 

Reclassifications - - - - - - - - - 

Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition (600) - (90) - - - - - (690)

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2018 8,185 130,835 2,652 6,891 39,120 253 9,738 761 198,435 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2017 - as 

previously stated 69 15,321 1,259 - 28,602 253 8,265 492 54,261 

Prior period adjustments - - - - - - - - - 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2017 - 

restated 69 15,321 1,259 - 28,602 253 8,265 492 54,261 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - - 

Provided during the year - 3,475 70 - 1,785 - 510 43 5,883 

Impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Reversals of impairments - - - - - - - - - 

Revaluations - - - - - - - - - 

Reclassifications - - - - - - - - - 

Transfers to / from assets held for sale - - - - - - - - - 

Disposals / derecognition - - - - - - - - - 

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2018 69 18,796 1,329 - 30,387 253 8,775 535 60,144 

Net book value at 31 March 2018 8,116 112,039 1,323 6,891 8,733 - 963 226 138,291 

Net book value at 1 April 2017 8,719 111,599 1,179 1,463 8,748 - 1,270 190 133,168 



Note 15.2 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2018/19

Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2019

Owned - purchased 8,256 46,527 1,455 12,171 6,883 - 678 339 76,309 

Finance leased - - - - - - - - - 

On-SoFP PFI contracts and other service 

concession arrangements - 61,191 - - - - - - 61,191 

Off-SoFP PFI residual interests - - - - - - - - - 

Owned - government granted - - - - - - - - - 

Owned - donated - 581 - - 975 - 55 42 1,653 

NBV total at 31 March 2019 8,256 108,299 1,455 12,171 7,858 - 733 381 139,153 

Note 15.3 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2017/18

Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2018

Owned - purchased 8,116 49,323 1,323 6,891 7,593 - 959 187 74,392 

Finance leased - - - - - - - - - 

On-SoFP PFI contracts and other service 

concession arrangements - 62,013 - - - - - - 62,013 

Off-SoFP PFI residual interests - - - - - - - - - 

Owned - government granted - - - - - - - - - 

Owned - donated - 703 - - 1,140 - 4 39 1,886 

NBV total at 31 March 2018 8,116 112,039 1,323 6,891 8,733 - 963 226 138,291 



# Note 16 Donations of property, plant and equipment

# Note 17 Revaluations of property, plant and equipment

# Note 18 Disclosure of interests in other entities

# Note 19 Inventories

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2018

£000 £000 

Drugs 965 975 

Work In progress - - 

Consumables 1,155 1,133 

Energy 123 141 

Other 119 28 

Total inventories 2,362 2,277 

of which:

Held at fair value less costs to sell - - 

The Trust has no interest in other entities.

Inventories recognised in expenses for the year were £40,866k (2017/18: £39,429k).  Write-down of inventories 

recognised as expenses for the year were £43k (2017/18: £56k).

The Trust received cash donations totalling £92k from the donors to the Walsall Healthcare General Charitable Fund 

as a contribution to support the purchase of a equipment.

During the year the Trust completed the development of a new Integrated Critical care Unit, which was subsequently 

valued by an independent valuer using the depreciated replacement cost on a modern equivalent asset (MEA) basis. 

The impact of the valuation resulting in an impairment of £6.186m against the asset.



# Note 20 Trade receivables and other receivables

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2018

£000 £000 

Current

Contract receivables* 17,556 

Contract assets* - 

Trade receivables* 14,048 

Capital receivables - - 

Accrued income* - 

Allowance for impaired contract receivables / assets* (1,359)

Allowance for other impaired receivables - (1,344)

Deposits and advances - - 

Prepayments (non-PFI) 125 598 

PFI prepayments - capital contributions - - 

PFI lifecycle prepayments - - 

Interest receivable 6 - 

Finance lease receivables - - 

PDC dividend receivable - - 

VAT receivable 204 108 

Corporation and other taxes receivable - - 

Other receivables - 3,804 

Total current trade and other receivables 16,532 17,214 

Non-current

Contract receivables* 996 

Contract assets* - 

Trade receivables* - 

Capital receivables - - 

Accrued income* - 

Allowance for impaired contract receivables / assets* (218)

Allowance for other impaired receivables - (183)

Deposits and advances - - 

Prepayments (non-PFI) - - 

PFI prepayments - capital contributions - - 

PFI lifecycle prepayments - - 

Interest receivable - - 

Finance lease receivables - - 

VAT receivable - - 

Corporation and other taxes receivable - - 

Other receivables - 1,237 

Total non-current trade and other receivables 778 1,054 

Of which receivables from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 

Current 9,036 12,710 

Non-current - - 

*Following the application of IFRS 15 from 1 April 2018, the trust's entitlements to consideration for work performed 

under contracts with customers are shown separately as contract receivables and contract assets. This replaces the 

previous analysis into trade receivables and accrued income.  IFRS 15 is applied without restatement therefore the 

comparative analysis of receivables has not been restated under IFRS 15.



Note 20.1 Allowances for credit losses - 2018/19

Contract 

receivables 

and contract 

assets

All other 

receivables

£000 £000 

Allowances as at 1 Apr 2018 - brought forward - 

Impact of implementing IFRS 9 (and IFRS 15) on 1 April 2018 1,527 (1,527)

Transfers by absorption - - 

New allowances arising 50 - 

Changes in existing allowances - - 

Reversals of allowances - - 

Utilisation of allowances (write offs) - - 

Changes arising following modification of contractual cash flows - - 

Foreign exchange and other changes - - 

Allowances as at 31 Mar 2019 1,577 (1,527)

Note 20.2 Exposure to credit risk

The Trust does not consider that it is exposed to credit risk as it is underwritten by the Department of Health.



# Note 21 Cash and cash equivalents movements

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

At 1 April 2,277 1,705 

Prior period adjustments - - 

At 1 April (restated) 2,277 1,705 

Transfers by absorption - - 

Net change in year 1,909 572 

At 31 March 4,186 2,277 

Broken down into:

Cash at commercial banks and in hand 37 35 

Cash with the Government Banking Service 4,149 2,242 

Deposits with the National Loan Fund - - 

Other current investments - - 

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP 4,186 2,277 

Bank overdrafts (GBS and commercial banks) - - 

Drawdown in committed facility - - 

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoCF 4,186 2,277 

# Note 21.1 Third party assets held by the trust

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2018

£000 £000 

Bank balances - - 

Monies on deposit - - 

Total third party assets - - 

The trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate to monies held by the Trust on behalf of patients or other parties. 

This has been excluded from the cash and cash equivalents figure reported in the accounts.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, in hand and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily 

convertible investments of known value which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.



Note 22 Trade and other payables

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2018

£000 £000 

Current 

Trade payables 18,912 17,875 

Capital payables 833 645 

Accruals 3,129 4,664 

Receipts in advance (including payments on account) - - 

Social security costs 1,941 1,876 

VAT payables - - 

Other taxes payable 1,541 1,454 

PDC dividend payable - - 

Accrued interest on loans* 284 

Other payables 3,105 2,494 

Total current trade and other payables 29,461 29,292 

Non-current

Trade payables - - 

Capital payables - - 

Accruals - - 

Receipts in advance (including payments on account) - - 

VAT payables - - 

Other taxes payable - - 

Other payables - - 

Total non-current trade and other payables - - 

Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 

Current 7,881 7,817 

Non-current - - 

Note 22.1 Early retirements in NHS payables above

The payables note above includes amounts in relation to early retirements as set out below:

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2018

31 March 

2018

£000 Number £000 Number 

- to buy out the liability for early retirements over 5 

years - - 

- number of cases involved - - 

*Following adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, loans are measured at amortised cost. Any accrued interest is now 

included in the carrying value of the loan within note . IFRS 9 is applied without restatement therefore comparatives 

have not been restated.



Note 23 Other liabilities

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2018

£000 £000 

Current 

Deferred income: contract liabilities 1,445 1,411 

Deferred grants - - 

PFI deferred income / credits - - 

Lease incentives - - 

Other deferred income - 

Total other current liabilities 1,445 1,411 

Non-current

Deferred income: contract liabilities - - 

Deferred grants - - 

PFI deferred income / credits - - 

Lease incentives - - 

Other deferred income - - 

Net pension scheme liability - - 

Total other non-current liabilities - - 

Note 24 Borrowings

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2018

£000 £000 

Current 

Bank overdrafts - - 

Drawdown in committed facility - - 

Loans from the Department of Health and Scoial Care 11,600 7,085 

Other loans - - 

Obligations under finance leases - - 

PFI lifecycle replacement received in advance - - 

Obligations under PFI, LIFT or other service concession contracts (excl. lifecycle) 3,990 3,697 

Total current borrowings 15,590 10,782 

Non-current

Loans from the Department of Health and Scoial Care 82,767 53,655 

Other loans - - 

Obligations under finance leases - - 

PFI lifecycle replacement received in advance - - 

Obligations under PFI, LIFT or other service concession contracts 120,172 124,162 

Total non-current borrowings 202,939 177,817 



Note 24.1 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Loans 

from 

DHSC

Other 

loans

Finance 

leases

PFI and 

LIFT 

schemes Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Carrying value at 1 April 2018 60,740 - - 127,859 188,599 

Cash movements:

Financing cash flows - payments and receipts of 

principal 33,184 - - (3,697) 29,487 

Financing cash flows - payments of interest (2,193) - - (8,067) (10,260)

Non-cash movements:

Impact of implementing IFRS 9 on 1 April 2018 284 - - - 284 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - 

Additions - - - - - 

Application of effective interest rate 2,193 - - 8,067 10,260 

Change in effective interest rate - - - - - 

Changes in fair value - - - - - 

Other changes 159 - - - 159 

Carrying value at 31 March 2019 94,367 - - 124,162 218,529 



# Note 25 Provisions for liabilities and charges analysis

Pensions: 

early 

departure 

costs

Pensions: 

injury 

benefits* Legal claims

Re-

structuring

Equal Pay 

(including 

Agenda for 

Change) Redundancy Other Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

At 1 April 2018 - - 123 - - - 308 431 

Transfers by absorption - - - - - - - - 

Change in the discount rate - - - - - - - - 

Arising during the year - - - - - - - - 

Utilised during the year - - - - - - (299) (299)

Reclassified to liabilities held in disposal groups - - - - - - - - 

Reversed unused - - (15) - - - - (15)

Unwinding of discount - - - - - - - - 

At 31 March 2019 - - 108 - - - 9 117 

Expected timing of cash flows: 

- not later than one year; - - 108 - - - 9 117 

- later than one year and not later than five years; - - - - - - - - 

- later than five years. - - - - - - - - 

Total - - 108 - - - 9 117 

#

# Note 25.1 Clinical negligence liabilities

At 31 March 2019, £226,938k was included in provisions of NHS Resolution in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust (31 March 2018: £225,020k).



# Note 26 Contractual capital commitments

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2018

£000 £000 

Property, plant and equipment 322 310 

Intangible assets - - 

Total 322 310 

# Note 27 Defined benefit pension schemes

This Trust does not have a defined benefit pension scheme.

# Note 28 On-SoFP PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangements

# Note 28.1 Imputed finance lease obligations

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2018

£000 £000 

Gross PFI, LIFT or other service concession liabilities 192,994 202,267 

Of which liabilities are due

- not later than one year; 9,401 9,273 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 36,432 36,839 

- later than five years. 147,161 156,155 

Finance charges allocated to future periods (68,832) (74,408)

Net PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangement obligation 124,162 127,859 

- not later than one year; 3,990 3,697 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 16,586 16,275 

- later than five years. 103,586 107,887 

# Note 28.2 Total on-SoFP PFI, LIFT and other service concession arrangement commitments

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2018

£000 £000 

Total future payments committed in respect of the PFI, LIFT or other service 

concession arrangements 495,535 512,476 

Of which liabilities are due:

- not later than one year; 17,366 16,942 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 73,914 72,111 

- later than five years. 404,255 423,423 

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust has the following obligations in respect of the finance lease element of on-Statement of 

Financial Position PFI and LIFT schemes:

Total future obligations under these on-SoFP schemes are as follows:



# Note 28.3 Analysis of amounts payable to service concession operator

This note provides an analysis of the unitary payments made to the service concession operator:

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Unitary payment payable to service concession operator 16,941 16,351 

Consisting of:

- Interest charge 8,067 7,800 

- Repayment of finance lease liability 3,697 3,489 

- Service element and other charges to operating expenditure 4,376 4,224 

- Capital lifecycle maintenance 801 838 

- Revenue lifecycle maintenance - - 

- Contingent rent - - 

- Addition to lifecycle prepayment - - 

Other amounts paid to operator due to a commitment under the service concession 

contract but not part of the unitary payment - - 

Total amount paid to service concession operator 16,941 16,351 



Note 29 Financial instruments

Note 29.1 Financial risk management

Currency risk

Interest rate risk

Cash flow financing

Credit risk

Liquidity Risk

Because the majority of the Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust’s revenue comes from contracts with other public sector 

bodies, the Trust has low exposure to credit risk.  The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2019 are in receivables from 

customers, as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust’s operating costs are incurred under contracts with CCGs, which are financed from 

resources voted annually by Parliament .  The Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained within its 

prudential borrowing limit.  The Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within 

parameters defined formally within Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust’s standing financial instructions and policies agreed 

by the board of directors.  Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust treasury activity is subject to review by the Trust’s internal 

auditors.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period 

in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.  Because of the continuing service provider 

relationship that Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust has with CCGs and the way CCGs are financed, Walsall Healthcare 

NHS Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities.  Also financial instruments play a 

much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial 

reporting standards mainly apply.  Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds 

and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change 

the risks facing Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust in undertaking its activities.

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and 

liabilities being in the UK and sterling based.  The Trust has no overseas operations.  The Trust therefore has low 

exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust may also borrow from government for revenue financing subject to approval by NHS 

Improvement.  Interest rates are confirmed by the Department of Health (the lender) at the point borrowing is 

undertaken.

Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.



Note 29.2 Carrying values of financial assets

£000 £000 £000 

Trade and other receivables excluding non 

financial assets 16,980 - - 16,980 

Other investments / financial assets - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents at bank and in hand 4,186 - - 4,186 

Total at 31 March 2019 21,166 - - 21,166 

Loans and 

receivables 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Trade and other receivables excluding non 

financial assets 17,328 - - - 17,328 

Other investments / financial assets - - - - - 

Cash and cash equivalents at bank and in hand 2,277 - - - 2,277 

Total at 31 March 2018 19,605 - - - 19,605 

Note 29.3 Carrying value of financial liabilities

£000 £000 £000

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 94,367 - 94,367 

Obligations under finance leases - - - 

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 124,162 - 124,162 

Other borrowings - - - 

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 23,842 - 23,842 

Other financial liabilities - - - 

Provisions under contract - - - 

242,371 - 242,371 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is applied restrospectively from 1 April 2018 without restatement of comparatives. As such, 

comparative disclosures have been prepared under IAS 39 and the measurement categories differ to those in the current 

year analyses.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments is applied restrospectively from 1 April 2018 without restatement of comparatives. As such, 

comparative disclosures have been prepared under IAS 39 and the measurement categories differ to those in the current 

year analyses.

Held to 

maturity

Available-

for-sale

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 

March 2018 under IAS 39

Total book 

value

Held at 

amortised 

cost

Held at fair 

value 

through the 

I&E

Total book 

value

Held at 

amortised 

cost

Assets at 

fair value 

through the 

I&E

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2019 under IFRS 9

Total at 31 March 2019

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 

March 2019 under IFRS 9

Total book 

value

Held at fair 

value 

through 

I&E

£000 

Held at fair 

value 

through OCI



£000 £000 £000

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 60,740 - 60,740 

Obligations under finance leases - - - 

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 127,859 - 127,859 

Other borrowings - - - 

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 23,883 - 23,883 

Other financial liabilities - - - 

Provisions under contract - - - 

212,482 - 212,482 

Note 29.4 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Note 29.5 Maturity of financial liabilities

31 March 

2019

31 March 

2018

£000 £000 

39,432 34,665 

55,281 8,192 

39,271 58,000 

108,387 111,625 

242,371 212,482 

In one year or less

Total at 31 March 2018

The book value is used as a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Other 

financial 

liabilities

Held at fair 

value 

through the 

I&E

Total book 

value

Total

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2018 under IAS 39

In more than five years

In more than one year but not more than two years

In more than two years but not more than five years



Note 30 Losses and special payments

Total 

number of 

cases

Total value 

of cases

Total 

number of 

cases

Total value 

of cases

Number £000 Number £000 

Losses

Cash losses - - - - 

Fruitless payments - - - - 

Bad debts and claims abandoned - - - - 

Stores losses and damage to property 1 43 2 55 

Total losses 1 43 2 55 

Special payments

Compensation under court order or legally binding 

arbitration award 10 34 7 107 

Extra-contractual payments - - - - 

Ex-gratia payments 29 17 37 20 

Special severence payments - - - - 

Extra-statutory and extra-regulatory payments - - - - 

Total special payments 39 51 44 127 

Total losses and special payments 40 94 46 182 

Compensation payments received 20 72 

Note 31 Gifts

Total 

number of 

cases

Total value 

of cases

Total 

number of 

cases

Total value 

of cases

Number £000 Number £000 

Gifts made - - - - 

2018/19 2017/18

2018/19 2017/18



Note 32 Initial application of IFRS 9

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments as interpreted and adapted by the GAM has been applied by the Trust from 1 April 2018. 

The standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial application recognised as an adjustment to 

reserves on 1 April 2018.

IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 and introduces a revised approach to classification and measurement of financial assets and 

financial liabilities, a new forward-looking 'expected loss' impairment model and a revised approach to hedge accounting.

Under IFRS 9, borrowings from the Department of Health and Social Care, which were previously held at historic cost, 

are measured on an amortised cost basis. Consequently, on 1 April 2018 borrowings increased by £284k, and trade 

payables correspondingly reduced.

Reassessment of allowances for credit losses under the expected loss model resulted in a £0k decrease in the carrying 

value of receivables.

The GAM expands the definition of a contract in the context of financial instruments to include legislation and regulations, 

except where this gives rise to a tax. Implementation of this adaptation on 1 April 2018 has led to the classifiction of 

receivables relating to Injury Cost Recovery as a financial asset measured at amortised cost. The carrying value of these 

receivables at 1 April 2018 was £0k.

Note 32.1 Initial application of IFRS 15

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers as interpreted and adapted by the GAM has been applied by the Trust 

from 1 April 2018. The standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial application recognised as an 

adjustment to the income and expenditure reserve on 1 April 2018.

IFRS 15 introduces a new model for the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers replacing the previous 

standards IAS 11, IAS 18 and related Interpretations. The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue 

when it satisfies performance obligations through the transfer of promised goods or services to customers at an amount 

that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

As directed by the GAM, the Trust has applied the practical expedient offered in C7A of the standard removing the need 

to retrospectively restate any contract modifications that occurred before the date of implementation (1 April 2018).



Note 33 Related parties

Payments to 

Related Party

 £          69,913.00 

 £          17,150.00 

 £            1,990.00 

 £          62,175.00 

 £          13,043.00 

 £        171,626.00 

Note 34 Transfers by absorption

This is not applicable to the accounts for 2018/19.

Note 35 Prior period adjustments

There were no prior period adjustments.

Note 36 Events after the reporting date

There are no material events post close of the financial reporting period.

Note 37 Final period of operation as a trust providing NHS healthcare

Not Applicable.

Ms D Oom, Chair

Mr S Heer, Non-executive Director

Ms P Bradbury, Non-executive Director

Mr Richard Beeken, Chief Executive

Mr R Caldicott, Director of Finance and Performance

Ms J White, Interim Trust Secretary

Ms Oom is Co - Chair, Centre for Health and Social Care, University of Birmingham.

Mr S Heer is Non-executive Director Birmingham Community NHS Foundation Trust (NHS Entity).

Ms P Bradbury is a consultant with Health Education England

Mr R Beeken; spouse is a Midwifery Lecturer at Wolverhampton University.

Mr R Caldicott, is Chair and Executive Member of the West Midlands Branch of the Healthcare Financial Management 

Association

Ms J White, is Specialist Governance Advisor - CQC. 

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year the Trust had a significant number of material 

transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent 

Department. In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and 

other central and local government bodies. Most of these transactions have been with organisations detailed below.

Walsall Clinical Commissioning Group

Dudley And Walsall Mental Health Partnership NHS Trust

Sandwell and West Birmingham Clinical Commissioning Group

South East Staffs and Seisdon Peninsular Clinical Commissioning Group

Dudley Clinical Commissioning Group

Cannock Chase Clinical Commissioning Group

Birmingham Cross City Clinical Commissioning Group

Stafford and Surrounds Clinical Commissioning Group

Wolverhampton Clinical Commissioning Group

Royal Wolverhampton Hospitals NHS Trust

Sandwell and West Birmingham Hospitals NHS Trust

Birmingham Womens NHS Foundation Trust

Heart of England NHS Foundation Trust

Unversity Hospitals Birmingham University NHS Foundation Trust

West Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust

The Dudley Group of Hospitals

NHS England

Health Education England

NHS Business Services Authority

NHS Pension Scheme

National Insurance Fund

NHS Litigation Authority

NHS Property Services

Walsall Metropolitan Borough Council

St Helens and Knowsley NHS Trust

The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from a number of charitable funds.  The trustees of the Trust 

charity are also members of the Trust board.



Note 38 Better Payment Practice code

2018/19 2018/19 2017/18 2017/18

Number £000 Number £000 

Non-NHS Payables

Total non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 64,650 110,084 56,822 96,276
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 15,346 53,859 11,029 42,697
Percentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid within 

target 23.7% 48.9% 19.4% 44.3%

NHS Payables

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 1,759 12,568 1,391 12,869
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 68 1,939 174 1,280
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 3.9% 15.4% 12.5% 9.9%

Note 39 External financing

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Cash flow financing 33,450 27,496 

Finance leases taken out in year - 

Other capital receipts - 

External financing requirement 33,450 27,496 

External financing limit (EFL) 37,103 27,496 

Under / (over) spend against EFL 3,653 - 

Note 40 Capital Resource Limit

2018/19 2017/18

£000 £000 

Gross capital expenditure 13,149 10,137 

Less: Disposals - (690)

Less: Donated and granted capital additions (92) (475)

Plus: Loss on disposal from capital grants in kind - - 

Charge against Capital Resource Limit 13,057 8,972 

Capital Resource Limit 13,057 9,846 

Under / (over) spend against CRL - 874 

Note 41 Breakeven duty financial performance

2018/19

£000 

Adjusted financial performance surplus / (deficit) 

(control total basis) (27,541)

Remove impairments scoring to Departmental 

Expenditure Limit - 

Add back non-cash element of On-SoFP pension 

scheme charges - 

IFRIC 12 breakeven adjustment 1,582 

Breakeven duty financial performance surplus / 

(deficit) (25,959)

The trust is given an external financing limit against which it is permitted to underspend:

The Better Payment Practice code requires the NHS body to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days 

of receipt of valid invoice, whichever is later. 



Note 42 Breakeven duty rolling assessment

1997/98 to 

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Breakeven duty in-year financial 

performance 1,998 3,247 4,164 3,853 565 (12,861) (9,790) (21,392) (21,350) (25,959)

Breakeven duty cumulative position 5,933 7,931 11,178 15,342 19,195 19,760 6,899 (2,891) (24,283) (45,633) (71,592)

Operating income 168,545 179,749 226,983 228,409 237,049 239,491 243,525 244,742 243,963 253,034 

Cumulative breakeven position as a 

percentage of operating income 4.7% 6.2% 6.8% 8.4% 8.3% 2.9% (1.2%) (9.9%) (18.7%) (28.3%)

Due to the introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) accounting in 2009-10, NHS [organisation]’s financial performance measurement 

needs to be aligned with the guidance issued by HM Treasury measuring Departmental expenditure.  Therefore, the incremental revenue expenditure resulting 

from the application of IFRS to IFRIC 12 schemes (which would include PFI schemes), which has no cash impact and is not chargeable for overall budgeting 

purposes, is excluded when measuring Breakeven performance.  Other adjustments are made in respect of accounting policy changes (impairments and the 

removal of the donated asset and government grant reserves) to maintain comparability year to year.
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